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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk
profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report. This report, for which the directors (the “Directors’) of GET Holdings
Limited (the “Company’) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this report misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EIRE®|E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of GET
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, referred to
as the “Group”), | would like to present the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”) together with the Group’s
strategies and prospects.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$34,994,000 for the Year
(2015: Profit of approximately HK$93,423,000).

The Group’s consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$17,092,000 for the Year (2015: Profit of
approximately HK$60,510,000).

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the Year
(2015: Nil).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the Year, the Group continued to actively develop the Software
Business (as defined below) as one of its pillar businesses. By timely upgrading
its existing products of the Software Business, improving its technology and
developing innovative products to keep up with the ever-evolving I.T. trends,
the Group enjoyed a steady revenue in the segment. The Software Business
alone accounted for approximately 45.7% of the total turnover of the Group for
the Year (2015: approximately 42.2%).

In 2016, the Money Lending Business (as defined below) continued to
contribute positive results. During the Year, the Group continued to focus on
this business by providing both secured and unsecured loans to customers,
including individuals and corporations.

During the Year, like other insurance brokerage institutions, the Group faced a
weakening investment desire due to significant global stock market fluctuation.
Although the Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business (as defined
below) continued to record a stable performance, its contributions to the
Group’s revenue and its segment profit decreased.

On 21 March 2017, the Group disposed of approximately 32% of the
issued share capital of GET Mdream Wealth Management Limited (“GMD”)
to two independent third parties at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$3,000,000. Taking into account that the returns and benefits from GMD,
which is principally engaged in Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage
Business, were not as satisfactory as the Company had expected, the
Company considered that the disposal of part of its interest in GMD
represented a good chance for the Company to refocus its resources on its
core businesses and other investment which would bring higher returns to its
shareholders (“Shareholders”) as and when opportunities arose.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Provision of corporate management solutions and I.T. contract services
allowed the Group to extend the existing software service line and become a
comprehensive |.T. business platform. After the period under review, the Board
announced that it is considering the feasibility of the proposed spin-off and
the separate listing of the Corporate Management Solutions and |.T. Contract
Services Business (as defined below) on GEM.

In order to diversify its investment, the Group strived to identify suitable
investment opportunities during the Year. Carrying out the diversified
development strategy, the Group stepped into the solar energy business in
2016 by the acquisition of an aggregate of approximately 35% of the issued
share capital of Jun Yang Solar Power Investment Holdings Limited Z& 5 Yt &
B AR E]. The Board is optimistic about the industry prospects since
the solar market in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) is sustainable.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$89,988,000 and net current
assets of approximately HK$314,160,000. Given such solid and strong
financial position, the Group will strategically look for other potential business
segments with positive prospects to enhance its revenue sources and
profitability, thereby delivering long-term benefits for the Shareholders.

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the Group will continue to strive on its diverse business
territories and bring new catalyst for revenue growth. The Group will also
devote to focusing on Software Business, Money Lending Business,
Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business and
Securities Investment Business (as defined below). The Group holds a positive
view on the future market conditions in a prudent manner.

APPRECIATION

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to all our business partners and Shareholders for their continuing trust and
support in the past year. Meanwhile, | would also like to thank all staff and
members of the Board for their dedication and remarkable contributions to the
growth of the Group.

Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni
Chairman

27 March 2017

EE®|E

REFCREERBATREEMMBREORBSAEER
RAEGRUERBEEXSEEMEARKEBF G - RE
BHRR BEFEEM HAEZEEZOHEREEM
RABRREMBEAORBER ([EERTX]) RE
FHBY L2 A AE -

RETRE  AEERAEFEENDERERERS
N AEEERIERRE RGN - RIFFL T RRR
AEBR T -A"FEENEEBAEREERARA
Bl Z A HKKIBBRE HITRAS R KBREET - IR ARS
BERmEARKME ([FETSEAIRHERR EF
BHITEMNRBIFLEBEE -

MR-ZE—RNE+-A=+—H0 AEEEFHFRL RS
ZLEY LA KRB RIRIRTT1F 504789,988,000/% 7T LA K it B
& EFE#)314,160,000/8 7T R B S AR R IR 62 - A&
EAEREE e M S SENEEESHE
RABRARREFIGE T #MARDRRRREIN RS
Fzs o

A

RERK AEESBESH SR CEEBRBERA/R
ABRESHAG N - ARETEH N ZEIREFERS
EEER CEERHRD ZREMARE A HRSEEB
NRFEFREER (ERE T - REBHRATRE
FEBEREE-

Bt
BE AAZBELIBEROEHBE—F-EHEBRREX
HARENEBBHERR THE2EETIREEIK

BRBBTRYARE L REFLEAABERS S
B

FE
BPEiR

—E—tF=A=t++tA

BEERERAT 20165

5



6

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFN®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW
Software Business

During the Year, the business of research, development and distribution
of personal computer performance software, anti-virus software, mobile
phone applications and toolbar advertisement (the “Software Business”)
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$120,259,000 (2015: approximately
HK$137,136,000), representing a decrease of approximately 12.3% as
compared to 2015. The segment profit for the Software Business amounted
to approximately HK$33,494,000 (2015: approximately HK$78,388,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 57.3% as compared to 2015. The
declining performance of the Software Business was mainly due to volatility of
the global economy and the impairment loss on goodwill of HK$30,000,000 in
relation to the cash generating unit of the Software Business (2015: Nil).

Boom Max International Limited (‘Boom Max”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Boom Max Group”) strive to provide consumers with
innovative system utilities and security software for superior personal computer
performance and security. To protect its users from ever-evolving security
threats, new virus, malware and spyware, the Boom Max Group creates
easy-to-use and powerful solutions to improve computer’s performance and
security. The Group is improving its technology and expanding its product
lines to address the needs of users worldwide and to strengthen its foothold
in the competitive market. The Boom Max Group continues to focus on the
development and refinement of its products, including Advanced SystemCare,
AMC Security, Driver Booster, Smart Defrag, MacBooster and 10bit Malware
Fighter, of which Advanced SystemCare is the flagship product which helps
users to protect their personal computers from spyware and virus, detect and
solve issues regarding computer security and performance. The products
are available for download by customers worldwide through the website
www.iobit.com as well as other software download directory websites and
other alliance websites. The Boom Max Group has launched version 10.2.0
of Advanced SystemCare at the end of 2016. Based on the internal sale
database of the Boom Max Group, the Boom Max Group’s products have
over 113,000,000 new free and paid active users (which refer to users who
have subscribed for the products at least one time during the Year) (2015:
133,000,000).

Money Lending Business

Citi Profit Finance Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and GEO Finance Limited (“GEO Finance”) are holders of money
lenders licences under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Group has adopted money lending policy and
procedure manual which provide guidelines on the handling and/or monitoring
of money lending procedures according to the Money Lenders Ordinance.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s money lending business (the “Money Lending Business”) had a
stable performance during the Year. The Money Lending Business recorded
an interest income of approximately HK$4,684,000 for the Year (2015:
approximately HK$5,133,000), representing a decrease of approximately 8.7%
as compared to 2015 and a segment profit of approximately HK$3,498,000
for the Year (2015: approximately HK$3,941,000), representing a decrease
of approximately 11.2% over that for 2015. The decline was mainly due to
the weakened subordinate property mortgage loan business. In November
2016, the Group disposed of 51% of its equity interest in GEO Finance to
an independent third party at a cash consideration of HK$825,000. After
the completion of the disposal, GEO Finance has ceased to be an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the Company has
ceased to have any interest in GEO Finance. The loan receivables as at 31
December 2016 were approximately HK$11,673,000 (2015: approximately
HK$49,356,000). During the Year, the Group made a provision for doubtful
debts amounting to approximately HK$206,000 (2015: Nil) for its money
lending activities.

Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business

GMD is a registered member of the Professional Insurance Brokers
Association (‘PIBA”) and is principally engaged in carrying on long term
(including investment linked long term) insurance and general insurance lines of
business. GMD is also engaged in MPF schemes brokerage business in Hong
Kong.

GMD endeavours to provide its customers with comprehensive wealth
management services, and to explore the financial needs of clients and offer
personalised wealth management products. For the Year, the turnover and
segment profit of this business were approximately HK$69,487,000 (2015:
approximately HK$71,368,000) and approximately HK$1,155,000 (2015:
approximately HK$2,081,000) respectively. The decline was mainly attributable
to the fluctuation of the global economy and keen market competition.

Taking into account that the returns and benefits from GMD were not
as satisfactory as the Company had expected, on 21 March 2017, the
Group disposed of approximately 32% of the issued share capital of GMD
to two independent third parties at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$3,000,000 so as to refocus its resources on its core businesses and other
investment which would bring higher returns to the Shareholders as and when
opportunities arise. After the completion of the disposal, the Group holds
approximately 19% of the issued share capital of GMD. GMD has ceased to
be a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is accounted for as an
available-for-sale financial asset.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFN®R DM

Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services
Business

The Group provides corporate management solutions, I.T. contract services,
network infrastructure solutions, network professional services and I.T.
project implementation business (the “Corporate Management Solutions and
I.T. Contract Services Business”) to corporate clients mainly in Hong Kong
via its indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, e-Perfect IT Limited and Wafer
Systems (Hong Kong) Limited. The turnover and profit derived from this
business segment for the Year were approximately HK$59,963,000 (2015:
approximately HK$108,489,000) and approximately HK$12,472,000 (2015:
approximately HK$13,455,000) respectively.

After the period under review, the Board announced that it is considering the
feasibility of the proposed spin-off and the separate listing of the Corporate
Management Solutions and |.T. Contract Services Business on GEM. Details
of the proposed spin-off are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8
February 2017.

Securities Investment Business

During the Year, the segment profit for the securities investment business (the
“Securities Investment Business”) amounted to approximately HK$68,597,000
(2015: approximately HK$49,832,000). Such profit was mainly attributable
to the combined effects of () the net fair value gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL Financial Assets”) of approximately
HK$81,673,000 (2015: approximately HK$101,901,000), (i) the net loss on
disposal of FVTPL Financial Assets of approximately HK$556,000 (2015:
approximately HK$39,346,000), (i) net gain on disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets (“AFS Financial Assets”) of approximately HK$358,000
(2015: loss of approximately HK$11,931,000) and (iv) impairment loss on
AFS Financial Assets of approximately HK$11,914,000 (2015: approximately
HK$1,309,000).

As at 31 December 2016, the FVTPL Financial Assets and the AFS Financial
Assets with fair value of approximately HK$523,899,000 and approximately
HK$83,567,000 respectively consisted of 13 investment items (2015: 12
items), 12 of which are shares of companies listed on the Stock Exchange
while the remaining one is an unlisted investment fund.

8 GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Discloseable transactions of AFS Financial Assets during the Year

On 18 February 2016, the Group disposed of 2,100 shares of Triton Capital
SPC (“Triton”) to an independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$21,000,000. Triton is a company incorporated and registered as a
segregated portfolio company under the laws of the Cayman Islands on 12
December 2014 for the purpose of carrying out investment strategy. The
investment portfolio of Triton is focused on investment in agricultural industry
in the PRC. The Group recorded the loss of approximately HK$3,000 for such
disposal.

During the period from 13 November 2015 to 17 March 2016 (both dates
inclusive), the Group disposed of an aggregate of 38,000,000 shares
of Tianyun International Holdings Limited (“Tianyun”) at an aggregate
consideration of HK$41,556,860. Tianyun is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 6836). Tianyun and
its subsidiaries were principally engaged in (1) the production and sales of
processed fruit products packaged in metal containers, plastic cups and
glass containers and (2) trading of fresh fruit at the relevant time. The Group
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$7,232,000 for such disposals.

Details of the above disposals are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 28 October 2016.

BEEEFN®R DM
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENwWR DM

Below are the securities investments held by the Group as at 31 December MU TNAREBR _ZT— A F+_A=+—H#EFHHF2E

2016: BE
Percentage
of total Unrealised
issued share gain/(loss)
capital of on change in Dividend
Number of the investee Market value  Percentage to the  Percentage to the fair value for income
Place of shares held company as at asat  Group’saudited  Group’s audited the Year for the Year
Name of investee company Notes  incorporation by the Group 31 December 2016 31 December 2016 net assets total assets (audited) (audited)
(Note 1)
ERREDT
RZB-RE FAATEE
+=A=t-H2 R=F-AF BREEZ [ 1) 282
KEE BRIRE  +t=B=t-8 BEL BEH FERUE/ FRAREUA
RRENTER Wi ERMRIBE FEZRHBE BEZEMM 2HE  EEFEASM  EELEASE  (BR) (BER) (B%H)
(PzH1)
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(F#1) (F#7) (F#1)
(Approximately) (Approximately) (Approximately) (Approximately) (Approximately)
() () (i) (Bi#) (##)
AFS Financial Assets
THLESREE
China Parenting Network Holdings Limited 2 Cayman Islands 10,760,000 1.06% 27,008 2.50% 1.84% 1,399 -
(‘China Parenting’) EE]
PEFREEBRARLR ([EER))
Hydra Capital SPC - SP #1 (*Hydra Capital SPC’) 3 Cayman Islands 1,100 491% 2,147 0.20% 0.15% (7,463) -
Hydra Capital SPC - SP #1( [Hydra Capital SPC |) RS
Capital \/C Limited (“Capital VC') 4 Cayman Islands 76,000,000 2.21% 3,800 0.35% 0.26% (5,928) =
BHERARAR ([HHEHR)) FEHS
Convoy Global Holdings Limited ("Convoy Global’) 5 Cayman lslands 13,512,000 0.09% 3121 0.29% 0.21% (2,756) =
RRERERERAR ([RERR]) Reke
Time2U International Holding Limited (‘Time2U") 6 Cayman Islands 22,000,000 0.64% 2,948 0.27% 0.20% (138) -
BRmMERERERAR ([HREAR]) FgkE
Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited (‘Target Insurance”) 7 Hong Kong 3,500,000 0.67% 6,685 0.62% 0.45% (50) -
SRR (BR)ERAR ((RINRE]) 3
Finsoft Financial Investment Holdings Limited (‘Finsoft’) 8 Cayman lslands 186,492,340 17.75% 37,858 3.50% 2.58% (2,648) S
Ef ¢ RRABRERAR (EH]) FEHS
FVTPL Financial Assets
BRRBUATEEIRNEREE
Convoy Global 5 Cayman lslands 787,118,000 5.21% 181,824 16.80% 12.37% (159,711) -
BRRR F2HS
First Credit Finance Group Limited (‘First Credit’) 9 Bermuda 718,000,000 19.79% 333,870 30.84% 22.72% 241,334 S
E-EALRETARAT ([E-ER)) BRE
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (‘CK Hutchison”) 10 Cayman lslands 20,000 0.0005% 1,758 0.16% 0.12% (334) 52
RINZEEARAR ([RINRL]) Reke
China Everbright International Limited 1 Hong Kong 100,000 0.0022% 879 0.08% 0.06% 81) S
(‘China Everbright’) i
PEERERERAR ((REXA])
AIA Group Limited (‘AIA") 12 Hong Kong 30,000 0.0002% 1,313 0.12% 0.09% 169 2
RARBRERERLR ([RARB]) ik
Lenovo Group Limited (‘Lenovo’) 13 Hong Kong 300,000 0.0027% 1410 0.13% 0.10% (169) 18
BEEEARAR ([HE]) 3
Tencent Holdings Limited (‘Tencent’) 14 Cayman Islands 15,000 0.0002% 2,845 0.26% 0.19% 157 -
BaERARAR ([EA)) FEHS

10  GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



Notes:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The percentage is calculated with reference to the then latest monthly return
or next day disclosure return of the investee company publicly available on the
website of the Stock Exchange.

China Parenting (stock code: 8361) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “China Parenting Group”) were an online platform focusing on the children-
babies-maternity (“CBM”) market in the PRC and were mainly engaged in the
provision of marketing and promotional service, e-commerce business and
licensing of smart-hardware devices through its large and engaged user base of
CBM consumers. As disclosed in the annual report of China Parenting for the year
ended 31 December 2016, the China Parenting Group will continue to promote
projects in different platforms, explore actively cooperation areas and cooperation
models to expand the market abroad. It will also bring good excellent service
abroad to domestic users to establish higher industrial standards, consolidate its
leading position and build up its authority in young families.

Hydra Capital SPC is an unlisted investment fund, which was incorporated and
registered as a segregated portfolio company under the laws of the Cayman
Islands for the purpose of carrying out the investment strategy, and its investment
portfolio included certain online games.

Capital VC (stock code: 2324) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Capital VC Group”) were principally engaged in investing in listed and unlisted
companies mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. As disclosed in the annual report
of Capital VC for the year ended 30 September 2016, Capital VC expects the
investment environment in the United States and other advance economies will
not be as stable as before. The United States’ monetary and fiscal policies may
have a dramatic change. Accelerating interest rate normalization may affect
global investment atmosphere. In connection with the United States’ foreign
policy, Donald Trump may focus on the threat posted to the United States by
its trade relations with China. The United States may impose tariffs on various
China products. Accordingly, its directors consider that it will be a very challenging
investment environment in this couple of years, and they will continue to adopt
cautious measures to manage the Capital VC’s investment portfolio.

Convoy Global (stock code: 1019) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Convoy Group”) were principally engaged in the independent financial
advisory business, money lending business, proprietary investment business,
asset management business, corporate finance business and securities dealing
business. As disclosed in the interim report of Convoy Global for the six months
ended 30 June 2016, in order to pursue its vision of becoming one of the leading
financial groups across Asia, the Convoy Group has formulated three short-
term missions: (i) to establish a comprehensive financial services platform in Asia,
particularly in Hong Kong and Mainland China; (i) to materialise the synergies
among different business segments and locations; and (jii) to improve the capital
structure of the Convoy Group.

—
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwWR DM

10.

Time2U (stock code: 1327) and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in the
manufacture and sales of own-branded watches, OEM watches and third-party
watches. As disclosed in the annual results announcement of Tim2U for the year
ended 31 December 2016, Tim2U aimed to offer premium quality products to
customers and will continue to strengthen its core competitiveness by improving
its watch design and development capabilities by upholding the design and artistic
knowledge of the design team and recruitment of additional talents. Time2U will
closely monitor the market response and remix the product portfolio to suit the
market needs.

Target Insurance (stock code: 6161) and its subsidiaries were principally
engaged in writing motor insurance in Hong Kong with leading market position
on insurance for taxi and public light buses. As disclosed in the interim report
of Target Insurance for the six months ended 30 June 2016, Target Insurance
will continually hone its focus on four strategic objectives which are (1) increase
its insurance business on other types of motor vehicles and provide high quality
services to its customers; (2) explore business opportunities to diversity its
insurance products; (3) strengthen relationship with its agents; and (4) enhance its
corporate image.

Finsoft (stock code: 8018) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Finsoft Group”) were principally engaged in the provision of financial trading
software solutions, provision of other internet financial platforms, provision of
referral services, money lending business, assets investments, provision of
corporate finance advisory services and provision of design and fitting-out services
in Hong Kong. As disclosed in the annual results announcement of Finsoft for
the year ended 31 December 2016, looking ahead, the Finsoft Group is keen on
looking for feasible business partners for alliance and investment opportunities
and acquire and ensure effective budget control to bring positive return to its
shareholders. The Finsoft Group will also strive for excellence and maintain its
global competitiveness in the internet finance industry through continuously
enriching its product portfolio.

First Credit (stock code: 8215) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“First Credit Group”) were principally engaged in money lending business. As
disclosed in the third quarterly report of First Credit for the nine months ended
30 September 2016, the First Credit Group will continue to strive for maintaining
revenue growth and credit quality on the back of its experience in money lending
business. Meanwhile, the First Credit Group will closely monitor its capital and
funding base and explore potential opportunities in pursuing sustainable growth
and maximising value for shareholders.

CK Hutchison (stock code: 1) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“CK Hutchison Group”) were principally engaged in five core businesses: ports
and related services, retail, infrastructure, energy, and telecommunications. As
disclosed in the annual results announcement of CK Hutchison for the year ended
31 December 2016, market volatility, political and regulatory uncertainty and rapid
accelerating technological changes affecting many of the CK Hutchison Group’s
businesses will continue in 2017. The impact of Brexit negotiation, new US
presidential policies and upcoming elections across Europe remain unknown and
could affect the economic environment of countries in which the CK Hutchison
Group operates. As the CK Hutchison Group’s investments in the UK and Europe
are businesses which focus on utilities and essential consumer goods and
services, Mr. Li Ka-shing believes these impacts will be manageable and the key
fundamentals of the CK Hutchison Group will remain solid.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

China Everbright (stock code: 257) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “China Everbright Group”) were principally engaged in the business
of environmental protection, project investment, construction, operation and
management in the PRC. As disclosed in the annual results announcement of
China Everbright for the year ended 31 December 2016, the China Everbright
Group will remain committed to its core value and continue to enthusiastically
align itself with China’s overall development strategies. As disclosed in the annual
results announcement of China Everbright for the year ended 31 December
2016, in order to realise long-term growth, the China Everbright Group will
seek to uncover its full internal potential and strength, and keep abreast of the
opportunities in the industry and market. The China Everbright Group will also
continue to innovate in terms of its business models and strengthen its risk
prevention awareness and measures, as well as take a commercial and market-
oriented approach to management and operation. It takes these steps as it strives
to help China and the world solve environmental issues, improve the quality of
urban environments, and ultimately make a greater contribution to environmental
restoration.

AIA (stock code: 1299) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “AlA
Group”) were principally engaged in the writing of life insurance business,
providing life insurance, accident and health insurance and savings plans
throughout Asia, and distributing related investment and other financial services
products to its customers. As disclosed in the annual report of AlA for the year
ended 30 November 2016, AIA is wonderfully well positioned to benefit from the
significant long-term economic and demographic growth drivers in Asia.

Lenovo (stock code: 992) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Lenovo Group”) were principally engaged in the sales and manufacture of
personal computers, tablets, smartphones, servers and related information
technology products and the provision of advanced information services across
the world. As disclosed in the third quarterly results announcement of Lenovo for
the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the Lenovo Group will continue to
develop new smart devices, powered by cloud and enriched with services.

Tencent (stock code: 700) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Tencent Group”) were principally engaged in the provision of value-added
services and online advertising services to users in the PRC. As disclosed in the
annual results announcement of Tencent for year ended 31 December 2016,
during 2017, the Tencent Group intends to further its “Connection” strategy by
expanding its ecosystem around its core social and communication platforms.

11.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN®R DM

The Directors expect that the stock market in Hong Kong remains to
be volatile which may affect the performance of the Group’s securities
investments. The Board believes that the performance of the securities
investments of the Group will be dependent on the financial and operating
performance of investee companies and market sentiment which are affected
by factors such as interest rate movements and performance of the macro
economy. In order to mitigate the associated risk, the Group will continuously
remain cautious in the allocation of resources and the identification and
capture of appropriate securities investment opportunities and will review
its investment strategy regularly and take appropriate actions whenever
necessary in response to changes in the market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

During the Year, the turnover of the Group was approximately
HK$263,021,000, representing a decrease of approximately 19% as
compared to the turnover of approximately HK$324,729,000 for 2015.
The turnover for the Year was mainly contributed by the turnover of () the
Software Business of approximately HK$120,259,000, (i) the Insurance and
MPF Schemes Brokerage Business of approximately HK$69,487,000 and (i)
the Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business of
approximately HK$59,963,000.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the Year decreased by approximately 10.9%
to approximately HK$147,213,000 from approximately HK$165,152,000 for
2015.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased from approximately HK$5,635,000
for 2015 to approximately HK$22,562,000 for the Year. The increase in finance

costs was mainly due to the issue of loan notes by the Company during the
period from April 2015 to January 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit for the Year

The Group recorded a net profit of approximately HK$34,994,000 for the
Year (2015: approximately HK$93,423,000). The net profit for the Year
mainly comprised (i) the segment profit of approximately HK$33,494,000
contributed by the Software Business, (i) the segment profit of approximately
HK$68,597,000 contributed by the Securities Investment Business and (i) the
segment profit of approximately HK$12,472,000 contributed by the Corporate
Management Solutions and |.T. Contract Services Business.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$17,092,000 for the Year as compared with the profit attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$60,510,000 for 2015.

The decrease in net profit for the Year as compared with that for 2015 was
mainly attributable to the combined effects of (i) the decrease in segment
profit contributed by the Software Business by approximately HK$44,894,000
to approximately HK$33,494,000 for the Year (2015: approximately
HK$78,388,000), mainly due to volatility of the global economy and the
impairment loss on goodwill in relation to the cash generating unit of the
Software Business of the Group of HK$30,000,000 (2015: Nil); (i) the increase
in finance costs by HK$16,927,000 to approximately HK$22,562,000 for
the Year (2015: approximately HK$5,635,000) mainly as a result of the
issue of loan notes by the Company during the period from April 2015 to
January 2016; (i) the increase in segment profit contributed by the Securities
Investment Business by HK$18,765,000 to approximately HK$68,597,000
for the Year (2015: approximately HK$49,832,000); (iv) the fair value loss on
derivative financial instruments of approximately HK$20,605,000 for the Year
(2015: Nil) in relation to the convertible notes issued by the Company as part
of the consideration for the Group’s acquisition of additional 14.677% interest
in Boom Max which was completed on 31 December 2015; and (v) fair value
gain on investment properties of approximately HK$8,495,000 for the Year
(2015: Nil).

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposit amounted to approximately HK$89,988,000 (as at 31
December 2015: approximately HK$216,910,000), which were principally
denominated in Renminbi, United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar (2015:
Renminbi, United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar). As at 31 December
2016, the aggregate outstanding principal amount (excluding loan interest
payable) of the loan notes with a fixed interest rate of 10% per annum, the
loan notes with a fixed interest rate of 9% per annum, and the non-interest
bearing convertible notes, all repayable within 1 year, were approximately
HK$19,000,000, approximately HK$189,000,000 and approximately
HK$75,208,000 respectively, and the outstanding principal amount (excluding
loan interest payable) of the loan note with a fixed interest rate of 9% per
annum repayable within a period of more than 1 year but not exceeding 2
years was approximately HK$2,000,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFN®R DM

The Group generally finances its operation by (1) internally generated
resources, (2) proceeds raised from the 2015 Rights Issue (as defined below),
(8) proceeds raised from the placing of new shares under general mandate,
and (4) proceeds raised from issue of the Aug 2015 Notes (as defined below)
by the Company during the Year.

2015 Rights Issue

On 24 February 2015, the Board proposed a rights issue on the basis of
three rights shares for every one share (the “2015 Rights Issue”) held on the
record date at a subscription price of HK$0.35 per share (each, a “2015
Rights Share”) which represented a discount of approximately 59.8% to the
theoretical closing price of HK$0.87 per share of the Company, based on
the closing price of HK$0.087 per share of the Company immediately prior
to the 2015 Capital Reorganisation (as defined below) becoming effective
as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 24 February 2015, being the date of
the underwriting agreement. The Directors considered that it was prudent
to finance the Group’s long term growth by way of the 2015 Rights Issue
which would not only strengthen the Group’s capital base and enhance its
financial position without increasing finance costs, but also allow all qualifying
Shareholders the opportunity to participate in the growth of the Group through
the 2015 Rights Issue at a price lower than the then current market price
of the shares of the Company. The 2015 Rights Issue was approved by the
independent Shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 11 May 2015.

Upon the completion of the 2015 Rights Issue in June 2015, 586,237,461
ordinary shares of the Company were issued. The aggregate nominal value of
the 2015 Rights Shares was approximately HK$5,862,000. The net proceeds
from the 2015 Rights Issue were approximately HK$196.5 million, and on
this basis, the net issue price of each 2015 Rights Share was approximately
HK$0.336. Details of the 2015 Rights Issue are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 February 2015, 20 March 2015, 10 April 2015, 11
May 2015, 12 May 2015 and 15 June 2015, the Company’s circular dated 22
April 2015, the Company’s prospectus dated 22 May 2015 and note 37(d) to
the consolidated financial statements.

16  GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

RAFE AEE—KRARAROALELEE R 2=
T-REHR (ERR T EENMEFIE - QRIE—
RERREEMENEENAERER RWET-F -0
FANARR (EZRTXOEKNMERAREEER
HEE-

—F-AFHEK

RZZ—RAF-A-+NE E5CEZEREESR
0.35 B TEITHRIR ([T —REH ) - BEARDH
RS E —REROEZE ="BRERBD (FAH—KRI=
T-RAFHERRKRG]) - BRERR7D0.358 TRA A F]
Bl ESR0.87B TITELS9.8%  NEREE T
—AFERAEE (EER T ERAR=_E—RAF_A
Z+UA (AEERE B ) A RQ BN TEE A AT IR UL
MESRCSTELHE -EERA U —HFHRK
FRAABARERERERBEENEEZ S ETEEEAR
SEERE & EHE K o5& B 75tk 5 i T8 78 48 0 B A B AN -
NEMBAEBREERES BB T —AFHEK UK
RARABRMNERHRITIMELEREBENER - —-F
—EFHBAE—AFHEA+ —ARTHARRBRE
BRIAS EEB R AL -

R-ZE—AEANATK - —HEH-K%E &7
586,237,461 AR B L @AY - — T — AFHAAD A
{E#)45,862,0008 70 —F— AFHBRABHBFHED
#3196,500,0008 7T - IR EEHE G -_T -1 FH#
RERLAD B B 21T (B 49 /20.33678 7T Bl — T — A FHAL
HHBEENARTERA-ZE—RFEF_A-+tmWAE =
E-—HAFE=A-+H —E—HFEWNA+H —E—%
FRA+—B ZE—AFAEA+-HE=ZZE—HFX
A+RBEWMAE - AARARA-ZT—AFMA-+=
AMBRMUARARARBSRA-—S—HAFHRA-+-AY
AR IR A RAR S B IS R M 5E37(d) ©



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DM

The actual use of the net proceeds of the 2015 Rights Issue as at 31

December 2016 was as follows:

Intended use of
the net proceeds

Net proceeds from the 2015 Rights Issue
of approximately HK$196.5 milion was
intended to be used in the following
manner:

()  Approximately HK$20 million for
funding part of the consideration
for the acquisition of 100% of
the issued share capital of Million
Worldwide Investment Limited
(“Million Worldwide”) and a sum of
HK$26,899,220 owing from Million
Worldwide to the vendor (“Million
Worldwide Acquisition”) (note a)

(i)  Approximately HK$50 million for
funding the Money Lending Business

(ii) - Approximately HK$41 million for future
potential investment in listed and/or
unlisted securities (note b)

(iv) Approximately HK$1 million for future
potential acquisitions or investments
which were related to the Insurance
and MPF Schemes Brokerage
Business (note b)

Actual use of the net proceeds
as at 31 December 2016

Approximately HK$18,000 used for the
legal and professional fees regarding the
incorporation of a company in Hong Kong
for the Intended Business (as defined below)

Approximately HK$20 million used for
funding part of the consideration of the
Million Worldwide Acquisition

Approximately HK$50 million used for the Money

Lending Business which is one of the principal
business activities of the Group

Approximately HK$41 million used for the

investment in securities

Approximately HK$1 milion used for professional

fee in relation to the acquisition of 100%
interest of Trendmode Holdings Limited
(“Trendmode Acquisition”)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFN®R DM

Intended use of
the net proceeds

(v)

(vi)

Approximately HK$17.9 milion for
settling part of the consideration of
the acquisition of a commercial unit
in Central, Hong Kong (‘Property
Acquisition”)) (note ¢)

Approximately HK$20.1 million for
other future investment opportunities

Actual use of the net proceeds
as at 31 December 2016

Approximately HK$17.9 million used for paying
part of the consideration of the Property
Acquisition

Approximately HK$20.1 million used for paying
part of the deposit of the acquisition of

FERRFRRERR

(v) #17,900,000 7T &£ X%
Tl —E R EER R
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H])HHRE (MiEc)

(vi) #720,100,0007% T # {E A&
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RZB-AE+ZA=+-BHE
REFEERAR

#717,900,0007 T B X (0 % 1
BEEISAE

#120,100,0007% 7t A 7 X fF
f&Boom Max#E ) B & 1T A
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of the Group (note c)

(vi) Approximately HK$36 million for future
potential acquisition of properties

(vi

Note a:

Note b:

Approximately HK$10.5 million for
general working capital of the Group

additional 14.677% of the issued share capital
of Boom Max

Approximately HK$36 million used for paying part
of the consideration of the Property Acquisition

Approximately HK$10.5 million used for
investment in listed securities and unlisted
investment funds which is one of the principal
business activities of the Group

It was disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 22 May 2015 that, among
others, approximately HK$20 million of the net proceeds from the 2015 Rights
Issue would be used for funding the incorporation of a company in Hong Kong
to be wholly-owned by the Group to carry on Type 1 (dealing in securities)
regulated activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong) (the ‘Intended Business’). As at 11 March 2016, in view
of the uncertain and fluctuating securities market, the Board decided to delay
the plan for carrying on the Intended Business and intended to use the said
HK$20 million for funding part of the consideration for the Million Worldwide
Acquisition. The Company will continue to observe the market condition and
review the plan for developing the Intended Business. Details of such change are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 11 March 2016.

It was disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 22 May 2015 that, among
others, approximately HK$80 million of the net proceeds from the 2015 Rights
Issue would be used for future potential acquisitions or investments which were
related to the Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business (including
the Trendmode Acquisition). As at 22 December 2015, since the Trendmode
Acquisition was terminated and approximately HK$1 million out of the proceeds
was used for professional fee in relation to the Trendmode Acquisition, the
Group intended to use the remaining HK$41 million out of the proceeds for
future potential investment in listed and/or unlisted securities. Details of such
change are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22 December
2015.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Note c: It was disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 22 May 2015 that, among
others, approximately HK$80 million of the net proceeds from the 2015 Rights
Issue would be used for future potential acquisitions or investments which were
related to the Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business (including the
Trendmode Acquisition). As at 10 August 2015, the Group had not identified any
potential investment opportunity which was related to the Insurance and MPF
Schemes Brokerage Business and the Group intended to use approximately
HK$17.9 million to fund the partial consideration of the Property Acquisition.
The Company also intended to use approximately HK$20.1 million for other
future potential investment opportunities of the Group. Details of change of
use of proceeds from the 2015 Rights Issues are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 10 August 2015.

Issue of the Aug 2015 Notes

On 20 August 2015, the Company as issuer and Jun Yang Securities
Company Limited as placing agent (the “Aug 2015 Placing Agent”) entered
into a placing agreement pursuant to which the Aug 2015 Placing Agent
agreed to act as placing agent of the Company, on a best endeavour basis,
to procure the placee(s) to subscribe for 9% per annum notes (‘Aug 2015
Notes”) to be issued by the Company in an aggregate principal amount of up
to HK$300,000,000 maturing on the second anniversary after the issue date
of the notes at the placing price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the
Aug 2015 Notes (the “Aug 2015 Note Placing”). The Directors considered
that the Aug 2015 Note Placing represented an opportunity to obtain funding,
which was intended to be used for the investment in listed securities and
unlisted funds which is one of the principal activities of the Group.

The placing period ended on 15 February 2016. The Aug 2015 Notes in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$191,000,000 were issued to certain
subscribers who subscribed for the Aug 2015 Notes during the period from 10
September 2015 to 29 December 2015. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$185,270,000 (after deduction of commission to the Aug 2015 Placing
Agent and other expenses of the Aug 2015 Note Placing) were used for the
investment in listed securities. Details of the issue of the Aug 2015 Notes
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 20 August 2015, 30
September 2015, 2 November 2015, 30 November 2015, 31 December 2015
and 15 February 2016.

After the early redemption by the Company of part of the Aug 2015 Notes
on 21 March 2017, the Aug 2015 Notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HIK$130,000,000 remained outstanding. Details of the early redemption of part
of the Aug 2015 Notes are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 20
February 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFN®R DM

2016 Capital Reorganisation and change in board lot size in May 2016

The 2016 Capital Reorganisation (as defined below) was approved by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 23
May 2016 and became effective on 24 May 2016. Upon the 2016 Capital
Reorganisation becoming effective, the board lot size for trading of the shares
of the Company has been changed from 5,000 to 6,000.

The Directors considered that the 2016 Capital Reorganisation would increase
each board lot value, enabling the Company to comply with the trading
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules and keep the par value of the new
shares at a lower level that can facilitate the Company’s future fund raising
activities. The credit in the contributed surplus account of the Company arising
from the 2016 Capital Reduction (as defined below) can enable the Company
to set off part of its accumulated losses of the Company as at 31 December
2015 and may be applied in the future for distribution to the Shareholders
or in any manner permitted by the laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the
Company. The change in board lot size can maintain the trading value for each
board lot at a reasonable level to attract investors. Details of the 2016 Capital
Reorganisation and the change in board lot size are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 29 February 2016 and 23 May 2016 and the
Company’s circular dated 20 April 2016 and note 37(b) to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.

Issuance of New Shares Under General Mandate
(@) Issuance of consideration shares

On 13 June 2016, Lucky Famous Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company as purchaser, Fragrant River Entertainment Culture
(Holdings) Limited, an independent third party, as vendor (“AP Vendor”)
and Universe International Financial Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Universe International Holdings Limited) (“‘Universe”), a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, and the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1046) as
guarantor entered into a sale and purchase agreement (‘AP Group SP
Agreement”) in relation to the acquisition of 510 issued shares (‘AP
Sale Shares”) of AP Group Investment Holdings Limited & Bf £= &%
fEERRA T (“AP Holdings”), which represented 51% of the issued
share capital of AP Holdings, at a consideration of HK$20,400,000
(subject to downward adjustment), which was settled by way of
allotment and issue of 40,800,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
(“Consideration Shares”), credited as fully paid, at an issue price of
HK$0.50 per Consideration Share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The completion of the acquisition was subject to the fulfilment or (if
applicable) waiver of the following conditions:

(1) (where applicable) the compliance with the applicable
requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) for the sale of the AP
Sale Shares as contemplated under the AP Group SP Agreement
having been fulfilled by the guarantor;

(2)  (where applicable) the compliance with the applicable
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules for the purchase of
the AP Sale Shares as contemplated under the AP Group SP
Agreement having been fulfilled by the Company;

(8)  the Stock Exchange having granted the listing of, and permission
to deal in, the Consideration Shares;

(4)  (if applicable) all necessary consents and approvals in relation
to the transactions contemplated under the AP Group SP
Agreement (including, where applicable, waiver of pre-emptive
rights over the AP Sale Shares by the other shareholders of AP
Holdings) having been obtained by the AP Vendor and such
consents and approvals should be valid up to the completion
date;

5) (if applicable) all necessary consents and approvals in relation
to the transactions contemplated under the AP Group SP
Agreement having been obtained by the Group and such
consents and approvals should be valid up to the completion
date;

(6)  the Group being reasonably satisfied with the results of the
due diligence exercise (whether legal, accounting, financial,
operational or other aspects that the Group may consider
necessary) on the business, assets, liability, activities, operations,
prospects and other status of each of AP Holdings and its
subsidiaries (“AP Group”) which the Group, its agents or
professional advisers think reasonably necessary and appropriate
to conduct;

(7)  the AP Vendor having delivered to the Group a PRC legal opinion
in respect of the business licence of FIBHMR CEERLANE
[ /A 7], a wholly-owned subsidiary of Act Point Limited & £ - 5
BFRAF], an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of AP Holdings
to the reasonable satisfaction of the Group;
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(8)  the Group being satisfied, from the date of the AP Group SP
Agreement and at any time before the completion, that the
warranties given by the AP Vendor and the guarantor under
the AP Group SP Agreement remain true, accurate and not
misleading and that no events have occurred that would result
in any breach of any of such warranties or other provisions of
the AP Group SP Agreement given by the AP Vendor or the
guarantor;

(99  there being no material adverse change in the business,
operations, financial conditions or prospects of the AP Group
taken as a whole since the date of the AP Group SP Agreement;
and

(10) the Subscription Agreement (as defined below) having become
unconditional (other than the condition relating to the AP Group
SP Agreement having become unconditional).

The Group might waive the conditions (6), (7), (8) and (9) at any time
before 30 September 2016 (or such later date as the AP Vendor and
the Group may agree in writing) by notice in writing to the AP Vendor.
None of the other conditions was capable of being waived by any party
to the AP Group SP Agreement.

The Board has taken into account the following factors in assessing
the acquisition of the AP Sale Shares: (1) the AP Group has a well-
established business in the provision of education and training programs
in relation to self-improvement and self-enhancement in Hong Kong
and the PRC, and the acquisition would enable the Group to provide
regular and recurring in-house training for its sales representatives in
the Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business to enhance their
customer service techniques so that it would benefit the turnover of
the Group in the long term; (2) in the event the target net profit for the
period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017 of HK$16,000,000
cannot be achieved, the consideration for the acquisition is subject to
downward adjustment depending on the actual performance of the AP
Holdings for the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017 to
the extent that the consideration shall be nil if the AP Holdings a net loss
for the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017. As such, the
risk and return of the acquisition is further protected in this regard; and
(8) a benchmark price-to-earnings ratio of 5 times, which is lower than
the lowest price-to-earnings ratio of the comparables, is adopted for the
determination of the consideration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Completion of the acquisition took place on 1 July 2016. On 1 July
2016, the Company allotted and issued 40,800,000 Consideration
Shares, credited as fully paid, to Weluck Development Limited 7k 8% %
BB MR AT], awholy-owned subsidiary of the AP Vendor, at an issue
price of HK$0.50 per Consideration Share pursuant to the general
mandate granted at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 23 May 2016. Details of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 June 2016, 23 June 2016 and 1 July 2016
and note 42(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

Issuance of subscription shares

On 13 June 2016, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
(“Subscription Agreement”) with Weluck Development Limited 7k &
BERAEMBR AT

Vendor, in relation to the allotment and issue of 8,583,000 new ordinary

(“Subscriber”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the AP

shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Subscription Shares”) at a
subscription price of HK$0.50 per Subscription Share to the Subscriber
(“Subscription”).

The completion of the Subscription was subject to the fulfilment of the
following conditions:

(1)  the Stock Exchange granting the approval for the listing of, and
permission to deal in, the Subscription Shares;

(2)  the compliance with the applicable requirements under the GEM
Listing Rules by the Company in respect of the Subscription;

(8)  the compliance with the applicable requirements under the
Listing Rules by Universe in respect of the Subscription; and

(4)  the AP Group SP Agreement having become unconditional (other
than the condition relating to the Subscription Agreement having
become unconditional).

The above conditions precedent were not capable of being waived by
either the Company or the Subscriber.
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The Subscription represents a good opportunity to enhance our
Shareholders’ base to introduce Universe and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Universe Group”) as the Shareholder
and raise additional funds at a reasonable cost for itself. Taking into
account the allotment and issue of the Consideration Shares to the
Universe Group upon completion, the Universe Group would become
a substantial Shareholder. The Directors noted the intention of the
Universe Group to re-focus its business operations, leverage of
the expertise of the management in a company licensed under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) to further develop the securities brokerage and margin
financing and money lending business of the Universe Group. In view
of the business nature of the Universe Group and the Group, the
Subscription is a strategic cooperation between the Universe Group
and the Group which sets ground for future business cooperation if
opportunity arises which would be beneficial to the business strategy
and development of the Group. The aggregate nominal value of the
Subscription Shares was approximately HK$86,000. The net proceeds
from the Subscription were approximately HK$4,000,000, and on this
basis, the net issue price of each Subscription Share was approximately
HK$0.47. The issue price of the Subscription Shares at HK$0.50 per
Subscription Share represented a premium of approximately 11.11%
over the closing price of HK$0.45 per ordinary share of the Company
(“Share”) as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the
Subscription Agreement. Completion of the Subscription took place
on 1 July 2016. The Subscription Shares were allotted and issued
under the general mandate granted at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 23 May 2016. The net proceeds were used by
the Group as its general working capital. Details of the Subscription
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 13 June 2016, 23
June 2016 and 1 July 2016 and note 37(i) to the consolidated financial
statements in this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2017 Rights Issue

On 21 December 2016, the Board proposed a rights issue on the basis of one
rights share for every two shares (the “2017 Rights Issue”) held on the record
date at a subscription price of HK$0.52 per share (each, a “2017 Rights
Share”) which represented (i) a discount of approximately 7.1% to the closing
price of HK$0.56 per share of the Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 21 December 2016, being the date of the underwriting agreement; and (i)
a discount of approximately 4.9% to the theoretical ex-entitlement price of
approximately HK$0.547 per share of the Company, based on the closing
price of HK$0.56 per share of the Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 21 December 2016. The Company considered using the entire amount
of the net proceeds from the 2017 Rights Issue and its internal resources to
redeem part the Aug 2015 Notes and the 10% per annum notes (“10% Loan
Notes”) in the principal amount of HK$19,000,000 in full so as to generally
reduce the indebtedness of the Group and save the related interest expenses.
The Board also considered that the 2017 Rights Issue provides an opportunity
for the Shareholders to maintain their proportionate interests in the Company.

Upon the completion of the 2017 Rights Issue on 15 February 2017,
148,149,412 ordinary shares of the Company were issued. The aggregate
nominal value of the 2017 Rights Shares was HK$1,481,494.12. The net
proceeds from the Rights Issue were approximately HK$73,000,000, and on
this basis, the net issue price of each 2017 Rights Share was approximately
HK$0.49. Details of the 2017 Rights Issue are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 21 December 2016, 10 January 2017, 17 January
2017, 14 February 2017 and 17 February 2017 and the Company’s
prospectus dated 20 January 2017 and note 46(a) to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.

With all the net proceeds of the 2017 Rights Issue and internal resources of
the Group, the Company early redeemed the 10% Loan Notes in full and the
Aug 2015 Notes partially on 21 March 2017 in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$71,000,000 together with all interests accrued and outstanding up to
21 March 2017, being a total sum of HK$74,062,260.27. It was expected
that the Company would save interest expenses by redeeming the loan notes
ahead of their maturity. Details of early redemption of notes are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 20 February 2017.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2016, the total assets of the Group were
approximately HK$1,469,512,000 (as at 31 December 2015: approximately
HK$1,434,324,000), whereas the total liabilities were approximately
HK$387,062,000 (as at 31 December 2015: approximately HK$380,503,000).
The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total liabilities over total assets,
was approximately 26.3% (as at 31 December 2015: approximately 26.5%).
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Final dividend
The Directors do not recommend to pay final dividend for the Year (2015: Nil).
Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s pledged bank deposits of
approximately US$80,000, HK$1,012,000 and HK$1,004,000 (in aggregate,
approximately HK$2,638,000 (as at 31 December 2015: approximately
HK$2,633,000) represented deposits pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities to the extent of HK$2,500,000 (as at 31 December 2015:
HK$2,500,000) granted to the Group. The deposits are in United States
dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Hong Kong dollars with terms of 6 months,
6 months and 1 month respectively and at a fixed interest rate of 0.05% per
annum, 0.3% per annum and 0.3% per annum respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had undrawn banking facilities of
approximately HK$2,902,000 (as at 31 December 2015: approximately
HK$2,359,000).

As at 31 December 2016, listed securities held by the Group with a total
carrying amount of approximately HK$187,211,000 (as at 31 December 2015:
approximately HK$429,793,000) were charged in favour of a brokerage firm as
collateral for the Group’s liabilities in respect of its margin trading account. As
at 31 December 2016, the Group did not use the credit limit.

RISK FACTORS
Foreign exchange exposure

During the Year, the business activities of the Group were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

United States dollars are the main currency transacted by the Group. Since
Hong Kong dollars remain pegged to the United States dollars within a
defined range, the Group is not exposed to any significant foreign exchange
risk against the United States dollars and has not entered into any foreign
exchange contract as hedging measures. The Directors did not consider
the Group was significantly exposed to any foreign currency exchange risk.
Notwithstanding the above, the Group manages its foreign currency risk
against other currencies by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates and may use hedging derivative, such as foreign currency
forward contract, to manage its foreign currency risk as appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial risk

The Group’s AFS Financial Assets and FVTPL Financial Assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to equity security price risk due to the fluctuation of fair value of AFS
Financial Assets and FVTPL Financial Assets. The Directors regularly review
the exposure to the equity security price risk on the AFS Financial Assets and
FVTPL Financial Assets. Details of the Group’s financial risk management are
set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Operation risk

The Group is exposed to the operational risks in relation to each business
division of the Group. To manage the operational risk, the management
of each business division is responsible for monitoring the operation and
assessing the operational risks of their respective business divisions. They
are responsible for implementing the Group’s risk management policies and
procedures and shall report any irregularities in connection with the operation
of the projects to the Directors and seek directions.

Credit risk

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors closely monitor the overall
level of credit exposure and the management is responsible for determination
of credit approvals and monitors the implementation of the collection
procedure to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Liquidity risk

The Directors have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework
to meet the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In this regard, the Directors consider
that the Group’s liquidity risk is effectively managed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury policies. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
evaluations of the financial conditions of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Directors closely monitor the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can
meet its funding requirements.

MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
Acquisition of Million Worldwide and loan

On 11 March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party in relation to the acquisition of 100% of the
issued share capital of Milion Worldwide, and a sum of HK$26,899,220
owing from Million Worldwide and its subsidiary to the vendor at the cash
consideration of HK$20,000,000. Milion Worldwide is principally engaged in
investment holding and owns the entire issued shares of Talent Vision Limited
which legally and beneficially owns a property which is currently leased to
and occupied by a retailer for merchandise of mobile phones (including
smartphones) and accessories and electronic devices and gadgets. The
Group leased the property out under the existing tenancy agreement, which
will expire in March 2018, to generate steady rental revenue. The property is
located at Shop No. G28, Ground Floor, Commercial Podium, Sincere House,
No. 83 Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Completion of the acquisition took
place on 21 March 2016. During the Year, the net profit (included the fair value
gain on investment property) contributed to the Group by Million Worldwide
and its subsidiaries was approximately HK$4,203,000. The working capital of
Million Worldwide and its subsidiaries is expected to continue to be funded
by its internal resources in 2017. Details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 11 March 2016 and 21 March 2016 and
note 42(b)(i) to the consolidated financial statement in this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Acquisition of Dragon Oriental

On 29 March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party in relation to the acquisition of additional 51%
interest in Dragon Oriental Investment Limited (‘Dragon Oriental”) at a cash
consideration of HK$17,340,000. Dragon Oriental is principally engaged in
property investment and its principal asset is a property which is currently
leased to and occupied as a clinic. The existing tenancy agreement will expire
in December 2018. The property is located at Shop F, Ground Floor, Yenfu
Mansion, Nos. 121-125, 129-135, 139 and 141, Hip Wo Street and Nos.
92-112 Shui Wo Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Completion of the acquisition
took place on 31 March 2016. Immediately after completion, Dragon
Oriental becomes an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
During the Year, the net profit (including the fair value gain on investment
property) contributed to the Group by Dragon Oriental was approximately
HK$2,184,000. The working capital of Dragon Oriental is expected to continue
to be funded by its internal resources in 2017. The Directors believed that
the increase of the Group’s interest in Dragon Oriental from 49% to 100%
through the acquisition would allow the Group to fully benefit from the rental
income generated from the existing leasing of the property and provide capital
appreciation potential to the Group. Details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 29 March 2016 and 31 March 2016 and
note 42(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial statement in this report.

Acquisition of AP Holdings

On 13 June 2016, the Group entered into the AP Group SP Agreement with
the AP Vendor in relation to the acquisition of 51% of the issued share capital
of AP Holdings, at the consideration of HK$20,400,000 (subject to downward
adjustment), which was settled by way of allotment and issue of 40,800,000
Consideration Shares, credited as fully paid, at an issue price of HK$0.50 per
Consideration Share pursuant to the general mandate granted at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 23 May 2016.

Pursuant to the AP Group SP Agreement, in the event that the audited
consolidated profit after tax of the AP Holdings attributable to owners of AP
Holdings for the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017 is less
than HK$16,000,000, the AP Vendor shall, and the guarantor shall procure the
AP Vendor to, pay to the Group (or to its order) an adjustment amount in cash
in the manner prescribed under the AP Group SP Agreement. The AP Group
is principally engaged in the provision of education and training programs in
relation to self-improvement and self enhancement in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The acquisition enabled the Group to provide regular and recurring in-
house training for its sales representatives in the Insurance and MPF Schemes
Brokerage Business to enhance their customer service techniques so that
it would benefit the turnover of the Group in the long term. Completion of
the acquisition took place on 1 July 2016. During the Year, the net profit
contributed to the Group by the AP Group was approximately HK$201,000.
The working capital of the AP Group is expected to continue to be funded
by its internal resources in 2017. Details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 13 June 2016, 23 June 2016 and 1 July
2016.
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Acquisition of Jun Yang Solar

On 19 August 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party in relation to the acquisition of approximately
30% of the issued share capital of Jun Yang Solar Power Investment
Holdings Limited &[5 X &R &EZIR AR A A (“Jun Yang Solar”) at the cash
consideration of HK$34,500,000. Jun Yang Solar and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in solar energy business with a focus on development,
construction, operation and maintenance of power station protects in the
PRC. Completion of the acquisition took place on 1 September 2016. In view
of the supportive Chinese government and the steady business development
of Jun Yang Solar and its subsidiaries, the Directors believed that the
solar market in the PRC was sustainable and the acquisition was a good
opportunity for the Group to diversify its investment portfolio. Details of the
acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 19 August
2016 and 1 September 2016.

On 1 November 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
in relation to the acquisition of additional approximately 5% of the issued share
capital of Jun Yang Solar at the cash consideration of HK$5,790,000 (“5%
Acquisition”). Completion of the 5% Acquisition took place upon signing of
the sale and purchase agreement on 1 November 2016. Immediately after
completion of the 5% Acquisition, the Group held approximately 35% of the
issued share capital of Jun Yang Solar. The 5% Acquisition, standing alone,
did not constitute a notifiable transaction for the Company under Chapter 19
of the GEM Listing Rules. The 5% Acquisition, together with the acquisition of
approximately 30% of the issued share capital of Jun Yang Solar by the Group
in accordance with the sale and purchase agreement dated 19 August 2016,
on an aggregate basis, constituted a discloseable transaction for the Company
and did not constitute a major transaction for the Company under Chapter 19
of the GEM Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Group recorded the share of loss of associate from the
investment in Jun Yang Solar of approximately HK$1,351,000. The working
capital of Jun Yang Solar was in general funded by loan from its shareholders.
On 24 February 2017, the Group signed a shareholder loan agreement in
relation to the provision of a loan in the principal amount of US$3,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,230,000) to Jun Yang Solar. The loan is
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The loan is in
proportion to the Group’s shareholding in Jun Yang Solar when compared with
the loans made by the other shareholders of Jun Yang Solar, Details of the loan
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 24 February 2017 and
note 46(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Disposal of investment in return for listed shares

On 27 September 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party in relation to the disposal of
16,538,000 ordinary shares of China Parenting (stock code: 8361) to Finsoft
(stock code: 8018) at the consideration of HK$35,498,817, which was
satisfied by the allotment and issuance of 186,492,340 new ordinary shares of
Finsoft, credited as fully paid, at the issue price of approximately HK$0.19035
per share. The China Parenting Group is an online platform focusing on CBM
market in the PRC and is mainly engaged in the provision of marketing and
promotional service and e-commerce business. The Finsoft Group is principally
engaged in the provision of financial trading software solutions, provision of
other internet financial platforms, provision of referral services, money lending
business, assets investments, provision of corporate finance advisory services
and provision of property management and property agency services in Hong
Kong. The Directors considered that the disposal of shares of China Parenting
represented an opportunity of the Group to realise part of its investment
in China Parenting at a reasonable price and allocate resources for the
development of other business of the Group.

Completion of the disposal took place on 16 December 2016. Upon
completion, the Company held approximately 17.75% of the enlarged issued
share capital of Finsoft and thus became a substantial shareholder of Finsoft.
The Group may form strategic alliance with the Finsoft Group, particularly in
the field of the provision of corporate management solutions and I.T. contract
services, and create synergy effects to the business of the Group. Details
of the transaction are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 27
September 2016, 30 September 2016, 28 October 2016 and 16 December
2016 and the Company’s circular dated 24 November 2016.

Material acquisitions and disposals

Apart from those disclosed in the sections headed “Business Review —
Securities Investment Business” and “Material Transactions” above, the Group
had no material acquisition or disposal during the Year.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 89 employees (as at
31 December 2015: 88 employees) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group’s
remuneration policy is based on principle of equality, motivating, performance-
oriented and market-competitiveness, and in accordance with the statutory
requirements of the respective jurisdictions where the employees are engaged.
Remuneration packages are normally reviewed on an annual basis. Apart from
salary payments, other staff benefits including provident fund contributions,
medical insurance coverage and performance-related bonuses, a share option
scheme is also established to reward and motivate the employees of the
Group. Further details of the Share Option Scheme of the Company are set
out in the section headed “Report of the Directors — Share Option Scheme” in
this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFN®R DM

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (as at 31 December 2015: Nil).

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the capital commitments contracted but not
provided for development costs for intangible assets and capital contribution
to a joint venture were approximately HK$37,424,000 (as at 31 December
2015: for development costs for intangible assets of approximately
HK$26,586,000). Please refer to note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements in this report for details.

OUTLOOK

Subsequent to the completion of the acquisition of additional 14.677% of
the issued share capital of Boom Max on 31 December 2015, the Group
has further expanded its business in software market by holding 65.177% of
the issued share capital of Boom Max, and has increased its sharing in the
financial results of the Boom Max Group. Despite the keen market competition
of anti-virus software, the Group believes that the Software Business will
continue to be the principal source of income of the Group. In the face of
ever-evolving security threats, new virus, malware and spyware, the Group will
keep on enhancing its products’ features so as to respond to changes. Going
forward, the Group aims at offering premium quality products to its customers
and will closely monitor the market response and remix the product portfolio to
suit the market needs.

Riding on its intrinsic strength and under the leadership of a group of visionary
and experienced management team, the Group is also confident in expanding
scope of operation and investments whenever appropriate opportunities arise.
The Group will continue to build on and reinforce its advantages by identifying
potential investment opportunities in the market to grasp any potential
business opportunities. Moreover, the Group will carefully review business
appropriateness and efficiency in all segments, allocating its resources in a
flexible manner to businesses with sustainable development potential. The
Board believes that the Group’s diversified business strategies will boost
the financial performance and expand its market share, generating positive
impacts and profit to increase the Shareholders’ value in the future.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board would like to present this Corporate Governance Report for the
Year.

The Company is committed to maintaining corporate governance of high
standard and quality procedures. The Company has put in place governance
practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and quality of
disclosure, transparency and accountability to shareholders for the sake
of maximising returns to shareholders. The Directors acknowledge in the
Corporate Governance Report their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has reviewed the
Group’s corporate governance practices and is satisfied that the Company
has complied with the code provisions under the Corporate Governance Code
set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the “CG Code”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises six members, three executive Directors, namely
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (Chairman of the Board), Ms. Hung Yvonne
(Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Lee Kin Fai, and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Professor Lee T.S., Ms. Xiao Yiming and Professor
Chui Tsan Kit. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Company.

The composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s business and for the
exercise of independent decisions. The Company has three independent non-
executive Directors representing half of the Board. They are professionals in
different areas and provide independent opinions based on their expertise.

There is no relationship among members of the Board and the biographies
of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

BOARD PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Formal notice of at least 14 days will be given in respect of a regular
meeting. For special Board meeting, reasonable notice will be given.
Directors participated, either in person or through other electronic means of

communication, in the Board meetings.
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The Directors meet regularly at least 4 times a year and participate in person
or through other means of communication. All notices of Board meetings were
given to all Directors, who were given an opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for discussion. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of
major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. The Directors can also seek independent professional advice
in performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary. Minutes of
each Board meeting are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
request by any Director.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of the legal
action against the Directors.

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the Board
and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should make
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to policy,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Attendance of Directors at Meetings

During the Year, 7 Board meetings had been held for reviewing business
performance, considering and approving the overall strategies and policies
of the Company and other business matters. The attendance record of each
current and former Director at the Board and Board Committee meetings and
the general meetings of the Company held during the Year is set out in the
table below:

PAN

TERERRE

EEHFEERCE

RAFEAR  KBT7TREZTG SR AR AR A EBR
HoWERBRERRN A RBERE RRRALMASTE
He TR SRERNEEFREAFEALRTESS
MNEFERERERANARFRRAGHCE:

Remuneration Audit  Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Note Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Eze ¥MZEE ENZEE REZE8

WizE L L g# -t REAE
Executive Directors HTER
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni BRELE 77 i i NER 3/3
Ms. Hung Yvonne M+ 1 11 TEA TER TEA TER
Mr. Lee Kin Fai FREEAE 2 11 TEA TEA TEA TEA
Mr. Xue Qiushi BRELE 3 5/6 NEfA TER TEA 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ B FHTES
Ms. Xiao Yiming ERal-Y N 77 1/ 4/4 11 3/3
Professor Chui Tsan Kit REHEHER /7 1/ 4/4 11 3/3
Professor Lee TS. FREHR 7 1 4/4 il 3/3
Notes: BT
1. Ms. Hung Yvonne was appointed as an executive Director and the chief executive 1. HEEAmLZTE T "F+-A+t=-AREZEAEERA

officer of the Company with effect from 13 December 2016. RIMITE = RITBURE -
2. Mr. Lee Kin Fai was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 13 2. FRESEE S ANFT AT =ZBREZE AT
December 2016. =

3. Mr. Xue Qiushi resigned as an executive Director and the chief executive officer of 3. BEMNEEAEBE T —"F+_A+=-ABHIEARRARH

the Company with effect from 13 December 2016.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board has annually held the meeting with
the independent non-executive Director(s) without the presence of executive
Directors during the Year.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separately held by
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni and Ms. Hung Yvonne (or Mr. Xue Qiushi prior
to his resignation on 13 December 2016) respectively. The Chairman provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of
the Board whereas the Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s
business development and daily management and operations generally.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Year, the Board complied at all times with the requirement of the
GEM Listing Rules that at least three independent non-executive Directors
sit in the Board (half of the Board members) and at least one of them
has appropriate professional accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, the Company in its best knowledge
considers all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures
for the appointment of new Directors.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Bye-laws. According to the
Company’s Bye-laws, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment, and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the Board shall be subject to re-election by shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting after appointment. Other relevant Bye-
law states that one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation at every annual general meeting. A
retired Director shall be eligible for re-election. All Directors should retire by
rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term and subject to re-election. The independent non-
executive Directors are appointed for a specific term: Professor Chui Tsan
Kit is appointed and Ms. Xiao Yiming is re-appointed for a term of 2 years
commencing from 23 April 2015 and 2 January 2016 respectively whereas
Professor Lee T.S. is appointed for a term of 3 years commencing from 1
September 2015. All of them are subject to retirement by rotation once every
three years.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Professor Chui
Tsan Kit, Ms. Hung Yvonne, Mr. Lee Kin Fai and Professor Lee T.S. shall retire
pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws as stated in the foregoing paragraph. All
the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The Board and the
Nomination Committee recommended their re-appointment. The Company’s
circular, to be sent to the Shareholders, contains detailed information of the
above Directors as required by the GEM Listing Rules.
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Continuous professional development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company. Every newly appointed
Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Besides, Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally
facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading materials on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the current and former
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of a Director of a listed company in compliance with the
CG Code on continuous professional development during the Year.
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Attending or participating in
seminars/workshops, or
reading materials relevant to
roles, functions, and duties of

Directors a director of a listed company
HESSHEBLTAR
BEEAG BERBENHATE
2= IS HBEEERER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni BRI E v/
Ms. Hung Yvonne (Note 1) ezt (KisE) v
Mr. Lee Kin Fai (Note 1) FREBEA (1) v
Mr. Xue Qiushi (Note 2) EETRE S (BisE2) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BAKBTES
Ms. Xiao Yiming BBzt v
Professor Chui Tsan Kit BIRGEHIR 4
Professor Lee T.S. TREHE v/
Notes: M
1. Ms. Hung Yvonne and Mr. Lee Kin Fai were both appointed on 13 December 1. HEmZ T RFRELAEYNR_TE—"F+=A+=H
2016. BEE-

2. Mr. Xue Qiushi resigned on 13 December 2016.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is Mr. Lau Siu Cheong. The Company Secretary
assists the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board so that
Board policy and procedures are followed. He has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge during the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The following statements, which set out the responsibility of Directors in
relation to the financial statements, should be read in conjunction with, but
distinguished from, the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 75 to 79 which
acknowledges the reporting responsibility of the Group’s auditor.

Annual report and accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the annual
report and financial statements of the Company for the Year to ensure that
these financial statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance with
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Accounting policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the Group
applies appropriate accounting policies that are consistently adopted
and makes judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting
records which disclose the financial position of the Group upon which financial
statements of the Group could be prepared in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Safeguarding assets
The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to

safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities within the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, auditor’s remuneration for audit services was HK$1,500,000
(2015: HK$1,400,000) and non-audit services (including but not limited to
professional advice on financial activities, taxation, acquisition and disposal) for
the Year was approximately HK$851,300 (2015: HK$1,393,000).

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems

The Group’s risk governance structure and the main responsibilities of each
level of the structure are summarised below:

Board

. evaluates and determines the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensures the
implementation of an effective risk management and internal control
systems; and

. oversees the management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

Management

. designs, implements and monitors the risk management and internal
control systems;

. identifies and assesses the risks which threaten the achievement of the
strategic objectives;

o reviews the risk areas and risk level;

o advises on matters raised by employees and the Company;

o coordinates and promotes risk management by ensuring that risk
and activities processes are operated efficiently and effectively and in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules; and

o reports periodically to the Board.
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Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant Risks
The Group’s risk assessment processes are summarised as follows:
Risk Identification

. Identifies the risks through discussion with the management and
directors of subsidiaries of the Company. Risk identification and
management questionnaire are used to document the risks identified by
the management and directors of subsidiaries of the Company.

Risk Assessment

o Determines the existing controls and analyses risks in terms of
consequence and likelihood in the context of those controls. The
analysis considers the range of potential consequences and how likely
those consequences are to occur. Consequences and likelihood are
combined to produce an estimated level of risk.

Risk Response

. Categorises the risks into low risk, medium risk and high risk;

. Determines the strategy to handle the risk; and

o Develops the risk register and internal control audit plan and determines

the frequency of review and control testing on key controls.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

° on-going communication of monitoring results to the Board which
enables it to assess control of the Group and the effectiveness of risk

management during the Year, including:

o risk questionnaires completed by the management, risk register
and internal control audit plan; and

. fact finding report with recommendations on the review and
testing of internal controls on certain operating cycles and areas.
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Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by the management of the
Company, including analysing and appraising the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. For the
enhancement of the quality of the internal audit, the Company has engaged an
external consultant to execute a significant scope of internal audit function to:

o perform the risk assessment based on management evaluation on
identified area and report the findings and recommendations to the
management; and

o conduct various agreed upon reviews on material controls and perform
testing of internal controls on certain operating cycles and areas in
accordance with the Company’s internal control audit plan.

During the Year, the Board reviewed the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems which cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. Such review is
conducted annually. The Board considered that the systems were effective and
adequate for the Year.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company has adopted its information disclosure policy and related
procedures with regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. The policy stipulates the
responsibilities of the Group, key disclosure requirements under Part XIVA of
the SFO and rules 17.10, 17.11 and 17.11A of the GEM Listing Rules, control
measures and reporting procedures of handling confidential information and
monitoring information disclosure. The Group adopts an upward reporting
approach within the Group for identifying and escalating any potential inside
information to the Board. The policy is reviewed annually and all reasonable
measures have to be taken from time to time to ensure proper safeguards
to prevent any breach of disclosure requirements and to maintain strict
confidentiality of information.

BOARD COMMITTEES/FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website. Copies of minutes of all meetings and
resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are
circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to report
back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where appropriate.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Professor Lee T.S. (Chairman), Ms. Xiao Yiming and
Professor Chui Tsan Kit.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on the remuneration policy and structure of, and
determining the specific remuneration packages of, all Directors and senior
management; and establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration (i.e. the model
described in the Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code is adopted).

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has performed the following
major tasks:

o reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company;

o determined the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management; and

° assessed performance of executive Directors.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in notes 16 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

In addition, pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of
the member of the current senior management of the Group by band for the
Year is set out below:
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Professor Chui Tsan Kit (Chairman), Ms. Xiao Yiming and Professor
Lee T.S. Professor Chui Tsan Kit possesses the appropriate accounting and
financial management expertise as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the followings:

(@) To monitor the control procedures and the disclosures on the reporting
of the Company’s financial statements, and to review and discuss
with external auditor any significant financial reporting standards and
guidelines applied to the financial statements.

(b)  To consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in financial reports and accounts, and give due consideration
to matters raised by the Company’s compliance officer or external
auditor.

() To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to
the work performed by them, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of auditor.

(d) To review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems.

(e)  To review Company’s arrangements to enable employees to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial results and
reports, financial reporting, compliance procedures and effectiveness of the
internal audit function of the Company, report on the Company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes and the re-appointment
of external auditor and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties. The Audit Committee also met the external auditor
twice without the presence of the executive Directors. Besides, there is no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the re-
appointment of external auditor.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive

Directors, namely Ms. Xiao Yiming (Chairman), Professor Chui Tsan Kit and
Professor Lee T.S.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and recommending any changes to the Board;
identifying qualified and suitable individuals to become Board members
and selecting and making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors in particular, the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take
into account various aspects set out in the Board diversity policy adopted
by the Company on 30 August 2013 (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The
measurable objectives set for implementing the policy are that selection of
candidates for appointment as a Director will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skill, knowledge and length of
services. The ultimate decision will be based on merits and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
considers an appropriate balance of diversity perspective of the Board is
maintained.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the Nomination
Committee may make reference to the directors’ nomination procedures
adopted by the Company on 31 December 2015 (the “Director Nomination
Procedure”) to certain criteria such as the Company’s needs, the integrity,
experience, skills and professional knowledge of the candidate and the
amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/
her duties and responsibilities, as well as the objective of the Board Diversity
Policy, and will make recommendation to the Board. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process when
necessary.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has performed the following major
tasks:

. made recommendation to the Board on the appointment of Ms. Hung
Yvonne and Mr. Lee Kin Fai as the Directors after having considered
their respective working experiences, qualifications and backgrounds;

o reviewed the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives and
the Board Diversity Policy to ensure the appropriateness in determining
the optimum composition of the Board;

o reviewed the Director Nomination Procedures to ensure the
appropriateness in selecting and recommending candidates for

directorship; and

. assessed the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors.
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An analysis of the Board’s current composition is set out in the following chart:

No. of Directors
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the Code
Provision D.3.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
GEM Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has relied on Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
as the required standard of dealings (the “Required Standard of Dealing”)
in respect to any dealings in the Company’s securities by the Company’s
Directors and relevant employees. Specific enquiries have been made to all
Directors and they all confirmed they had complied with the Required Standard
of Dealings during the Year. No incident of non-compliance of the Required
Standard of Dealings by the relevant employees was noted by the Company
during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’ meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. According to the GEM Listing
Rules, all resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by
poll and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company after each Shareholders’ mesting.

Set out below are the procedures for members to make proposals at general
meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as Directors.

Procedures for members to make proposals at general meeting
other than a proposal of a person for election as Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and regulation.

1. The Company holds an annual general meeting every year, and may
hold a general meeting known as a special general meeting whenever
necessary.

2. Member(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth of the

total voting rights of all members having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (i) not less than 100 members, can submit a written request
stating the resolution intended to be moved at the annual general
meeting; or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at a particular general meeting.

3. The written request/statements must be signed by the member(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its
principal office at Room 1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary
of the Company, not less than six weeks before the annual general
meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and
not less than one week before the general meeting in the case of any
other requisition.
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4. If the written request is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board (j) to include the resolution in the agenda for the annual general
meeting; or (i) to circulate the statement for the general meeting,
provided that the member(s) concerned have deposited a sum of
money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and/
or circulating the statement submitted by the member(s) concerned
in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered
members. On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the member(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the member(s) concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution
will not be included in the agenda for the annual general meeting; or the
statement will not be circulated for the general meeting.

The following are the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director of the Company

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and regulation.

If a member, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s), wishes to propose a
person (other than the member himself/herself) for election as a Director at that
meeting, he/she can deposit a written notice at the Company’s principal office
at Room 1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

In order for the Company to inform all members of that proposal, the written
notice must state the full name of the person proposed for election as a
Director, his/her biographical details as required by rule 17.50(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, and be signed by the member concerned and that person
indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

The period for lodgment of such a written notice will commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the notice
is received less than fifteen (15) business days prior to that general meeting,
the Company will need to consider adjournment of the general meeting in
order to(i) assess the suitability of the proposed candidate; and (i) publish an
announcement or circulate a supplementary circular in relation to the proposal
to the members at least fourteen (14) clear days and not less than ten (10)
business days prior to the general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director are available on the Company’s website.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and regulation.

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal office at Room
1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after
the deposit of such requisition. If the Board does not within twenty-one (21)
days from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal office. For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry(as the case may be) to the Company’s principal office and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings
of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company for communication with its
shareholders. Such policy aims at providing the shareholders and potential
investors with ready and timely access to balanced and understandable
information of the Company. Such policy will be reviewed by the Company
regularly to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing
regulatory and other requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining on
ongoing dialogue with its shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports,
quarterly reports, notices of meetings, listing documents and circulars
are issued in printed form and are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkex.com.hk and the Company’s website at
www.geth.com.hk in a timely and consistent manner as required by the
GEM Listing Rules;

(ii) corporate information and the memorandum of continuance and Bye-
laws of the Company are made available on the Company’s website;

(i) periodic announcements are made through the Stock Exchange and
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company;

(iv)  annual general meeting and special general meetings provide a forum
for the shareholders to make comments and exchange views with the
Directors and senior management; and

(V) the Company’s share registrar serves the shareholders in respect

of share registration, dividend payment, change of shareholders’
particulars and related matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
Year.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (“Mr. Kuang”), aged 51, was appointed as
an executive Director, the compliance officer, the authorised representative
and the chairman of the Company since June 2014. He obtained a Bachelor
Degree of Economics from LA Trob University in Australia and is a member of
the CPA Australia. He was appointed as a director of corporate development
of the Company from October 2012 to June 2014 and is also the directors
of some of the subsidiaries within the Group including but not limited to Jade
Fore Group Limited which holds 65.177% of the issued share capital of Boom
Max International Limited, Lucky Famous Limited and Citi Profit Holdings
Limited. Mr. Kuang has over 20 years of experience in investor relations and
equity capital markets. In accordance with the letter of appointment entered
into between the Company and Mr. Kuang, Mr. Kuang would serve as an
executive Director for an initial term of three years commencing on 9 June
2014 and is subject to retirement from office and re-election in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Ms. Hung Yvonne (“Ms. Hung”), aged 47, has been appointed as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company since
December 2016. She has more than 10 years of experience in marketing.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Hung has taken up various marketing positions
in education, entertainment and event management industry. She was a
marketing director of Delon International Film Limited, a company engaged in
firm trading and distribution business, from 2009 to 2015.

Ms. Hung is currently an executive Director of China Candy Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 8182), whose shares are listed on GEM. In accordance with the
letter of appointment entered into between the Company and Ms. Hung, Ms.
Hung would serve as an executive Director and the chief executive officer of
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing on 13 December
2016 and is subject to retirement from office and re-election in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Mr. Lee Kin Fai (“Mr. Lee”), aged 44, has been appointed as an executive
Director since December 2016. He obtained a Master’'s Degree in business
administration from the Manchester Business School of The University of
Manchester in the United Kingdom in 2007. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee is currently
the company secretary of DX.com Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8086),
whose shares are listed on GEM. Mr. Lee has been an independent non-
executive director of China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (Stock
Code: 8120) since May 2013, whose shares are listed on GEM. Mr. Lee was
an independent non-executive director of China Smartpay Group Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8325) from March 2011 to May 2014 and First Credit
Finance Group Limited (Stock Code: 8215) from June 2013 to July 2016,
shares of which are listed on GEM. Mr. Lee is also a director of Wafer Systems
(Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, and the company
secretary of a number of the subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lee was a director
of corporate finance of the Company from 1 July 2016 to 13 December 2016.
Mr. Lee would serve as an executive Director of the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing on 13 December 2016 and is subject to retirement
from office and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Chui Tsan Kit (“Professor Chui”), aged 48, joined the Company
since April 2015. Professor Chui obtained a Postgraduate Diploma in Finance
(with Distinction) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master of
Business Administration Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
a Master of Science Degree in Engineering (Electronic Commerce) from
The University of Hong Kong, a Master of Science Degree in Investment
Management from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
and a Master of Laws Degree in Chinese Business Law from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is also a Certified Financial Consultant of
The Institute of Financial Consultants and a Chartered Wealth Manager of
the International Academy of Financial Management. He was an honorary
assistant professor of the Department of Computer Science, Faculty of
Engineering at The University of Hong Kong and an adjunct associate
professor of the Department of Marketing, Faculty of Business Administration
at The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Professor Chui was the director of
Investment Services of ICBC International Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (Stock Code:
1398) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from
January 2010 to December 2010. Professor Chui was the Head of Warrant
Marketing of Bank of China (HK) Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOC Hong
Kong (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 2388) whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange from October 2007 to February 2009.
He was also the Head of Wealth Management of China Galaxy International
Financial Holdings Company Limited and the Chief Executive Officer of China
Galaxy International Wealth Management (Hong Kong) Co., Limited, both
being wholly-owned subsidiaries of China Galaxy Securities Co., Ltd. whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
6881) from October 2012 to May 2014. From July 2005 to September 2007,
Professor Chui was also the Associate Director of Retail Operations and
the Director of Investment Education of Sun Hung Kai Financial Limited, a
subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (Stock Code: 86) whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Professor Chui is currently
the Chief Strategic Officer of Zhongtai Financial International Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Zhongtai Securities Co., Ltd. (State-owned securities
firm in China), and the Managing Director of Zhongtai International Wealth
Management Ltd. He is also an independent non-executive director of GR
Properties Limited (stock code: 108), shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. In accordance with the letter of appointment
entered into between the Company and Professor Chui, Professor Chui
would serve as an independent non-executive Director for a term of two years
commencing from 23 April 2015 and is subject to retirement from office and
re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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Professor Lee T.S., alias, Lee Tien-sheng (“Professor. Lee”), aged
68, joined the Company since September 2015. Professor Lee obtained a
Bachelor of Science Degree in Electronic Engineering and a Master of Science
Degree in Management Science from The Chiao-Tung University, Taiwan, a
Master of Business Administration Degree and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree
in Operations Management from The University of Missouri-Columbia, the
United States of America. He was the Chairman and Associate Professor
of Management at The University of Utah, the United States of America, a
Senior Lecturer, Professor and the Chairman of the Department of Decision
Sciences & Managerial Economics at The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a Professor and the Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration
at The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was the Vice-President
(Academic & Research), Professor and Programme Director and the Head
of the Department of Supply Chain and Information Management at The
Hang Seng Management College, Hong Kong. He is currently the Professor
Emeritus of the Department of Supply Chain and Information Management
at The Hang Seng Management College, Hong Kong. He is also the Chair
Professor at Feng China University, Taiwan. He is certified in Production and
Inventory Management and a member of Beta Gamma Sigma. Professor
Lee is currently an independent non-executive Director of Embry Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1388) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. In accordance with the letter of appointment entered into
between the Company and Professor Lee, Professor Lee would serve as an
independent non-executive Director for a term of three years commencing
from 1 September 2015 and is subject to retirement from office and re-election
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Ms. Xiao Yiming (“Ms. Xiao”), aged 36, joined the Company since January
2014. Ms. Xiao graduated from the Harbin Institute of Technology with a
bachelor’'s degree in Business Administration in Management. Ms. Xiao
has over 10 years’ experience in the field of public relations. Ms. Xiao was
a senior manager of investor relations of a hotel chain in China. She was a
consultant of corporate communications and investor relations of a subsidiary
(“PR Company”) of a company whose shares are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange and whose subsidiaries are principally engaged in, among
others, the provision of advertising and public relations services. Ms. Xiao is
currently the chief representative of the Beijing Representative Office of the
PR Company and is responsible for offering consulting services in corporate
communications and investor relations to companies listed in Hong Kong
as well as to clients in initial public offering projects. The PR Company has
been providing consulting services in corporate communications and investor
relations to the Group since 2012. Nevertheless, Ms. Xiao is not a director,
partner or principal of the PR Company and Ms. Xiao is not or has not been
involved in providing such consulting services to the Group. In accordance
with the letter of appointment entered into between the Company and Ms.
Xiao, Ms. Xiao would serve as an independent non-executive Director for a
term of two years commencing on 2 January 2016 and is subject to retirement
from office and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Siu Cheong (“Mr. Lau”), aged 43, was appointed as () the
company secretary; (i) the authorised representative and (i) the Financial
Controller of the Company since 1 August 2013. Mr. Lau obtained a Bachelor
of Commerce (Accounting) degree from the Curtin University of Technology
in 1999. He is a member of the CPA Australia and Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lau was the finance manager of the
Company from 30 January 2010 to 31 July 2013. Mr. Lau is principally
responsible for, among others, the overall financial management, financial
planning and budgetary control of the Group and carrying out company
secretarial functions of the Group. He is also the company secretary and
the director of certain subsidiaries (including but not limited to Profit Winner
International Limited and Both Talent International Limited.) within the Group
Mr. Lau has over 20 years of experience in finance and accounting.

Mr. Xue Qiushi (“Mr. Xue”), aged 32, was an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company from 5 July 2013 to 13 December 2016. Mr.
Xue received his bachelor’s degree in computer science and technology from
the University of Electronic Science and Technology of China in July 2007. Mr.
Xue is a co-founder and a director of Apperience Corporation (“Apperience”) (a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and has served as its director
and president since March 2011. He is also the director of certain subsidiaries
(including but not limited to Boom Max International Limited and Both Talent
International Limited) within the Group.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 30 July 2001 and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability on 9 January 2014 (Bermuda time).
Its shares have been listed on GEM since 31 December 2001, and the head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong is at Room 1703, 17/F,
Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company while the Group is principally
engaged in (1) research, development and distribution of personal computer
performance software, anti-virus software, mobile phone applications and
toolbar advertisement, (2) investment in securities, (3) money lending, (4)
provision of insurance and MPF schemes brokerage services and (5) provision
of corporate management solutions and I.T. contract services during the Year.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 80 to 230 of this report.

The Directors do not recommend any payment of a final dividend for the Year
(81 December 2015: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the Year, particulars of
important events affecting the Group during the Year, an analysis of the
Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators, and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business are provided
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this report and note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group can be found throughout this report, particularly in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Risk Factors” of this report. Also, the
financial risk management of the Company can be found in the note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. These discussions form part of this report
of the Directors. In addition, discussions on the Group’s relationships with its
key stakeholders are also provided in the section headed “Relationships with
employees, suppliers and customers” of this report of the Directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the segment results and geographical locations of operations
of the Group for the Year is set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$38,000.

SHARES ISSUED DURING THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued by the Company during the Year are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements and the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review —
Shares Under General Mandate” of this report. Such disclosure forms part of
this report of the Directors.

Issuance of New

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Consideration Shares

Details of the issuance of Consideration Shares are set out in note 37(h) to
the consolidated financial statements and the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review — Issuance of New Shares under
General Mandate — Issuance of consideration shares” of this report.

Subscription Shares

Details of the issuance of Subscription Shares are set out in note 37() to
the consolidated financial statements and the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review — Issuance of New Shares under
General Mandate — Issuance of subscription shares” of this report.

Convertible Notes

On 13 August 2015, the Company entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement (as varied and supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 16 September 2015) (collectively, the “Boom Max
Acquisition Agreement”) in relation to the acquisition of additional 14.677% of
the issued share capital of Boom Max at a consideration of HK$180,416,400.
Consideration of such acquisition payable by the Company comprised (i)
a cash payment of an aggregate sum of HK$30,000,000; (i) the issue of
the convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$75,208,200
conferring rights to the holders thereof to subscribe for ordinary shares of the
Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.30 conversion share (subject
to adjustment(s)) (the “Convertible Notes”); and (i) the allotment and issue of,
credited as fully paid, a total of 250,693,999 ordinary shares of the Company
at an issue price of HK$0.30 per share.
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Convertible Notes, which shall accrue no interest, relieved the Group from a
heavy interest burden and delayed the immediate dilution of earning per share
of the owners of the Company is the reason for the Company to settle part of
the consideration by the issue of the Convertible Notes.

As at 31 December 2016, the Convertible Notes in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$75,208,000 remained outstanding which entitled the holders
thereof to subscribe for an aggregate of 50,138,799 ordinary shares of the
Company at the prevailing conversion price of HK$1.50 per conversion share
(as adjusted for the 2016 Capital Reorganisation). Details of the issuance of
Convertible Notes are set out in notes 34 and 42(e)(iv) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Options

As at 31 December 2016, the share options granted under the share option
scheme of the Company which entitled the holders thereof to subscribe
for an aggregate of 2,462,000 ordinary shares of the Company remained
outstanding. Except for the adjustment after 2016 Capital Reorganisation
becoming effective on 24 May 2016, no options were granted/exercised/
lapsed/cancelled under the share option scheme of the Company during the
Year.

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements and the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” of this report of the Directors.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no equity-linked agreements
entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisting at the end of the
Year. The disclosure in the aforementioned sections of this report forms part of
this report of the Directors.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the acquisitions/disposals of subsidiaries during the Year are set out
in notes 42(a), 42(b) and 42(c) to the consolidated financial statements and the
sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Business Review
— Money Lending Business” and “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Material Transactions” of this report.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

PEFMEHATREREREZAEELINENSAER
IEEHARNRHEEASRBNNNKETZE HAR

=

AEBBETARBRER NSO RENRA -

RZZB—XF+=ZA=+—H ' &&4#% 475,208,000
BITZHAEETRRER " ﬁt%ﬁ%?fﬁ}\%%l LAIE
ERHEBBRMDIL0OBTZRITHABRERBAQAEH
wnij%%@%(@:%—ﬁ¢k$i@¢ﬁﬂ
B) BITAIMARERNFE  HRNRE M EHREM E34
F42(e)(iv) °

BRE

RZZ—RE+=ZA=+—H0 &2 T&H%H%Eﬁiulﬁ
THEELDBRER FESBARMNAREARR

$2,462,000% & 38 % %m_;—AEkKEQK:
T-RNFRAZTHAEBBRELNARIN REAFE
W ERESTEIE T EEREERLY 1TE RS

AR EIEBAER BIRORHE - BNER
AEEWE [BRETE] —f-

A SRR 40

B E PR ERE SN AR BB ERNFE N ET LN F AR
DRER 2 ERRRHBmE - A L EHANREER
BRAEEGHREN D -

Mg LA

RAFEWRE, HERNBARKFE BREARERGE
BTSRRI EE42(a)  42(b) J42(0) &2 [ E TR B RTam o4 —
EBMBE-EEEB I REREEIREAM-—ERR
C I E

N
v

KRR T —
& BRERE

RETZA=T—HONEENB AR
ISR M 24 -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 84 to 85 of this report and note 38(b) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the reserves available for distribution to owners of
the Company were approximately HK$539,329,000 (2015: HK$553,280,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws,
or the laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to shareholders of the Company.

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO DIRECTOR(S)

Except for the director’s fee payable, there is no amount due to a Director nor
loans from a Director as at 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes during the
Year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and
the sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Material
Transactions — Acquisition of Million Worldwide and loan” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Material Transactions — Acquisition of Dragon
Oriental” of this report.

DEBENTURES ISSUED FOR THE YEAR

During the Year, the Company issued Aug 2015 Notes to an independent third
party in a principal amount of HK$2,000,000. Details of issue of notes are
set out in note 36(c) to the consolidated financial statements and the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity, financial resources
and capital structure — Issue of the Aug 2015 Notes” of this report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s total turnover for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

Turnover
- the largest customer: 16.79%
- five largest customers in aggregate: 30.54%

The percentages of Group’s purchases for the Year attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers are as follows:

Purchases

- the largest supplier: 24.57%
- five largest suppliers in aggregate: 51.68%

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any Shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) has any interest in any of the
Group'’s five largest customers or suppliers.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group are set out in notes 32 and
36 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to environment protection and sustainable
development through promoting and adopting green practices in its
business activities. Initiatives within the Group include, but not limited to,
waste reduction by double side printing and separating recyclable paper,
green procurement by avoiding single-use disposable items and using office
equipment with Energy Label issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department, and energy reduction by switching off idle electronic appliances.
The Group will continually review its green practices to integrate environmental,
health and safety management and compliance considerations into operational
processes. Promoting green awareness amongst and maintaining dialogue
with employees and business partners, the Group is determined to improve
environmental performance of the daily business operations towards
establishing a sustainable environment.

Pursuant to Rule 17.103 of the GEM Listing Rules, an Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report of the Company will be published within three
months after the publication of this report in compliance with the provisions set
out in the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the
employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform with the market
standard.

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture. The Group also
understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with its suppliers
and customers to fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
market competitiveness within the industry, the Group aims at delivering
services of constantly high standards of quality to its customers. During the
Year, there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.

According to the credit rating of different customers, the Group allows a credit
period of up to 90 days to customers. In extending and/or granting credit
terms to customers, the Group will carefully assess creditworthiness and
financial standing of each individual customer. Management will also closely
monitor all outstanding debts and review their collectability periodically.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated 28 October
2016, 23 November 2016 and 12 December 2016 and the Company’s
circular dated 24 November 2016 in relation to the disclosable transactions
and major disposals of the AFS Financial Assets. Starting from the financial
year ended 31 December 2013, the Company had included securities
investment transactions as one of its principal business activities. The
Company genuinely believed that the acquisitions and disposals of the AFS
Financial Assets were part of the Group’s ordinary and usual course of
business and were therefore exempt from compliance with any requirements
under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules. Upon having received the
enquires in relation to the securities investment transactions of the Group from
the Stock Exchange, the Company revisited the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules and considered that despite being within the ordinary course
of business of the Group, the various acquisitions and disposals of the AFS
Financial Assets (which included the various disposals of the AFS Financial
Assets during the Year) fell within the definition of “transactions” under Rule
19.04(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, and regrettably admitted that it had
breached Rules 19.34, 19.38, 19.40 and 19.41(b) of the GEM Listing Rules (to
the extent applicable). The Company has taken a series of remedial actions in
order to prevent the occurrence of similar non-compliance incidents involving
the AFS Financial Assets in the future and to comply with the requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules.
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As the Money Lending Business and Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage
Business were also the principal business activities of the Group during the
Year, the Company considered that Money Lenders Ordinance and regulations
of PIBA would have a material implication or impact on the business
operations of the Group during the Year.

During the Year, save as aforementioned, the Company was not aware of any
material non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the particulars of the Group’s important events affecting the Group
after the reporting period are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page
231 of this report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions in relation to the copyright licence agreement
and the new copyright licence agreement (all as defined below) disclosed in
note 45(a) to the consolidated financial statements fell under the definition of
“continuing connected transactions” under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Such transactions were de minimis in nature and were exempt from
the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. Related party
transactions in relation to the acquisition of additional 14.677% of the issued
share capital of Boom Max by the Group in 2015 disclosed in note 45(b) to
the consolidated financial statements fell under the definition of “connected
transaction” under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The acquisition was
completed on 31 December 2015. Related party transactions in relation to the
transactions with key management personnel (i.e. Directors’ remuneration) in
note 45(c) to the consolidated financial statements fell under the definition of
“connected transactions” and they were fully exempt under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, nor their respective close associates, had any interest in
a business, apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during
the Year.
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The changes of the Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
are:

EEERG

BE

RAEERBEARERDH ESZFHNT:

Appointed on Resigned on

RULT B ERE RELT B HIBHE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (Chairman) BRI E (F/E) 9 June 2014

—T—WFESNANB

Ms. Hung Yvonne (Chief Executive Officer) A A (7T AEEE)

Mr. Lee Kin Fai FREBEE

Mr. Xue Qiushi (Note 1) BEMELRE (HiE1)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYKBTES
Ms. Xiao Yiming B—Igxz+t
Professor Chui Tsan Kit RREHIX
Professor Lee T.S. FREHRK

13 December 2016
—E-RF+=-A+=H
13 December 2016
—E-R"F+=ZA+=H
5 July 2013
—T—=FtAAA

13 December 2016
—E-X"F+=ZA+=H

17 January 2014
—T—HWHE—A+tH
23 April 2015
—E-RFWMA=+=H
1 September 2015
—E-hENA—H

Note 1:  Mr. Xue Qiushi resigned with effect from 13 December 2016 so that he can

focus more on the Software Business.

In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election. As such, Ms. Hung Yvonne and Mr. Lee Kin Fai will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Pursuant to Bye-Law 84 of the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re—election. Professor Chui Tsan Kit and Professor Lee T.S. will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 50 to 53 of this report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 16 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively. Remuneration packages of the Directors
are determined by the Board, upon recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, with reference to their respective background, experience, duties
and responsibilities with the Group and the prevailing market conditions.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations of independence were
received from each of the existing independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and all existing independent
non- executive Directors are considered to be independent by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and the GEM Listing Rules.

The emoluments of the executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are determined by the Board and to be authorised by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting with reference to their respective
background, experience, duties and responsibilities with the Group and the
prevailing market conditions.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS

A copyright licence agreement (the “New Copyright Licence Agreement”)
was entered into among Both Talent International Limited (“Both Talent”), a
subsidiary of Boom Max, as licensee, Chengdu AOBI Information Technology
Co., Ltd. (the “PRC Company”), as licensor, and Apperience on 1 July 2014
pursuant to which the PRC Company granted to Both Talent an exclusive
licence to use the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” registered in the
name of the PRC Company in the PRC for a period from the date of the New
Copyright Licence Agreement to the later of (i) the completion of registration of
the assignment of the copyright to Both Talent in China; and (i) the completion
of registration of the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” in the name of
Both Talent in the United States as part of the Group’s internal reorganisation.
Mr. Xue Qiushi (a former executive Director and chief executive officer of the
Company who resigned on 13 December 2016) is interested through his
shareholding in the PRC Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Director (a person who at any time
in the Year was a Director) or an entity connected with such Director is or
was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance subsisting during or at the end of
the Year which is significant in relation to the business of the Group, nor did
any Director have direct or indirect interests in any assets which have been
acquired or disposed of by or leased to, or are proposed to be acquired or
disposed of by or leased to, any member of the Group at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares (“Shares”) and underlying
Shares of the Company

ESERFETBAERA QAR EMERE
HERG  HEROHESFERIAR

RZB—RFETZA=+T—RB EFRARFAEETHR
ABRARRHEEMBEER (EXREFRAERK
PIEXVER) {7 - AR D REFF  EERRIEES
KB IGPIEI2G R EFE 2 B R MAMLERRE
BIER LR R FES A6 ESETEBENRERE

NS

RERITHEARB RBZPrHERIORBINT

RARBEER ([RH]) REBRONER

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued

Number of
underlying shares

share capital
of the Company

Name of Director Capacity of the Company held (Note 1)

HARQAFEEHE BT

FriEAR AT BASHNE D

EEHE g9 HERGEE (FFzE1)

Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni Beneficial owner 1,231,000 0.42%
(“Mr. Kuang”) (Note 2)
BBZREE ([BEAE]) EmlEAA (MF5E2)

Lee Kin Fai Beneficial owner 615,500 0.21%
(“Mr. Lee”) (Note 3)

g ([FhED) Em#EAA (FMI5E3)

Notes: B 5 -

1. The total number of 296,298,825 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 1. BABSLER=ZE—AR"F+A=+—BHEETAK
December 2016 has been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage. DRI 48 $1296,298,825 % 5T & -

2. Based on the Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice — Interests in Shares of Listed 2. RIEEE TTREHEBA-BEAER_T— X "FLtAR
Corporation filed by Mr. Kuang dated 5 July 2016, these 1,231,000 underlying A2 AR LA R R 5 M % - 7% 51,231,0000% 48 B3
Shares had an exercise period from 15 July 2015 to 14 July 2018 with an exercise B IEGRITEE2. 7558 BB _S—AFtA+HAB
price of HK$2.755 per Share. E-T - NFLA+TMAEMITER-

3 Based on the Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice — Interests in Shares of Listed 3. RIEEE TTRAREBN - FTERN_T—R"F+A+H

Corporation filed by Mr. Lee dated 14 December 2016, these 615,500 underlying
Shares had an exercise period from 15 July 2015 to 14 July 2018 with an exercise
price of HK$2.755 per Share.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors nor
chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debenture of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors as referred to in
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Mr. Xue Qiushi, a former executive Director and chief executive officer of the
Company who resigned on 13 December 2016, is interested in the Convertible
Note in the principal amount of HK$43,816,465 held by Ace Source
International Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Xue Qiushi. Such
Convertible Note entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for ordinary shares
of the Company at the prevailing conversion price of HK$1.50 per conversion
share (as adjusted for the 2016 Capital Reorganisation) as at 13 December
2016 and 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests or Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures of
the Company or any Associated Corporations” and “Share Option Scheme”
in this report of the Directors, at no time during the Year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors and
the chief executive, their respective spouses or children under the age of 18
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 December 2007, the Share Option Scheme was approved by the
shareholders in an extraordinary general meeting of the Company. The
Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to either
Directors or employees of the Group in order to recognise and motivate their
contribution, to provide incentives and to help the Group in retaining its existing
employees and recruiting additional quality employees so as to provide them
with a direct economic interest in attaining the long term business objectives of
the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for the period commencing
from its adoption date and expiring at the close of business on the tenth
anniversary thereof, after such period no further options will be granted but
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
in respect of any options granted before its expiry or termination but not yet
exercised. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 24 December
2017.

EEERG

BREXEREN RZT—RF+=-A=+—H &%

UARA R EBITHA BB ER AR 7]k H AR R A

(EERFHRAEEOIEXVEE) G - RGN R E

FH A W R IERER BTSN IRIEE S KB KM

5352 \ﬁﬁmfgzii‘aﬂﬂ%Vﬂi’fﬁ?ﬁaﬂ%ﬁﬂ:ﬂﬁﬁﬁ”%
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MBS SOX B o
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R
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—NF+Z A+ =HEF)RAce Source International
Limited /5 # 78 £ % 543,816,465/ 7T 2 A 12 [ ZE & R
B #ES Ace Source International Limited 2 — & 1 2%
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AEFR=ZE—A"F+=ZA+=AK=ZE—~F+=A
=+ —BHRREREIBRMG1.508 T 2 RITHIRERE
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AEZETBAR RESBMEBIISHEAT FLAHE
EBAARBREMEMERAORD KB TER -

BT E

RIEZLF+-AZTHEA  RERRARQFREE
REREBRIESS - BREFSEEZARA AT ME
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options may be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme together
with options which may be granted under any other share option schemes for
the time being of the Company shall not exceed such number of Shares as
equals 10% of the issued shares of the Company as at the date of approval of
the Scheme or the date of a refreshment of such limit by the Shareholders at
the general meeting of the Company (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

The limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the total Shares in issue from time to time. No options may be
granted under Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company if this will result in this limit being exceeded.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive of the Company,
substantial Shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or any of their
respective associates under the Share Option Scheme must be approved
by independent non-executive directors (excluding an independent non-
executive Director who is the proposed grantee). Where any grant of
options to a substantial Shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
or an independent non-executive Director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, would result in the shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant: (a) representing
in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and (b) having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options must be approved by
the Shareholders.

Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for shares granted pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme, the eligible participant shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. Such option will be offered
for acceptance for a period of 7 days from the date on which the offer is
made. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant or grantee (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the date of grant. The exercise price for
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme may be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not be less than the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a trading
day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the ten trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iv) the nominal value of the share
on the date of grant.
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On 2 July 2015, the Company granted 2,462,000* share options (the
“Options”). Among the Options granted, (i) Option entitling the holder thereof to
subscribe for an aggregate of 1,231,000 Shares was granted to Mr. Kuang,
the chairman of the Board and an executive Director, (i) Option entitling the
holder thereof to subscribe for an aggregate of 615,500* Shares was granted
to Mr. Lee, a director of subsidiaries of the Company on the date of grant and
an executive Director appointed on 13 December 2016, (jii) Option entitling the
holder thereof to subscribe for 615,500 Shares was granted to the company
secretary and financial controller of the Company who is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

The grant of the Option to Mr. Kuang has been reviewed and approved by the
independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 23.04(1) of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Details of the movements in the Options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the Year are as follow:

EEERG

R=ZZT—RFt A=A AAREEE2,462,00047 HE K
T ([BERRAE]) - RATIR BB AR - () M T 458 AR
REEA 1,281,000 B D2 BREC R FTES SRR
BITEFBLAE (i) B T35 AETRES 615,500
BiRHBzEREERNREBPRIITEER T —F
T A+ =RAEZERBERTARRNBARZ —BE
BREAE (i) B T REAE AEFRRES 615,500 8% & 17
ZEREERTARAZARWMERMBRHE 5 A
AARETHBRAAIZES-

T BB 4 AR O BB AR B AR HR Bl ZE AR T AR BII2523.04(1)
REB I IERITE T Rt o

REBEBREA SR EOBRERAFEANZE S FEN
T

Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised lapsed asat
Exercise price 1 January during during during 31 December
Date of grant Grantees Exercise period per Share 2016 the Year the Year the Year 2016
RZB-Xx% RZB-RE
-A-H 5§ t+ZA=t-H
REBH ARA fiid ] BRITEE BRI KEERY REETHE H#E/ 5% AT
HKS
AL
2 July 2015 Mr. Kuang 15 July 2015 to 2.755" 1,231,000* - - - 1,231,000
14 July 2018
“T-RFtAZH Bis “Z-RFtATRAZ
“F-\FtA+mA
2 July 2015 Mr. Lee 15 July 2015 to 2.755" 615,500 - - - 615,500
14 July 2018
“E2-RFtAZH FhEA - tAThAEZE
—E-\ELAtEA
2 July 2015 the company secretary, financial 15 July 2015 to 2.755" 615,500* - - - 615,500
controller and a director of 14 July 2018
subsidiaries of the Company
ZE2-RFtAZH  AREAMBRAAZATWE: “E2-1FtAt+RRAZE
HRAERMBARA ES “F-\§tA+mA
Total 2,462,000 - - - 2,462,000
@t

After the adjustment for the 2016 Capital Reorganisation becoming effective on 24
May 2016.

Note: The vesting period of the Options is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.
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Details of the Options granted by the Company have been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 2 July 2015. Details of the 2016 Capital
Reorganisation are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 29
February 2016 and 23 May 2016 and the Company’s circular dated 20 April
2016.

As at 31 December 2016 and the date of this report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 24,691,582 (as
adjusted after the 2016 Capital Reorganisation becoming effective on 24 May
2016), representing approximately 8.3% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO AND
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS
INTEREST IN SECURITIES

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (other than Directors or
the chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

AARBEEMBREFEERARBIABHAZES—HF
+tAZBENAEARE T A"FRAZANFER
RARBIABAZS—A"F-_A=-+LAR=ZZ—X<F
AAZ+=AMAEURARRRASHA-ZT—/~FMNA
Z+HAE K -

RZE—AF+_A=+—BRAREAH RIEER
MERT IR 31T 2 B 15 48 B 524,691,5820% (R =F—7<
FRABEAR_ZT—ANFRA-THBERELEAER)
HERARARRARE BHZ B 3BITRAL8.3% -

REFZRBERAATHRENESZURE
ERRRHEMATRESZNERS

R-BE—R"F+_A=+—H BREZFXAQRAEET
BABIN U TALTRARBRMDKABERGS  #HE
YW E ESR AR BIRERFEF R BRI EXVEE2
K35 BB M AN B R Bt A P HE BR Sk A KRR RIR IR FE 5
MBI 336K ATENELMANER AR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares and/or the total issued
underlying share capital of
Name Capacity Shares held the Company
RN
R4 2HE BT
&,/ SHiEE IR Z B4
®E LR g4 RHOEE a1
(Note 1) Notes
(F$3E1) Bt &

Nuada Limited Other 148,149,412(1) 33.33% 3
(Note 11)
AREFRAF HAth (F7E11)
Other 148,149,412(S) 33.33%
(Note 11)
HAth (MIEE11)

Noble Dream Investments Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 148,149,412(1) 33.33% 3
(Note 11)
Noble Dream Investments Limited S EE (HIEE11)
Interest of a controlled corporation 148,149,412(S) 33.33%
(Note 11)
REEE S (F7E11)

Nuada Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporations 148,149,412(L) 33.33% 3
(Note 11)
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares and/or the total issued
underlying share capital of
Name Capacity Shares held the Company
EAE AT
Fris iR 6 2IE BT
& SiiHE B 2 4
®EER g4 R&oOEE =4
(Note 1) Notes
(H43E1) Bt 3
Nuada Holdings Limited R EEER (P3E11)
Interest of controlled corporations 148,149,412(S) 33.33%
(Note 11)
REEE (MIEE11)
Winfield Investment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporations 148,149,412(L) 33.33% 3
(Note 11)
Winfield Investment Holdings Limited T EB S (HIEE11)
Interest of controlled corporations 148,149,412(S) 33.33%
(Note 11)
AR (MFEE11)
Chan Kim Ling Interest of controlled corporations 148,149,412(L) 33.33% 3
(Note 11)
R 4l B REEE (HEE11)
Interest of controlled corporations 148,149,412(S) 33.33%
(Note 11)
REEE S (MEE11)
Astrum Capital Management Limited Other 148,149,412(L) 33.33% 4
(Note 11)
P RFBAE A ER AR AR Htb (F3E11)
Major Harvest Investments Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 148,149,412(L) 33.33% 4
(Note 11)
Major Harvest Investments Limited SR E R (MEE11)
Astrum Financial Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporations 148,149,412(L) 33.33% 4
(Note 11)
P4 EA & BT R B R A A R EEER (MIEE11)
Autumn Ocean Limited Interest of controlled corporations 148,149,412(L) 33.33% 4
(Note 11)
Autumn Ocean Limited ZiEEE R (FFzE11)
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares and/or the total issued
underlying share capital of
Name Capacity Shares held the Company
RN
PR R 40 2HERT
&,/ RiEE IR Z B4
HE LR g4 RHOEE il
(Note 1) Notes
(BtEE1) Bt &
Pan Chik Interest of controlled corporations 148,149,412(L) 33.33% 4
(Note 11)
&R REEE S (F7E11)
Liu Ming Lai Lorna Interest of spouse 148,149,412(L) 33.33% 4
(Note 11)
EHE BB (F43E11)
Fastek Investments Limited (“Fastek”) Beneficial owner 23,720,000 (L) 8.01% 5
(Note 2)
Fastek Investments Limited ( [Fastek |) BEmEEA (M$5E2)
Rosy Lane Investments Limited Interest of controlled corporations 31,912,157 (L) 10.77% 5
(“Rosy Lane”) (Note 2)
Rosy Lane Investments Limited SAE R (FFEE2)
([Rosy Lane |)
Hong Kong Education (Int’l) Investments Interest of controlled corporations 31,912,157 () 10.77% 5
Limited (Note 2)
EAHE (BBR)REEEER AR AR (M$5E2)
Access Magic Limited (“Access Magic”) Beneficial owner 35,219,879 (L) 11.89% 6
(Note 2)
Access Magic Limited ([ Access Magic | ) BEmEAA (F7E2)
Dong Yuguo (“Mr. Dong”) Interest of a controlled corporation 35,219,879 (L) 11.89% 6,7
(Note 2)
ERR([EEE]) AR (M$5E2)
Universe International Financial Holdings Interest of controlled corporations 49,383,000 (L) 16.67% 8
Limited (formerly known as Universe (Note 2)
International Holdings Limited) (“‘Universe”)
EFRERESRMERAR DR (AT A R EE S (HtEE2)
EFEBRERERLA) ([EF])
Ace Source International Limited Beneficial owner 59,342,036 (L) 20.03% 9
(“Ace Source”) (Note 2)
Ace Source International Limited EmEAA (MF5E2)

([Ace Source )
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares and/or the total issued
underlying share capital of
Name Capacity Shares held the Company
ER N
PR R 42 2HERT
&,/ RiEE IR Z B4
®EER g4 RHOEE AaLt
(Note 1) Notes
(BtEE1) Bt &
Xue Qiushi (‘Mr. Xue”) Interest of a controlled corporation 59,342,036 (L) 20.03% 9
(Note 2)
EBEIRE ([BEkED) R EERER (KtzE2)
Lung Chung Chi Beneficial owner 32,705,000 (L) 11.04%
(Note 2)
B2 EmlAA (M$5E2)
First Credit Limited Person having a security interest 50,138,799 (L) 16.92% 10
in shares (Note 2)
E—ERUBAERAR HEERMHIERESE AL (KtEE2)
First Credit Finance Group Limited Interest of controlled corporations 50,138,799 (L) 16.92% 10
(“First Credit”) (Note 2)
E—FHAeREEERAR([F—EA)) XEEE#ER (Mi5E2)

Notes:

“L” denotes a long position whilst letter “S” denotes a short position.

The total number of 296,298,825 Shares in issue as at the 31 December 2016
has been used for the calculation for the approximate percentage.

Based on the notices of disclosure of interests of Nuada Limited, Noble Dream
Investments Limited, Nuada Holdings Limited, Winfield Investment Holdings
Limited and Mr. Chan Kim Ling each filed with the Stock Exchange dated 23
December 2016, Nuada Limited was interested in these 148,149,412 Shares
in both long and short positions. The short position in respect of 148,149,412
Shares represented the number of Shares sub-underwritten out by Nuada Limited
to other sub-underwriter under the 2017 Rights Issue. Nuada Limited is wholly
owned by Noble Dream Investments Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by
Nuada Holdings Limited. Nuada Holdings Limited is owned as to 70% by Winfield
Investment Holdings Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr. Chan Kim Ling.
Accordingly, each of Noble Dream Investments Limited, Nuada Holdings Limited,
Winfield Investment Holdings Limited and Mr. Chan Kim Ling was deemed to be
interested in the Shares interested by Nuada Limited pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

G2

1.

[LIRFKFAEMISIKRAR -

FEBHNBEOSLERAR-_Z-AF+A=+—RAZ
B BT {0 42 ££296,298,8250% °

RIE /& HE AR 2 7] - Noble Dream Investments Limited *

Nuada Holdings Limited * Winfield Investment Holdings
Limited R RBIZELEEEER_E—R"F+ZAZ+=
ARXBRAZESERBAN SREGRAANZ
148,149,412k fn (478 AR )P B % - A %
£148,149, 412 MM A BB BZBEER I ARE
ZE—tFHRAEMOBEE S BHORMNOEE -

& HRE A PR A R HNoble Dream Investments Limited%
& #H  fNoble Dream Investments Limitedf! £ Nuada
Holdings Limited% & # % ° Nuada Holdings Limited
Winfield Investment Holdings Limited# 55 70%/# &5 * i
Winfield Investment Holdings Limited 8 f BR % % 4= 2 &
A - Bt IR EFHEF KB E &I XVED - Noble Dream
Investments Limited * Nuada Holdings Limited * Winfield
Investment Holdings Limited 5 B &IB& 5t 4 & B A8 AR
BRREARAAEEER ZROTEEER -
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Based on the notices of disclosure of interests of Astrum Capital Management
Limited, Major Harvest Investments Limited, Astrum Financial Holdings Limited,
Autumn Ocean Limited, Mr. Pan Chik and Ms. Liu Ming Lai Lorna each filed with
the Stock Exchange dated 23 December 2016, Astrum Capital Management
Limited was interested in these 148,149,412 Shares in long position. Astrum
Capital Management Limited is wholly owned by Major Harvest Investments
Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Astrum Financial Holdings Limited, the
shares of which are listed on GEM (Stock Code: 8333). Astrum Financial Holdings
Limited is owned as to 66% by Autumn Ocean Limited, which is wholly owned by
Mr. Pan Chik. Ms. Liu Ming Lai Lorna is the spouse of Mr. Pan Chik. Accordingly,
each of Major Harvest Investments Limited, Astrum Financial Holdings Limited,
Autumn Ocean Limited, Mr. Pan Chik and Ms. Liu Ming Lai Lorna was deemed
to be interested in the Shares interested by Astrum Capital Management Limited
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Wise Action Limited (“Wise Action”) and Fastek are wholly and beneficially
owned by Rosy Lane. Rosy Lane is wholly owned by Hong Kong Education (Int’l)
Investments Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1082)). Each of Rosy Lane and Hong Kong Education
(Int’l) Investments Limited was deemed to be interested in 8,192,157 Shares and
23,720,000 Shares held by Wise Action and Fastek respectively pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO.

Access Magic was interested in 35,219,879 Shares/underlying Shares in the
capacity of beneficial owner. Among these 35,219,879 Shares/underlying Shares,
17,285,215 of which were underlying Shares.

Access Magic is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Dong, a director of some of
the subsidiaries of the Company. As such, Mr. Dong was deemed to be interested
in all the Shares/underlying Shares held by Access Magic pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

Based on the records of the Company and to the Directors’ best knowledge,
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiries, Weluck Development
Limited held 49,383,000 Shares. Weluck Development Limited is wholly owned
by Fragrant River Entertainment Culture (Holdings) Limited (“Fragrant River”) which
is in turn wholly owned by Universe (the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1046)). Accordingly, each of Fragrant
River and Universe was deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Weluck
Development Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Ace Source was interested in 59,342,036 Shares/underlying Shares in the
capacity of beneficial owner. Among these 59,342,036 Shares/underlying
Shares, 29,210,976 of which were underlying Shares. Ace Source is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Xue. As such, Mr. Xue was deemed to be interested in
all the Shares/underlying Shares held by Ace Source. Mr. Xue is a director of Ace
Source and certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

10. Based on the corporate substantial shareholder notice filed on 18 November
2016 by First Credit Limited and First Credit respectively, First Credit Limited was
interested in 50,138,799 underlying Shares in the capacity of person having a
security interest. First Credit Limited is wholly owned by First Holdings Consortium
Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by First Credit, the shares of which are
listed on GEM (Stock Code: 8215). As such, each of First Holdings Consortium
Limited and First Credit was deemed to be interested in all the underlying Shares
held by First Credit Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

11. This percentage is calculated with reference to the total number of 444,448,237
Shares in issue upon completion of the 2017 Rights Issue.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware of any other person
(other than Directors or chief executive of the Company) who, as at 31
December 2016, had or was deemed to have interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares, which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/
she may sustain or incur in the execution of his/her duties or otherwise in
relation thereto pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company. The Company has
maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Group. The relevant provisions in the Bye-laws
of the Company and the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance are currently
in force and were in force throughout the Year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes in operation for the Year are
set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EEEHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee currently comprises the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Professor Chui Tsan Kit (the
chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Xiao Yiming and Professor Lee T.S..
The Audit Committee met on a quarterly basis during the Year. The Company’s
financial statements for the Year have been reviewed and discussed by the
Audit Committee before any disclosure and release of information.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of
this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM Hong Kong,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni
Chairman

27 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GET HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GET Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
80 to 230, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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BYZHAERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key
audit matter we identified is “Impairment assessment of goodwill” and how our

audit addressed this key audit matter is set out below:

Key Audit Matters
FERERER

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BERENG

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
2BR A B IRER W 5122 -

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had goodwill with carrying
value of approximately HK$500,459,000 arising from the acquisition
of Boom Max International Limited and its subsidiaries (‘Boom Max
Group”), GET Mdream Wealth Management Limited, e-Perfect IT
Limited and its subsidiary, Wafer Systems (Hong Kong) Limited
and AP Group Investment Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries.
Management has allocated goodwill to individual cash-generating
units (“CGUs”"). Goodwill is required to be tested for impairment on
an annual basis.

R-ZZE—XNE+-A=+—08' &BH£ERKEBoom Max
International Limited %2 H H{ /& A & ([Boom Max5k® ) - Bt 2% 5
HEERARAR TEREERATREMNBAR BB RR
(BB)BRARKEHEBRZERERABDIRENBRARELZRD
EIREE A /500,459,000 T - EREE B EE[EAR S
ERET([(ReELET]) HEEASFETRERR

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs were determined on the
basis of value in use models which require significant estimates
concerning future cash flows, and associated discount rates and
growth rates assumptions, which are based on management’s
expectations of future business performance and prospects.
In respect of the goodwill arising from Boom Max Group, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$30,000,000 was made to
reduce its carrying amount to its recoverable amount.

ReENETHAIKESBENEREFEREERER (KRTEEH
ARBESREDNEXN G ARBBAER R IEREBR) BT
ERAGETRBRNEREREHARERRB RIS 2EH -5
Boom Max(s Bl E 4 2 &M 5 @ B VB R{E E518 430,000,000/
TEABRE RSB EH AT E S5 -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEZNIEEEREZSIA

We have our in-house valuation specialists to assess the integrity of
the model used to estimate value in use and the appropriateness
of the discount rates and long-term growth rates adopted by
management.

3P 8 PO B 0 0B U B AR PR O 1 P B L M G
SR DR BE TR R R R R ) 2 B (T AP ¢

We agreed inputs to the model to supporting evidence including
the latest approved 5-year budgets and considered the accuracy of
management’s previous budgets.

BHAREXHEERRANBARE BESOEIETFRE
WEBERESLANTAEEREN -

We assessed the reasonableness of the key assumptions made by
management in preparing the cash flow forecasts in light of historical
results and the current operating environment.

EERE RAFHEEEEREEASRE
FRARELOEERRA

ik

We carried out sensitivity analysis to assess the impact of
reasonable possible changes in key assumptions and discount rates
on value in use.
BIETHRES AT A EERE RN KA RSB EE
REENTE-

We also considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in
respect of the impairment testing of goodwill.

BAAER ESEAWHEREAREELTRE-
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OTHER INFORMATION AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information
comprises all the information in GET Holdings Limited’s 2016 annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information identified above and, in doing
s0, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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BYZHBAERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Chris Wong Wo Cheung.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEIT)
2016 2015
ZE-XF —T—AHF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT FET
Turnover EE 8 263,021 324,729
Cost of sales S AR (115,808) (159,577)
Gross profit EF 147,213 165,152
Other revenue H A 9 2,320 3,581
Other gains and losses, net H e R ESE R 10 28,262 49,660
Selling and administrative expenses HE RITHRAX (85,108) (95,344)
Profit from operations BEER 92,687 123,049
Finance costs ELE- N 12 (22,562) (5,635)
Share of loss of associates FE(R B & R R &8 25 (5,550) (51)
Share of loss of a joint venture EBh—HEeErEER 26 (5) =
Profit before taxation R B4 Al 2 F 13 64,570 117,363
Income tax expense TS 14 (29,576) (23,940)
Profit for the year REEBF 34,994 93,423
Attributable to: LT ALHERN:
Owners of the Company RRBHER A 17,092 60,510
Non-controlling interests FEVERR M = 17,902 32,913
34,994 93,423
(Restated)
(g=E5)
Earnings per share (HK cents) SRER (FBW) 18
Basic HAR 6.21 42.05
Diluted e 6.21 41.38
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEEBEREMGEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE-_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BABTTEIT)
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—RHF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FExT FHET
Profit for the year REERF 34,994 93,423
Other comprehensive income: Hib 2wk 19
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: — AJE#H I E 18z #)HH -
Exchange differences on translation of P &GN B A R ISR &
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries EAMENZ 95 30
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or REEGINGBARIEN =5
loss on disposal of foreign operations RIBREM D ERAE (56) =
Fair value (loss)/gain on available-for-sale AL ESEEATEE
financial assets (B18) ks 27 (22,135) 6,473
Reclassification adjustment to profit or RAHHESREEREBEEE
loss on impairment loss on available-for-sale REBHENDHARE
financial assets 27 11,914 1,309
(10,182) 7,812
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEENE  MBRHBHE
for the year, net of tax (10,182) 7,812
Total comprehensive income for the year rEEXHERRARE 24,812 101,235
Attributable to: TR ARG
Owners of the Company KAREA A 6,890 68,330
Non-controlling interests FEVERR M A 17,922 32,905
24,812 101,235
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Sa BRI R

At 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REZ—R"F+=A=+—H

(ABTTHR)

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—REF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Ffd 5 FBT FHT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE MG 20 2,482 2,252
Investment properties REME 21 62,400 =
Goodwiill (S 22 500,459 525,878
Intangible assets EmEE 23 82,041 74,416
Investments in associates REE R RIIRE 25 38,939 20,900
Investment in a joint venture R—HEEELENERE 26 - =
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESEE 27 83,567 150,716
Contingent consideration receivable FEM K ARAE 31 18,710 =
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H A eI R IE 29 6,000 24,960
794,598 799,122
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 28 1,802 2,009
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H M YRR 29 54,348 71,637
Financial assets at fair value through BRBREAATFEEYEN
profit or loss SREE 30 523,899 323,082
Derivative financial instruments TEEBTA 34 959 21,564
Tax recoverable AT U B ¢ 18 3,918 =
Pledged bank deposits BIKIFRITIER 32 2,638 2,633
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEYD 32 87,350 214,277
674,914 635,202
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B S hEMENKE 33 44,762 53,366
Loan notes BERER 36 208,000 =
Convertible notes AR R R 34 71,789 =
Current tax liabilities EHRIEEE 36,203 40,942
360,754 94,308
Net current assets REBEESFE 314,160 540,894
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBARE 1,108,758 1,340,016
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BERETIBEEE 35(a) 24,308 5,170
Loan notes BEREER 36 2,000 212,500
Convertible notes AR R R 34 - 68,525
26,308 286,195
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,082,450 1,053,821
GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Fa BRI R

At 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REZ—R"F+=A=+—H

(LABTTEIIR)

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Ffd 5 FExT FHT

Capital and reserves B K
Share capital N 37 2,963 12,346
Reserves & 39 1,044,572 1,003,607
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  ZAQ R#EA A EH RS 1,047,535 1,015,953
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR R A 34,915 37,868
TOTAL EQUITY BWRER 1,082,450 1,053,821

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2017 and are signed on its
behalf by:

KEEER _T—+tF-A-F+tAEIHUTES

REZE:

Hung Yvonne
Director

EF

Lee Kin Fai
@8
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERBEDR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2T NE+-A=1+—HItFE
(ABTTHR)

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAAREAEL
Convertible
Share note Investment Non-
Share Share  Contributed option equity Exchange  revaluation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
TEREE b
& RiEE EHER  BRERRE RERRE EidR BiGRE 2R &t FERER fiEs
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
Tin Tin Thn FhL FhL T T Thn Tin FEn TEn
At1 January 2015 RZF-1%-A-A 19,541 9,846 964,690 - - 83 5511 (360,153 726,352 41,54 767,876
Proft for te year REEEH - . . . - - - 80510 80510 2913 T
Other comprenensive income At 2E4E - - - - - 3 7782 - 780 ¢] 7812
Total comprehensive income for the year RERZENGEE - - - - - k) 7782 60510 68,330 32,95 101,285
Arising from acauistion of RE-EHBARMES
asubsidiary (note 426) (W) - - - - - - - - - M M
Deemed disposal of partia nterest BlELE-RHEBAT
ina subsicary note 42(0) B (ko) - - - - - - - - - 310 310
Recagrition of share based payments i EROER
(note 40) i#40) - - - 28%9 - - - - 2839 - 2839
Share consolidation and capital
reduction on 24 March 2015 (note 37(a))
(17587 5 17587 5 5 5 5 5 5 = z
Performance shares issued on RZE-1%/~AEA
5 une 2015 (rote 37 BARERA (H70) 165 13000 - - - - - - 13165 . 13165
Rights ssue of shares on RZB-RERATABER
16June 2015 (note 371d) B (Wisrg) 5,862 190,685 = = = = = = 196,547 = 196,547
Plecing of shres (note 37(g) RERR (Wikarg) 31 17,608 - - - - - - 17,999 - 17,999
Equity component of TRREENERDS
convertble notes (note 34) (W) - - - = 25,555 = = = 25,55 = 25,55
Issuance of consideration shares LAIRERR (Hikag)
ote37) 1,467 5136 - - - - - - 52812 - 52812
Diidends paid to non-controling BRAEERERNRS
interests (note 24) (iakoa) - - - - - - - - - (22663 (22663
Shares issued for purchase of ShiEsrREsRARG
non-controling nteests (sEsrg)
ote 37) 2507 50640 . - - - N - 53,147 - 53147
Captta nfecton from non-controling FHERESH-EHBARY
intorests to a subsiciary i - - - - - - - - - k] ki
Purchase of non-controling interests e - - - - - - - (140,799) (140,799) (14870) (155,669)
Crenges inequty for e year REERERY 0% o 17587 28% 2555 - B i NP @56 184710
At 31 December 2015 and at 1 January 2016 R=F-2%+-A=+-BR
“E-7F-A-A 12,346 420124 982,217 2839 25,565 (45) 13,293 (440,430) 1,015,953 37,868 1,063,821
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERREDR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE—Z—

(LABTTEIIR)

Attributable to owners of the Company

NETZA=+—HIFE

ANREEARE
Convertible
Share note Investment Non-
Share Share  Contributed option equity Exchange  revaluation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
TEREE R¥
By RfEE  RAER  BRERE  ERER 0 ENGE  BfEE ZiEE &t FERER f§x
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000
TR Tin ThAn FhL FhL T T Thn Fin TEn TEn
Proft forthe year KERR - - - - = = - 1708 1702 17902 34,99
Other comprehensive income A 2ENE - - - - - 19 (10,221) - (10202 20 (10,182
Total comprehensive income for the year RER2ENGEE - - - - - 19 (10221) 17,092 6,89 17922 %812
Arising rom acauistion of a RE-EHBARMES
subsidiary (note 426) (GRIE)) = = = - - - = = = (1,704 (1,704
Disposal of a subsidiay (note 42(c)) HE-FEHBAR (i) - - - - - - - - - (761) (761)
Share consolidation and capita RZE-"FRAZTEAK
reduction on 24 May 2016 Ri&oRRAHE
(note 376) (W3710) 9877) - 9817 - - - - - - - -
Issuance of consideration shares (note 37) TR ER( (sEa7) 408 19.992 - - - - - - 20,400 - 20400
Issuance of subscriotion shares ote 37() %A (H337)) 8 4206 = = = = = = 429 = 429
Diidends paid to non-controling BRMFERERHRE
interests (note 24) (izkod) - - - - - - - - - (18410) (18410)
Changes n squiy for the year rERRAE 0383 2,198 9877 5 8 8 S = 2469 (20875 3817
At 31 December 2016 RoF-RE+ZAZt-R 2963 4 992,154 283 25,55 %) 3072 (B3 1,0475% U915 1082450
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETTAITR)
2016 2015
—B-XREF —T—hEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B = FERT FHEIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KETHEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation B 5% A 4 64,570 117,363
Adjustments for: KRR
Bank interest income ERITF B WA (11) )
Bad debts written off 2 AR 8E 29 -
Amortisation B 19,524 16,913
Depreciation e 2,094 1,299
Dividend income & B A (137) (435)
Fair value gain on investment properties KEMERNTFEBERZE (8,495) -
Fair value gain on contingent consideration EW S ARE R FEBERZE
receivable (1,117) =
Finance costs L& A AR 22,562 5,635
Fair value gain on performance shares RBEROAFEEKE - (1,166)
Fair value loss on derivative financial MEEBIAEQNTEEEE
instruments 20,605 =
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value ~ FEiB 1Bz AR FEEIIRL
through profit or loss TRIBENA T EERR (81,673) (101,901)
Share of loss of associates FEAE B & A B ES 18 5,550 51
Share of loss of a joint venture BiH—MEeErXEEE 5 -
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEH B AR/ (311) (5,302)
Reversal of commission clawback provision He bR ERE (1,585) (1,282)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEESHEEN
financial assets () /BB (849) 11,931
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value H&iBEBIBIEIARFEENEN
through profit or loss CRIEEMNERE 556 39,346
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE WEREZBN
plant and equipment (Wzs), 518 (5) 92
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AfHESmEERBEEE
financial assets 11,914 1,309
Impairment loss on goodwill e REESE 30,000 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets | EERBERSE 995 5,946
Impairment loss on trade receivables E 5 W ER OB EE 18 161 206
Equity-settled share based payments HEAEEURD AEBREMNR - 2,839
Gain on bargain purchase in respect of NEBEHZEBEN K
business combination - (35)
Other loan interest income H A& FF S WA (96) -
Operating profit before working capital changes & 18 & 4 % &) il 1) &8 &% 7 84,286 92,791
Decrease in inventories FERD 207 12,623
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5 & H th pE Y K8
receivables WA () 38,240 (16,677)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 RHEAMESFIER LD (11,897) (42,593)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BREBEARFEEYED
through profit or loss RLEEM (119,700) (260,527)
Cash used in operations REFEKTAES (8,864) (214,383)
Income tax paid BB (19,228) (38,936)
Net cash used in operation activities LB TR S F 5 (28,092) (253,319)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-Z—RETA=1—HILFE

(ABTTHIR)

2016 2015
ZE-XF —T—AF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
s FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHRSARE
ACTIVITIES
Net cash outflow from acquisition of assets BRUERBRRKEBEEN
through acquisition of subsidiaries RE R FRE 42(b)(i) & (i) (36,997) =
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries Y BE M B A 1K IR & A F 58 42(a) 1,360 279
Net cash outflow of acquisition of an associate U B8 — B & A B AR & 7 H F 38 (40,290) =
Bank interest received B UERTTAIE 11 18
Dividend received 2 AR B 137 435
Expenditure on development projects BEREBRYH (28,144) (22,398)
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IR IR 7T 7 538 hn (5) (1,009)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from disposals of HEHB A RMNIE S
subsidiaries (R RAFE 42(c) & (d) (457) 61,747
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEATHEESHEEN
financial assets Friss0A 58,571 96,172
Issue of subscription shares BITRBRAD 4,292 =
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEUHRILESMEE (12,708) (125,075)
Purchase of investment properties EEREWE - (59,081)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BERF (628) (1,152
Advance to former subsidiary of the Group B ¥ AR EE R B A R H T IE (7,545) —
Net cash used in investing activities BEEEMARES FHE (62,403) (50,064)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid BERFLE (19,298) (5,635)
Proceeds from rights issue HIRBI SR8 - 196,547
Proceeds from placing of shares fic & A% 19 B0 BT 13 508 - 17,999
Other loan raised HEMIEER - 20,000
Repayment of other loans EEEMER - (20,000)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests BRI R AR B (14,727) (22,663)
Proceeds from issuance of loan notes BITEREBRNABRIE 2,000 212,500
Repayment of loan notes EEERERE (4,500) =
Purchase of non-controlling interests EEIFERER 42(e)(iv) = (30,000)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BEES (FTA) FEE
activities & FHE (36,525) 368,748
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEIT)
2016 2015
ZE-XF —T—AHF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
s FET FET
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE HeRRESEEY GRD) &

IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FE (127,020) 65,365
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INETEREBH T E 93 6
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HHNBEESRRESEEY

AT 1 JANUARY 214,277 148,906
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+-ZA=+—HBHWEER

AT 31 DECEMBER HEZEEY 87,350 214,277
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS BERBESEEBYDW
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBEEEEY 32 87,350 214,277
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE-_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BABTTEIT)

GENERAL INFORMATION 1. 2FEH

GET Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an BHERBERAR ([RAAR)R=ZFZE—FtA
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on = tREAEREFMKLAEREBR AR
30 July 2001 and continued in Bermuda on 9 January 2014. The WHRZFE—NF—-ANBEEREFE - AARGF
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 4% == B2 i 7 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda » &8 E B & ¥ 2 A
business in Hong Kong is located at Room 1703, 17/F, Harcourt House, BEEFETITBIRERANE17i81703E ¢

39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market AARBROARBBHERSER QA ([BR
(“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Frl) BIZEAR (TBIZEMR]) £ e A AR EE T
Exchange”). The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. BIREER  HWB AR CERARASRE [AE
The principal activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company E]) K EBEBHRERE MBS REM 124
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 24 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of BIESHHRA TGS BREATET ([T
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000) unless otherwise stated. Hong BT MEBERYIR BT ([HEx]) BARRN
Kong dollars (‘HK$”) is the Company’s functional and the Group’s BEEBRAEENT|HREE -

presentation currency.

BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. MmEEE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

ZEGAMBRREREELGFMAE ([FE
BEAIAE ) BEHAEEREEYBMELE
(BB BRELEN]) RE - FEPBREER
BEEEMBREER ([BBMBHRELEL])
BRI ([FEGER]) kB %%
HEMBMRITTAMZAES LR RER
RGN E B R AED] (F6228 ) WEERE -
REBRAOEESHBRBRENRNES -

RAEBZ AR BEGHMASERM
ETEREREAIHRREREB M REETE
BHBHEER - ERERARSRAEEEHN
ERIFrsl B A et BH BT St RN ERNE
AREREY ERBMNEEMBIREA EHREH
IS -
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90

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.

Recent HKFRS developments which are required to be adopted
in annual accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify, rather than significantly
change, existing HKAS 1 requirements. The amendments clarify
various presentation issues relating to:

o Assessment of materiality versus minimum disclosure
requirements of a standard.

. Disaggregation of specific line items in the statement(s) of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the
statement of financial position. There is also new guidance
on the use of subtotals.

o Confirmation that the notes do not need to be presented in
a particular order.

. Presentation of other comprehensive income items arising
from equity-accounted associates and joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2016. These new and revised HKFRSs

include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows: Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Taxes: Recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment: Classification
and measurement of share-based
payment transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts:
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements
and HKAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures:
Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

1 January 2017

1 January 2017

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2019

To be determined

BE_E—RE+-_A=1+—HIFE
(ABTTHIR)

R REETERMBREER

(%)

b) CEEMEEREREHEREETER

BB IRE R

AEELEEFERBERMERRN -F
—NF—H— A RRH M B EE LR
R RIERT BB TS AR - AT REEA AR &
EEEZHR RGBT BBN B mELER

BETHIEE:

BRGHENFETREERER:
THMERENET

BAGHENE12RHAEN:
RAREREERARL
HARENER]

EANBREENFOFERIA

BEM KRS ERE 155
KREEPAHIZIMA

BB KRS RRESR
R BRI 2 08
PRRABURN A
HEX 2R H0EF]

EANBRELENEIFRRAL:

RABBUBIMELRER
REEA HE—GHER
BERBRSEREOR
ERTAMER]

EEMBRSEANEFEE

BB B RS ERE 105

RABBERERR
BEGIHERF285E

REELRRAEREZRE:

REZAEBE AN
REREZRZEELER
EEMER]

WTHIR
EPREL
&t HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

92

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below. As
the Group has not completed its assessment, further impacts
may be identified in due course.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The standard replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

The standard introduces a new approach to the classification of
financial assets which is based on cash flow characteristics and
the business model in which the asset is held. A debt instrument
that is held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows and that has contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding is measured at amortised cost. A debt instrument
that is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting the contractual cash flows and selling the
instruments and that has contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
All other debt instruments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Equity instruments are generally measured at fair
value through profit or loss. However, an entity may make an
irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at fair
value through other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities are carried forward largely unchanged from
HKAS 39 except that when the fair value option is applied
changes in fair value attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognised in other comprehensive income unless this creates an
accounting mismatch.

HKFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss impairment model
to replace the incurred-loss impairment model in HKAS 39. It
is no longer necessary for a credit event or impairment trigger
to have occurred before impairment losses are recognised. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, an entity will generally recognise
12-month expected credit losses. If there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, an entity will
recognise lifetime expected credit losses. The standard includes
a simplified approach for trade receivables to always recognise
the lifetime expected credit losses.

The de-recognition requirements in HKAS 39 are carried forward
largely unchanged.

HKFRS 9 substantially overhauls the hedge accounting
requirements in HKAS 39 to align hedge accounting more closely
with risk management and establish a more principle based
approach.

HE—T—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

9%

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The Group’s financial assets that are currently classified as
available-for-sale include certain listed and unlisted equity
securities. The Group expects to irrevocably designate these
equity securities as fair value through other comprehensive
income. This will give rise to a change in accounting policy. The
listed equity securities are currently measured at fair value with
fair value changes recognised in other comprehensive income
until disposal or impairment at which point the fair value gains or
losses are recycled to profit or loss. Under HKFRS 9 recycling
of the fair value gains and losses is not permitted. The unlisted
equity securities are currently measured at cost less impairment
with any impairment losses recognised in profit or loss. HKFRS
9 requires fair value measurement with fair value changes
recognised in other comprehensive income without recycling.

The new expected credit loss impairment model in HKFRS 9
may result in the earlier recognition of impairment losses on the
Group’s trade receivables and other financial assets. The Group
is unable to quantify the impact until a more detailed assessment
is completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces all existing revenue standards and
interpretations.

The core principle of the standard is that an entity recognises
revenue to depict the transfer of goods and services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to become entitled in exchange for those
goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

An entity recognises revenue in accordance with the core
principle by applying a 5-step model:

1. Identify the contract with a customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

& Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

58 Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

The standard also includes comprehensive disclosure
requirements relating to revenue.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS
15 on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the new standard
on the consolidated financial statements until a detailed analysis
is completed.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations.
The new standard introduces a single accounting model for
lessees. For lessees the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16
carries forward the accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS
17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore continue to
classify leases as operating or financing leases.

The Group’s office property leases are currently classified as
operating leases and the lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under HKFRS 16
the Group may need to recognise and measure a liability at
the present value of the future minimum lease payments and
recognise a corresponding right-of-use asset for these leases.
The interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation on the
right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s
assets and liabilities will increase and the timing of expense
recognition will also be impacted as a result.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_T—"FT-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BABTTEITR)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. ERAFITRKBITERMBREED

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As disclosed in note 43(b), the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for its office
premises and office equipment amounted to approximately
HK$25,851,000 as at 31 December 2016. The Group will need
to perform a more detailed assessment in order to determine
the new assets and liabilities arising from these operating leases
commitments after taking into account the transition reliefs
available in HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. investment properties, contingent
consideration receivable and certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@ Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

(%)

b) CEMEERERDHETREETER
BB EER (&)

BB BIREERE 165 E (B)

KT AR FTHER R=ZT—~F+=A
=+ 8 REBBAEMERNPAREZ
TS AMAE T Z A RFEBE
FKH) £25,851,0008 70 - NEBEHHEITE
HBRZFHE  UERBBM RS ELE16
MAZBERHRITEYERETZS
KEREREMELEZTEAERARE

FEEFHE

BIE T B SR (IRE Y - U
ARERETERIARLFEENE) TR
SEEAMBHRRIDRBEE LR AEEFE -

PHBRDVEREEVBIRELRRR BhA
EREMETIZGEF -ETERERER
ERAEESHTRRBRETELHE - FRIE
B RE RSB R A MRAM E B EAR
RRALFTHEEE - IR MY oK EE -

REZEGRAMBERREEANETESHECRH
FEAT o

@ #HEKE

RAEVBHRRBEALR RENBRTH
E+ZA=T—RENFBHRE -HELQF
BEAEEZEHNER WAKBER2EE
BB mE A MRS E R KA E
FEEH THRENEBEENTZEEED
ZEOH - MAEEAEFRER - EAE
BRARNCEBAAEITERBEH
(MY EREOBRBERERNZENTE) A
REBHZRRESRN -

BESERBERAT 20165

97



98

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Consolidation (continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties.
A potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated exchange reserve relating to that
subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between the
non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. |dentifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum
of the consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwiill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(©

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUS”) or groups of CGUs
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwiill
is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right
contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

Associates (continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group’s
entire carrying amount of that associate (including goodwill) and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If
an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement.
When assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the holder
has the practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement. The Group has assessed the type of each of its
joint arrangements and determined them to all be joint ventures.

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint
venture in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Joint arrangements (continued)

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition profits
or losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that results in
a loss of joint control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that joint venture and (i) the Group’s
entire carrying amount of that joint venture (including goodwill)
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.
If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate, the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEIT)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FESFBUOR (#)
() Foreign currency translation (continued) (e) IMNEEIRAE ()
(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial )  EEBUBHRENKZREE
Statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into HINER FRVI T ERRIRARRZ SR
the functional currency on initial recognition using the BEAMIEXIRE BIELE N ° LASN
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates. KE2IMEBEERBBRERES
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are SR A OB SR o [ ML BB N BUR
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each ERBEHNIESER
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in BATEEFERUINEZIIMNIEE
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates WIEE NikEE AT EEE HNEX
at the dates when the fair values are determined. me
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised EIFEBHEMNREREMEERE
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component R ZRENERELBONE
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive therml=EER EIFEBEENE
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is EﬁﬁATE PSR - 2 B R AT R
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of B RIBEFER -
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
(i) Translation on consolidation (i) AEKRENEE

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e

Foreign currency translation (continued)
(i) Translation on consolidation (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the lease term, if shorter

Office equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
Computer hardware and software 3-5 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property is
measured initially at its cost including all direct costs attributable
to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its fair
value based on valuation by an external independent professional
valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the
investment property are recognised in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised as intangible assets if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion
of overheads and borrowing costs (see note 4(u)), where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Customer relationship and computer software are that intangible
assets with finite useful lives and are acquired through business
combination. The intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are stated at cost, being the fair value at the date
of completion of the business combination, less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Development costs on personal computer 2 — 9 years
performance software, anti-virus software
and mobile applications (“Computer and
Mobile Phone Software”)
— Customer relationship 10 years
— Computer software 6 years

The residual values, useful lives and amortisation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Operating Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

108

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0)

)

Inventories

Inventories represent finished goods which are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the
agreed contract amount and appropriate amounts from variation
orders, claims and incentive payments arising from professional
IT contract services. Contract costs incurred comprise equipment
and material costs, subcontracting costs, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of work completed to date to the estimated total work
of the relevant contract. Where the outcome of a contract cannot
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is treated as an amount due from contract customers. Where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated
as an amount due to contract customers.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

B

4.

BT

0

*

NETZRA=+—RIFE
(VABTTEIR)

IR AR BT B R B A R A
NBE RV BUR 2 o B SE M S B 56
TR AT~ RE BB
B 5 55 T A R M 1T 8488 P T A A
A

RIBEH

BHWABEREASHNSERAENRTE
SEEEE REXAFEERARRELN
REEEN RS - FEEQNKNARERME
EMHER DBER BEEATIRAE
BEFEERNEEEE-

BREHREASRATDR T I B S LR
T2REBE K IREEBE LM
TRESMNLIEE - BEaNRANERER
BEREE S E  WABER —ERE LIRR AT
Bl #) T A2 & A i e R

BA NGB A A B R AR A
1 -

B RMELESORANE BABEFRE
HREEBLIREE TR - BRRBRGIERE
Wa K% P IR - ik EFOREH B
AIFTE B A LKA NS FER R 7R E
REE BHRSREIERNEOTPFURR
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset’s but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the assset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
financial assets within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either financial assets classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. These financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of these financial assets are
recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method (except for short-
term receivables where interest is immaterial) minus
any reduction for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically
trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash are
classified in this category.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

Financial assets (continued)
(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-for-
sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
these investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the investments are disposed of or there
is objective evidence that the investments are impaired,
at which time the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
from equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method and dividends on available-for-
sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for money
lending, merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(P)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out

below.

0

(@)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes which entitle the holder to convert the
notes into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
that consist of a liability and an equity component. At
the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The difference between the
proceeds of issue of the convertible notes and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
embedded option for the holder to convert the notes into
equity of the Group, is included in equity as convertible
note equity reserve. The liability component is carried as
a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest
method until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible notes based on their
relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion
relating to the equity component is charged directly to
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(P)

(a)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
(i) Convertible notes (continued)

If the note is converted, the convertible note equity
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the convertible
note equity reserve is released directly to retained profits.

(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(iv)  Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised and subsequently measured at
fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised
in profit or loss as they arise.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or non-
financial host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of
the host contract with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

114

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in

profit or loss as follows:

) Service income

- Revenue from website development is recognised

when the services are rendered.

- Revenue from software application, e-learning
platform and maintenance services is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the service

contract.

- Revenue from corporate management solution
service contracts and professional IT service
contracts is recognised on the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to
the proportion of work completed to date to the
estimated total work of the relevant contract, where
the outcome of a contract cannot be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that
the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

- Revenue from IT maintenance service is recognised

when the service are rendered.

(i) Sale income

Revenue from the sale of application software, sale
of goods, hardware and software is recognised when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n  Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(i)

Loan interest income

Interest income on loans are recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset. When a loan
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash receipts for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.

Toolbar and advertisement

Toolbar revenue is derived principally from online toolbar
private label arrangements with toolbar service providers.
The Group allows the toolbar service providers to launch
their toolbar installation application associated with the
installation of the Group’s software. One part of the toolbar
revenue is received from the service providers based on
number of qualified installation. Another part of toolbar
revenue is from search-based income. When the users use
the search engine incorporated in the toolbar to search
for goods and services, and they purchase the goods and
services from the advertisements listed in the search result,
the toolbar service provider will share part of the revenue it
receives with the Group.

Income from advertisement is derived principally from
online advertising arrangements. The Group enters
into advertising arrangements with advertisers to allow
them to put advertisements on particular areas of the
Group’s electronic platforms, or embedded hyperlinks
to advertisements in the Group’s electronic platform. For
the hyperlinks embedded in the Group’s websites, the
advertisers pay the Group based on number of clicks on
the hyperlinks.

The Group recognises revenue when the revenue can
be measured reliably and the collectability is reasonably
assured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n Revenue recognition (continued)

W) Commission income
Commission income from provision of an online shopping
platform is recognised when the services are rendered.
Commission income from insurance and mandatory
provident fund schemes brokerage services is recognised
on an accrual basis based on the commissioning of the
respective insurance policies and mandatory provident
fund schemes.

(i) Training course income
Training course income from provision of education and
training programme is recognised when the services are
rendered.

(vii)  Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

(vii) - Bank interest income
Bank interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(ix)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Employee benefits

U

(i)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss
represents contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-
market based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

118

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
and interests in joint arrangements, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured
based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.
(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

NE+-—HA=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

(x)

Related parties (continued)

(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continuead)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(i)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personal services
to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at

each reporting date for indications of impairment and where

an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through

the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for

an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash

inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets

or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount

is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset

belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and

the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
cash-generating unit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

v)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-generating unit
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates
are credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether
its financial assets (other than those at fair value through profit or
loss) are impaired, based on objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost is considered also to be objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not to be
impaired individually, the Group assesses them collectively for
impairment, based on the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly
reduced by the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(2

(aa)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the amount
of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the
allowance account for trade receivables) through profit or loss.
However, the reversal must not result in a carrying amount that
exceeds what the amortised cost of the financial asset would
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is
not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(@ Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use (“VIU”) of the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated. The VIU calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. The
carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the reporting period
was approximately HK$500,459,000 (2015: HK$525,878,000)
after an impairment loss of HK$30,000,000 (2015: HK$NIl) was
recognised during the year. Details of the impairment test for
CGU containing goodwill are set out in note 22.

(b) Recoverability of intangible assets

During the year, the management has evaluated the impairment
of intangible assets by way of higher of VIU calculation by
reference to the discounted cash flows derived from financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group or fair
value less cost to disposal with reference to the latest market
transactions (“FVLCTS"). If the higher of the VIU or FVLCTS is
less than the corresponding carrying amounts, an impairment
loss may be required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b) Recoverability of intangible assets (continued)

U

(i)

Development costs on Computer and Mobile Phone
Software

During the year, the Group reconsidered the recoverability
of its internally-generated intangible asset arising from
the Group’s Computer and Mobile Phone Software
development, which is included in its consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2016
at approximately HK$71,962,000 after an impairment
loss of approximately HK$995,000 was recognised
during the year. The projects continue to progress in a
very satisfactory manner, and customer reaction has
reconfirmed the Group’s previous estimates of anticipated
revenues from the projects. However, increased
competitor activity has caused the Group to reconsider
its assumptions regarding future market shares and
anticipated margins on these products. Detailed sensitivity
analysis has been carried out and the Group is confident
that the carrying amount of the asset will be recovered
in full, even if returns are reduced. This situation will
be closely monitored, and adjustments made in future
periods, if future market activity indicates that such
adjustments are appropriate.

Customer relationship and computer software

The management determines whether customer
relationship and computer software are impaired requires
an estimation of the VIU of the CGU to which the assets
are allocated. The VIU calculation requires the directors to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGU and a suitable discount rate to calculate the present
value. No impairment loss was recognised for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. Detailed of the
impairment review are provided in note 23.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5.

126

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

(c) Estimated useful lives of intangible assets

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets reflect
management’s estimation on the Group’s intention to
derive future economic benefits from the intangible assets.
The management performs annual reviews of whether the
assumptions made of useful lives continue to be valid. When
useful lives of intangible assets are different from those previously
estimated, the amortisation charges for future periods will be

adjusted accordingly.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31
December 2016 was approximately HK$82,041,000 (2015:

HK$74,416,000).

(d) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group estimates the useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives and
residual values are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the expected usage, wear and
tear of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence arising from
changes in market demand or service output of the assets. The
Group also performs annual reviews on whether the assumptions
made on useful lives and residual values continue to be valid. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives and
residual values are different to those previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic

assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2016 was approximately HK$2,482,000 (2015:

HK$2,252,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

(e

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group had available-for-sale investments which were stated
at their fair values on the basis of their quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period, on an individual basis. Any gains
or losses are recognised as a separate component of equity
until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss previously reported in equity is included in profit or
loss. Management has to assess whether objective evidence
of significant impairment exists and consider whether it is
appropriate to charge the cumulative loss to profit or loss. In
making its judgement, the Group considers (i) the future prospect
of the underlying investments; and (i) the underlying financial
position of the investments.

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine
when an available-for-sale equity investment is impaired. This
determination requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost; and the financial health of and short-term
business outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology as well
as operational and financing cash flow.

If declines in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
below cost were considered significant or prolonged, additional
impairment may be required.

During the year, approximately HK$11,914,000 (2015:
HK$1,309,000) of impairment loss on available-for-sale financial
assets was charged to profit or loss.

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques and considering information from a variety of sources,
including the latest financial information from the fund manager
or administrator. The Group uses its judgement to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a
material effect on the fair value of the available-for-sale financial
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
(continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets determined by
using valuation techniques at the end of the reporting period was
approximately HK$2,147,000 (2015: HK$30,613,000).

Trade and other receivables

The aged debt profile of trade and other receivables is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the debtor balances are
collectible and follow up actions are promptly carried out if the
agreed credit periods have been exceeded. However, from time
to time, the Group may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of debtor balances is called into doubt, specific
provisions for impairment losses are made based on credit
status of the customers, the aged analysis of the trade and other
receivable balances and their write-off history. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectible, yet subsequently become
uncollectible and result in a subsequent write-off of the related
receivable to the statement of profit or loss. Changes in the
collectability of trade and other receivables for which provision
are not made could affect the results of operations.

As at 31 December 2016, accumulated impairment loss for
bad and doubtful debts was approximately HK$304,000 (2015:
HK$206,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognised
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

During the year, approximately HK$29,576,000 (2015:
HK$23,940,000) of income tax was charged to profit or loss
based on the estimated profit from operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

@)

0)

K)

Revenue and profit recognition

The Group estimates the percentage of completion of the
contracts for services by reference to the proportion that the
stage of work performed to date to the estimated total costs
for the contracts. When the final cost incurred by the Group is
different from the amounts that were initially budgeted, such
differences will impact the revenue and profit or loss recognised
in the period in which such determination is made.

During the year, approximately HK$6,668,870 (2015:
HK$5,143,000) of revenue from the contracts for services was
recognised.

Fair value of derivative component

As disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements,
the fair value of the derivative component of the convertible notes
at the date of issue and the end of the reporting period were
determined using binomial model. Application of binomial model
requires the Group to estimate the prominent factors affecting the
fair value, including but not limited to, the expected volatility of
the share prices of the Company and the expected dividend yield
of the Company. Where the estimation of these factors is different
from those previously estimated, such differences will impact the
fair value gain or loss on the derivative component in the period in
which such determination is made.

The carrying amount of the derivative financial instruments as at
31 December 2016 were HK$959,000 (2015: HK$21,564,000).

Fair value of contingent consideration receivable

The fair value of contingent consideration receivable from
acquisition of subsidiaries was determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of
methods and make assumptions, including the discount rates
and estimation of post-acquisition performance of the acquired
subsidiaries. Changes in assumptions used could materially affect
the fair value of the balances and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operation. At 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of contingent consideration receivable
amounted to approximately HK$18,710,000 (2015:HK$NIl).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5.

130

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

U]

(m)

Fair value of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer to
assess the fair value of the investment properties. In determining
the fair value, the valuer has utilised a method of valuation which
involves certain estimates. The directors have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation and
inputs used are reflective of the current market conditions.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2016 was approximately of HK$62,400,000 (2015: HK$Nil).

Joint control assessment

The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint arrangement
of Creative Lead Limited. The directors have determined that
the Group has joint control over the arrangement as under the
contractual agreement, it appears that unanimous consent is
required from all parties to the agreement for all relevant activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities
and United States dollars (“US$”). The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The effects of the strengthened or weakened of Hong Kong
dollars against US$ on the profit after tax is not significant.

Price risk

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price
risk due to the fluctuation of shares prices of available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The directors review the exposure to the equity security
price risk on the available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss regularly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Price risk (continued)

If the share prices of the available-for-sale financial assets and
the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss increase/
decrease by 10% (2015: 10%), the other comprehensive income
and profit after tax for the year would have been approximately
HK$8,142,000 (2015: HK$12,010,000) higher/lower and
approximately HK$43,736,000 (2015: HK$27,000,000) higher/
lower respectively, arising as a result of the fair value gain/loss of
the available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had concentration of equity
security price risk on two (2015: two) of its listed securities
investments in Hong Kong accounted for 78% (2015: 69%) of
its available-for-sale financial assets and two (2015: one) of its
listed investments in Hong Kong accounted for 98% (2015: 99%)
of its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at 31
December 2016.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers and service providers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customers’ and service providers’ past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer and service provider
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer and service provider operate. The directors are of the
opinion that no further provision for uncollectible receivables is
required in the consolidated financial statements. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral or guarantee from customers
and service providers except the loan receivables under
money lending business and other loan receivables included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(©

(d)

GEMBHRME

HEZ—RET-_A=1—HILFE
(VABTTEIIR)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HMBEBREE (H)
Credit risk (continued) ) REERB (&)
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. AEBWESANEERBERHIBER -
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s BEARE B 5 K H th & UL FRIE A 2
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables MiEERRNE — P2 HEERERH
are set out in note 29. 29 ©
Liquidity risk d) RBESEEE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected AREE PRI E SRR R RTEHRREHE
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient SHRE UBERERENESFEERENEH
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and ERERDHESCHTE -
longer term.
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash BEAEESBABBENESORMARESR
flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: ATEMEIBA ST
2016
—E-XE
More than
More than 2 years
Within 1 year but but less
1 year or less than than After
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
15R BE1F BB
REREE BIH2F  BOREE 5% @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEr TR TR TR TR
Trade payables BHRENER 5,016 - - - 5,016
Deposits received Blize 5,481 - - - 5,481
Amounts due to non-controlling interests & B 2 B3R
of subsidiaries ERNFE 3,972 - - - 3,972
Loan notes interest payables EAERREFL 4,983 - - = 4,983
Accrued expenses and other payables eI 8 A KA 5B 21,421 - - - 21,421
Total trade and other payables BEHREMENRELRE 40,873 - - - 40,873
Loan notes EXER 221,548 2,180 - - 223,728
Convertible notes RRRE 75,208 - - - 75,208
337,629 2,180 - - 339,809
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HEe—T—
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HMBEBREE (H#)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) d) HRBESERE (E)
2015
—ZT-0F
More than More than
1 year 2 years
Within but less but less
1 year or than than After
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1A HiB1E HiBoE
REKEE  EIRE BAREE 5F 1k M@t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
Trade payables BHENER 19,201 = = = 19,201
Deposits received BlkizE 72 = = = 72
Amount due to non-controlling interests E—EHEAR
of a subsidiary FERESRTR 1,332 = = = 1,332
Loan notes interest payables ERAERREFS 4,990 - - = 4,990
Accrued expenses and other payables T8 A KA 3B 26,524 = = = 26,524
Total trade and other payables B RAMENTIBRSE 52,119 - - - 52,119
Loan notes BERRE - 245,870 - - 245,870
Convertible notes RREE - 75,208 - - 75,208
52,119 321,078 = = 373,197
(e) Interest rate risk () FI=XEpz

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities are bank deposits, loan receivables, other
loan receivables and loan notes. As at 31 December 2015, the
Group’s significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities were

bank deposits, loan receivables, loan notes and amounts due to
non-controlling interests of a subsidiary.

The Group’s interest income from bank deposits is dependent
on changes in market interest rates and will not have significant
adverse impact on the Group’s financial position.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, loan receivables, other
loan receivables, loan notes and amounts due to non-controlling

interests of subsidiaries are at fixed interest rates and therefore
are subject to fair values interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

() Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

GEMBHRME

HEZ—RET-_A=1—HILFE
(VABTTEIIR)

6. MBERERE (&)

 RTZA=t—BNEMIAEEH

2016 2015
—E—-XREF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHIT
Financial assets: EWMEE:
Financial assets at fair value through BRBRARATFEBYIERESN
profit or loss: CRUEE
Held for trading BIEEE 523,899 323,082
Derivative financial instruments THESMITA 959 21,564
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EEREE 83,567 150,716
Loans and receivables (including cash and ~ B KR EWHE (BFRE N
cash equivalents) REFEY) 147,425 305,741
Contingent consideration receivable U ARE 18,710 =
Financial liabilities: SRAaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEERATENERER 317,180 333,144

(9) Fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three
levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

(9 2A¥EE

AEEHEEHBRAEATEREERS
BEENRAEEES R FEERS -

7. AVEENE

NFEEETS2EEZMNGAEAHERFR
SPHEEERRBMABREEHIAOER-
TXHRBEEAAFEESRFITENITEE
e ERFEENGEDNZBABBRLD B=
B :

F-RWABE: AEEARFERHRGHA
FEEREENERTISR
B (REHE) -

E_RWMABE: BEERIHENEEREET
BRBARE MEE R
PREEMRE -

FE=RBAEE: BELRENTIBERBA
g

FEENRERERBEESHRE (A NEHE
BT =EREBEBAREHER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEITR)
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AYEEE (&)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 @ RTZA=t+t—HWATFEESRE
December: 5= .
Fair value measurement using: Total
AP EEFEMABR: st
DESCRIPTION Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
H#E F—& gt} EZH/ —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FTERT THER FTERT

Recurring fair value measurements: &ZE M A FEEE:

Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at fair value through BRBEARNFEE

profit or loss FBRH S RE E

Listed securities EWES 523,899 - - 523,899
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA - - 959 959
Available-for-sale financial assets AfHEEREE

Listed securities FHES 81,420 - - 81,420

Unlisted investment funds FELTRERES - - 2,147 2,147
Contingent consideration receivable RIS AARE - - 18,710 18,710
Investment properties REWME
Commercial units — Hong Kong EEBEMN-FHS - 62,400 - 62,400
Total et 605,319 62,400 21,816 689,535
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(@)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31

HEZ—RET-_A=1—HILFE
(VABTTEIIR)

7. AFEMEE (H)

@ RTZA=+T—BNLFEESRK

December: (continued) &z (&)
Fair value measurement using: Total
REEEFEMAER: FCEE
DESCRIPTION Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
15 F—1 EZR £=#h —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET FT
Recurring fair value measurements: &HE % AL EEE:
Financial assets CRMEE
Financial assets at fair value through BREZUATEE
profit or loss FIRE SR AE
Listed securities EmES 323,082 - - 323,082
Derivative financial instruments TESBMIA - - 21,564 21,564
Available-for-sale financial assets AELESHEE
Listed securities EES 120,103 - - 120,103
Unlisted investment funds FETREES - - 30,613 30,613
Total et 443,185 - 52,177 495,362

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

RAFERN E— ZR=ZHzETES

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEITR)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AYEEE (&)
(b) Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) measured at fair b) REF=RRAFEETENEE
value based on level 3: (BB HIR:
2016
—E—KRE
Derivative Unlisted Contingent
financial investment consideration
instruments funds receivable
fTE2MIAE FLHREES RS ARRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET FTET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—XRF—HA—H 21,564 30,613 -
Purchases/additions BE RE - = 17,593
Distributions ik = =
Settlements &1 - (21,000) -
Total gains/(losses) recognised R TR5IE B ERr s
(F518) 4258
—in profit or loss ® —Ba® (20,605) - 1,117
— in other comprehensive income —Hib2mEUE - (7,466) -
RZB-—RF+ZA=+—
At 31 December 2016 H 959 2,147 18,710
2015
—T-RF
Derivative Unlisted
financial investment Performance
instruments funds shares
THEEMIA FLMREES RERMD
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—H&E—F—A - 11,006 (14,331)
Purchases/additions BERE 21,564 21,000 -
Distributions 7k - (2,639) -
Settlements FEN] - - 13,165
Total gains recognised RTFIIE B R 45
—in profit or loss ® — B&E® - - 1,166
— in other comprehensive income — Bt 2Eka - 1,246 -
RZZE—RAF+ZA=1+—
At 31 December 2015 H 21,564 30,613 =
® Included in other gains or losses. 52 AT AH I s sk B 18 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

(©

Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value based on level 3: (continued)

The total gains/(losses) recognised in other comprehensive
income are presented in fair value gains/(losses) on available-for-
sale financial assets in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

The total gains recognised in profit or loss including those for
assets/(liabilities) held at end of reporting period are presented in
other gains and losses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2016:

The Group’s management is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements.
The management reviews the fair value measurements at least
once a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform the

valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements
are mainly:

- risk free rate (estimated based on zero coupon rate)

- yield spread (estimated based on certain comparable
bonds)

- expected volatility (estimated based on historical volatility)

- dividend vyield (estimated based on no dividends will be
paid in the near future)

- present value of expected future share price (estimated
based on dividend yield is zero)

- probability-weighted profit

- discount factor

B

=—F

4=

GEMBHRME

NETZA=tT—HIFE

(VABTTEIIR)

7.

NP EEE (&)

(b)

(©

REFE=RRAFEETENEE
(BB HKR: ()

REMEEEREBERN KSR (BHE) 2%
RiEaBRakE2HKRERTAIHEE
CMEEQTFEBERS(BE) 25 -

P8 25 T SR B W R AR BE B FE O MR S H R P
HEE/(Af) IRGABRRTEM
Woas & EHRE5

WEAEBR=-ZE—~"FE+=-A=1+—
HETREERR HERTRE AT EE
FTEARARE:

AEEEEESERYBRELTHEE
ERAGHATEE ﬁ£< DAEH=HAT
BENE) - ERESFEEL—RBHAT
BEHE-

REZRATHEEHENE FRE—ME
BT RA S ER
i Ninte:

—BAFEEMAIZTTHEBHAR
BEERE:
-  ERRAE(REZTEEXRME)

- hEERE(REETHELRESRG
&)

—  TAEPRME GRIBE LIREMET)

- Hx SR (RETABRT GRS
&)

- E‘EHH%XJ&FE”JERTE (REZREX
&)

—  AIREMEINAEE A

- BBREAEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c)
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2016: (continued)

Level 2 fair value measurements

HE-ZT—RET-_A=+—HILFE
(LABTTEIIR)

7. AFEMEE (H)

FE RN FEETE

WEAEBN=-ZE—AE+=-A=1+—
HETAMERRF HERTE A ER
STEFAEARE: (&)

Fair value
AFEE
Description Valuation technique Inputs Carrying amount 2016 2015
1B fhEHT BB RHE —E-X% “Z-1f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TAT
Commercial units located in Direct comparison method Market price per square foot 62,400 62,400 -
Hong Kong
R BB ZEEEN HELEBCE BT HERTE
Level 3 fair value measurements E=RAFEEGE
Effect on fair
Valuation value for increase
Description technique Inputs Range of inputs Carrying amount  Fair value 2016
BASBEME AVEE
#E BRI BARE g8 ATEENYE REE ZEB-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TER
Derivative financial Binomial model Share price HK$0.543  Increase 959 959
Instruments ZHEABER Risk free rate 0.858% Increase
fTESRMIA Yield spread 6.1%  Decrease
Expected volatility 69.57%  Increase
Dividend yield 0%  Decrease
BB 054387 &M
ERRNE 0858% &M
Wiz 6.1% HL
BEKE 69.57% &M
fa% 0% Hd
Unlisted investment Net asset value Net asset value per share HK$1,952  Increase 2,147 2,147
funds BEFE BREEFE 195287 &M
FETREES
Contingent Discounted cash  Probability-weight profit Lossof  Increase 18,710 18,710
consideration flow approach ~ BEE iNiER 7 HK$19,397 -
receivables BEUBRRENEZE profitof  No change or
R ARE HK$1,965,505  decrease
6.97%  Decrease
Discount factor EiB19,0078 L &
HRAZ gl
1965505870 REE(LH
697% WY
AL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7.

(©

GEMBHRME

BE_E—RE+-_A=1+—BHIFE
(AABTTHIR)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. QDFEEEE(E)
Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group © BEAEER-ZE—ARF+ZA=1+—
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value HAETRMGERR HERTTRATEE
measurements at 31 December 2016: (continued) sTEMAWMARE: (&)
Level 3 fair value measurements (continued) FE=RAF(EEE (F)
Effect on fair
Valuation value for increase
Description technique Inputs Range  of inputs Carrying amount Fair value 2015
BABBE MY RTEE
HIE fhER BARR #E QTEENYE REE —T-hf
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL
Derivative financial Binomial model Share price HK$0.21  Increase 21,564 21,564
Instruments ZEAER Risk free rate 052%  Increase
TESRIA Yield spread 417%  Decrease
Expected volatility 107.49%  Increase
Dividend yield 0%  Decrease
(& 02187 &
ERRNE 052% &
WHER 417% AL
EHKE 107.49% &M
fE% 0% Fd
Unlisted investment Net asset value Net asset value per share HK$9,566  Increase 30,613 30,613
funds BEFE BREEFE 956687 M
FETREES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTEIIR)

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the sales value of goods and services supplied
to customers. An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as

EEBEENEPHEERLRBHHEEER K
SEAFENEEEAMMAT

follows:
2016 2015
ZE-XRF —T—h%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER T
Sales of computer and mobile phone HEBMRRBERERHFUAR
software and toolbar advertisement TERES 120,259 137,136
Loan interest income B B WA 4,684 5,133
Provision of insurance and mandatory provident REREE KRG A B8
fund schemes brokerage services 142 AR 75 69,487 71,368
Provision of corporate management solution and 12t ¥ ERFRA T E R EH
|.T. contract services B & R 59,963 108,489
Commission income from provision of an online REALENMTEMEAESWA
shopping platform - 1,933
Sales from online shopping business B LEEYEBKEERA 550 670
Provision of education and training programs REHE kEFJIE 2 8,078 -
263,021 324,729
OTHER REVENUE 9. Hfttlk A
2016 2015
—EB-RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Bank interest income RITH B UA 11 18
I.T. maintenance services income BB ERF A - 2,328
Other loan interest income HAaEHF B BA 96 =
Rental income HEWA 1,343 250
Dividend income & B A 137 435
Others HAh 733 550
2,320 3,581
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

11.

BE-T—X

(VABTTEIIR)

GEMBHRME

FH-A=1+—HIFE

10. HWEREE  F8

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—ARF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FA&T
Foreign exchange losses, net PE 3 518 F 58 (118) (204)
Fair value gain on financial assets FiREmAATEBIERD
at fair value through profit or loss SRBENFBEKE 81,673 101,901
Gain/(loss) on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEECREE
financial assets Wi, (&) 849 (11,931)
Loss on disposal of financial assets HEBBIBEUA T EESER
at fair value through profit or loss CTREENEE (556) (39,346)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB R AR
(notes 42(c) and (d)) (Ht3E42(c) % (d)) 311 5,302
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEYE  HE R REN
plant and equipment W, (&) 5 (92)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEHESREEREBEEBE
financial assets (note 27) (M 5E27) (11,914) (1,309)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 22) B R EEE (K22) (30,000) =
Impairment loss on intangible assets (note 23) mpEERAEEE (Mi23) (995) (5,946)
Fair value gain on performance shares KERMDAFEBKE - 1,166
Fair value gain on investment properties (note 21)  #H &AW E RN FEEUWZE (ME21) 8,495 -
Fair value loss on derivative financial PTESMTAEAFEEEE
instruments (note 34) (P 5E34) (20,605) =
Fair value gain on contingent consideration BERSZARELAFLEBE KRS
receivable (note 31) (MF5ES1) 1,117 =
Gain on bargain purchase (note 42(a)) REBEWE (FiE42@) - 35
Net sundry income HIFR A FRE - 84
28,262 49,660
SEGMENT REPORTING 1. ZHHRE
The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised REERFPFIE R A ER  BEBER LR
by a mixture of both business lines and geographical locations. In GBI - AEEE RERSE 6 - HHRA
a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported ABOMRERKTIERABENMARNER &S RIT
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the BEBAEABREERNTAER -

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the

Group has five reportable segments.

- Research, development and distribution of personal computer

performance software, anti-virus software, mobile phone

applications and toolbar advertisement (“Software Business”)

- Securities investment (“Securities Investment Business”) —

ME R HEAESKIEEES HERMt-
nBBHEAEARTARES ([FHE
%)

EHRE ([BHEREERK])
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11.

- Money lending (“Money Lending Business”)

- Provision of insurance and mandatory provident fund schemes
brokerage services (“Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage

Business”)

- Provision of corporate management solutions and I.T. contract
services (“"Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract

Services Business”)

The Group’s other operating segments include, (i) provision of online
shopping business (“Online Shopping Business”) and (i) provision
of education and training programs which do not meet any of the
quantitative thresholds for determining as reportable segments. The
information of these other operating segments is included in the

“Others” column.

(@ Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

- Segment profit/(loss) represented profit earned by/
(loss from) each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, finance costs and income tax

expense.

- Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of other corporate

assets.

- Segment liabilities include all current and non-
current liabilities with the exception of accrued central
administration costs, loan notes and convertible notes.

Inter-segment revenue is priced with reference to prices charged

to external customers for similar orders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-TAF+-A=t+—BILERE
(XBTBIR)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 11. 2HHE ()
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (@ NHFEE-BEEREE(E)
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment results, assets WENHMHAEERESNEFEE EERE
and liabilities by reportable segment is as follows: BT :
Corporate
Management
Insurance and ~ Solutions and
Securities Money MPF Schemes L. Contract
Software Investment Lending Brokerage Services
Business Business Business Business Business Others  Consolidated
LEEBHER
RERERE FRREANE
RHEE  BEREER REER GHELER AOEEER Hih &&
2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
—E-RE —E-RE —E-1E “E-RE —E-RE —E-1E “E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhET THEx FET THEx Thn FET THx
Turnover EEE
Revenue from external customers HREFMA 120,259 - 4,684 69,487 59,963 8,628 263,021
Inter-segment revenue BEELUN - - - - 225 - 225
Reportable segment revenue BEFBRA 120,259 - 4,684 69,487 60,188 8,628 263,246
Reconciliations: HiE:
Elimination of inter-segment revenue ~ $#2 BERA (225)
Revenue WA 263,021
Results E4
Segment results At 33,494 68,507 3498 1,155 12,472 429) 118,787
Reconciliation: HiE
Interest income FEsA 11
Unallocated income RABBA
- Rental income ~HERA 1,343
- Fair value gain on investment properties — & #1£ 2 FEENE 8,495
— Fair value gain on contingent ~ERIAREATEREKE
consideration receivable 1,117
- Gain on disposal of avallable-for-sale  —HEAHEHESBEENS
financial assets 491
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - HE-HHBA ARG 33
- Other loan interest income - B EFFBHMA %
— Fair value loss on derivative financial ~ — T4 £ BT AN TFEEBE
instruments (20,605)
Unallocated expenses FARRT
- Corporate expenses - ¥RY (17,081)
Profit from operations LR 92,687
Finance costs BEMK (22,562)
Share of loss of associates EEBERRER (5,550)
Share of loss of a joint venture EE-HALLEER ()
Profit before taxation BRH AR 64,570
Income tax expense ERAY (29,576)
Profit for the year KEFRF 34,994
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBWRME

11.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEITR)
SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 11. 2HHE ()
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () DHEE-BEEREE (H)
Corporate
Management
Insurance and ~ Solutions and
Securities Money MPF Schemes  LT. Contract
Software Investment Lending Brokerage Services
Business Business Business Business Business Others  Consolidated
LEEERR
RERERS FRREANE
RHEE REREER HEEE rHELEE AOEEER Hit &e
2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
ZE-RE k- S It SY-4 E-R% E-5F it SY- it S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THx FRT FHT FhEL FRET FHT
Assets EE
Segment assets PEHEE 601,107 611,752 18,856 18,786 64,317 9,148 1,323,966
Reconciliation: HiE:
Unallocated assets FOREE
- Property, plant and equipment - 0% BER&E 361
~ Investment properties - REME 62,400
- Derivative financial instruments - FESRIA 959
- Contingent consideration receivable R ARE 18,710
- Investments in associates = FAﬂﬁﬁ ERRMRE 38,939
~ Investment in a joint venture - R-HAELENRE -
~Trade and other receivables - BHREMERTE 9,747
— Cash and cash equivalents - ReRBLEEY 14,430
Total assets BELE 1,469,512
Liabilities =L
Segment liabilities PHEE 39,003 23,367 204 14,117 13,749 7,079 97,519
Reconciliation HE:
Unallocated liabilties APREE
- Trade and other payables - BAREMERTE 7,618
- Deferred tax liabilties - BREHEEE 136
- Loan notes - BREE 210,000
- Convertible notes - THREE 71,789
Total liabilities BERE 387,062
Other segment information: Hitp HEHR:
Addtions to property, plant and equipment R E 1% - Fif5 ik 8 - - (23 (290) (313) m (633)
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEEY (17,946) - - - (1,578) - (19,524)
Depreciation E - (60) (20) (399) (533) (1,088) (2,004
Development costs capitalised RERRERI (28,144) - - - - - (28,144)
Fair value gain on financial assets at ~ EBBH AT EEER
fair value through profit or loss SRHEEATEEYS - 81,673 - - - - 81,673
Loss on disposal of financial assets at K EEBBRINATLEE
fair value through profit or loss SIS REAENER - (556) - - - - (556)
Gain on disposal of avallable-for-sale ~ HEAEELBEEN
financial assets e - 358 - - - 491 849
Impairment loss on avallable-forsale  AIEHESBEEREFE
financial assets - (11,914) - - - - (11,914)
Impairment loss on intangible assets &R/ AR B ERHE (995) - - - - - (995)
Impairment loss on goodwil BEREEE (30,000) - - - - - (30,000)
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE BERIBENNE
plant and equipment - - - - 5 - 5
Legal and professional fees EERELER (899) (10) (102) (131) (98) (5,396) (6,636)

(@)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(@)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

E—E—NE+-A=+—HItFE

(ABTTFIR)
1. 2EHE (F)
C)

nEEE BERAE (B

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment results, assets MEDHEAEERESDFEE EEREA
and liabilities by reportable segment is as follows: (continued) BEAMET: (5&)
Corporate
Management
Insurance and  Solutions and
Securities Money  MPF Schemes |.T. Contract
Software Investment Lending Brokerage Senvices
Business Business Business Business Business Others  Consolidated
TPEEERA
REREES FRREANR
Bhsh  AHFREER REER GEELER SORBER H &a
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
“Z-1f —“Z-1% —T-1% —Z-1f —Z-1E —Z-RF “Z-1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr T T Thr T THr FhEr
Turnover 258
Revenue from external customers HREFMA 137,136 - 5133 71,368 108,489 2,603 324,729
Inter-segment revenue BTN - - - - 1,271 - 1,271
Reportable segment revenue BEPBIA 137,136 - 5,133 71,368 109,760 2,603 326,000
Reconciliations: HiE:
Elimination of inter-segment revenue ¥ #§2 BAKA (1,271)
Revenue A 324,729
Results ¥4
Segment results PIBEE 78,388 49,832 3,941 2,081 13,455 (3,826) 143871
Reconciliation: HE:
Interest income FEsA 18
Unallocated income RABBA
- Rental income —AERA 250
~ Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — HENBARMNKE 5,302
~ Fair value gain on performance shares  — REB(A A FEBEK % 1,166
- Gain on bargain purchase —ZBEENkE 35
- Other income —HEflA 173
Unallocated expenses RABAZ
— Corporate expenses —ER% (27,674)
- Loss on disposal of property, —LENE BERRENS
plant and equipment B @)
Profit from operations LEET 123049
Finance costs BEKE (6,639)
Share of loss of an associate ElE-HRBERAER (61)
Profit before taxation BB AR 117,363
Income tax expense FERER (23,940)
Profit for the year REERF 93,423
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_E—R"E+-_A=1+—HIFE
(ABTTHIR)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 11. 2EHE (&)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () DHEE-BEEREE (H)
Corporate
Management
Insurance and -~ Solutions and
Securities Money  MPF Schemes I.T. Contract
Software Investment Lending Brokerage Senvices
Business Business Business Business Business Others  Consolidated
PEERRR
REREES FRREMNE
Rhsh  BFREREK BEEE HEHLREE AORBER Eih 58
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
1% Z%-n% -%-1f C-%-1n% C-%-n¥ -T-nf CZ%-1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n Tin ThT Fign Titn ThT TFi#n
Assets BE 633,793 481,844 68,760 14,384 70,502 125 1,269,408
Segment assets PBEE
Reconciliation: HiE:
Unallocated assets FOREE
- Property, plant and equipment e ENE 671
— Derivative financial instruments —fESBIA 21,564
- Investment in an associate —R-ERERANRE 20,900
~Tradle and other receivables —BSREMmERE 818
- Cash and cash equivalents —RERALEED 120,963
Total assets BERE 1,434,324
Liabilities af
Segment liabilities PHEE 32,383 9,922 1,797 19,890 26,071 - 90,063
Reconciliation #Hik:
Unallocated fabilties *HRAR
- Trade and other payables — B REMENTE 9415
- Loan notes —EFER 212,500
- Convertible notes — AREE 68,525
Total liabilities BERE 380,503
Other segment information: Hitp HEHR:
Additions to property, plant and REME 5 REHE
equipment = = ®) (229) (265) (657) (1,152)
Amortisation of intangible assets BVEERSE (15,335) - - - (1578) = (16,913)
Depreciation it . (60) (12) (328) 497) (“02) (1,299)
Development costs capitalised RERFERL (22,398) - - - - = (22,398)
Fair value gain on financiel assets at ~ EBBEMUA T BRI
fair value through profit or loss SREENTEERS - 101,901 - - - = 101,901
Loss on disposal of financial assets at M EHEBERNATER
fair value through profit or loss SIS REENER - (39,346) - - - = (39,346)
Loss on disposal of avallable-forsale ~ HEFEHELBEENEER
financial assets - (11,931) - - - - (11,931)
Impairment loss on avallable-for-sale AT ESBREEREEE
financial assets - (1,309) - - - - (1,309)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BVEEREBER (6,946) - - - - - (5,946)
Legal and professional fees EERELER (1,595) - (18) (18) (161) (6,618) (8,410)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

(c)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers
and (i) the Group’s property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, intangible assets and goodwill, (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in the case
of property, plant and equipment and investment properties and
the location of the operation to which they are allocated, in the
case of intangible assets and goodwiill.

GEMBHRME

HEZ—RET-_A=1—HILFE
(VABTTEIIR)

11. 2EHE (8\)
b) HEEHR

TR BBOEEERBINATF B
AR EBENYE  BERERE RED
X BREERBE(BRTHERBDEE])
B iR B o TP AR B R RIBAR AR
BRINEROUEBETE - HEFRDEE
IR BRI EEERMELE (N8
ME BEMRBRIRENE) REDBE
BONE (MBEVEERDE)EE-

Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
SIRBEFEA BEFRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—EB-—XRFE ZT—hF ZB-RFE =T—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TET THET FET
Hong Kong B 129,161 155,378 647,382 602,546
United States of America x 43,134 59,916 - =
Russia 5 22 5 16,681 36,848 - =
Germany = 11,806 7,489 - =
United Kingdom HE 7,537 11,416 - =
Japan =[N 7,714 5,670 - =
Australia BN 4,137 5,691 - -
Canada mex 3,807 5,292 - =
Others (including Mainland China) Hih (B FEHEAM) 39,044 37,029 = =
263,021 324,729 647,382 602,546

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue from one
customer of the Group’s Insurance and MPF Schemes
Brokerage Business Segment represents approximately
HK$44,159,000 of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, no individual customer
contributes over 10% of the total revenue of the Group.

© HERIEEFNEH

BE-_ZT—R"F+-_A=1+—HIFE &
AAEBERE KBTS IS EE DI —
AR P B AG AR B 42U A #944,159,000

BITe
HE_ZT-—RF+_A=+—HILFE I
BEE-XPERBBAEERAKANI0% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEITR)

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BEKAR
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Interest on other loans Ha BT S 33 327
Effective interest on convertible notes AR EENER A 3,264 -
Interest on loan notes EREENFE 19,263 4,990
Other interest expenses HaF B R 2 318
22,562 5,635

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

13. BRBLATEF

BRBIADEME MR, (GHA) -

2016 2015
—B-RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
(@) Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration): B TAA
(RREEH2)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERHMETR 33,103 35,302
Share-based payments (note 40) LARR 9 B ETR & S
(K5E40) - 2,839
Retirement scheme contributions RRETEI K 1,274 1,396
34,377 39,537
(o)  Others items: HMIEE -
Amortisation of intangible assets mEESH 19,524 16,913
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI & 1,500 1,400
Bad debts written off AR 29 =
Depreciation e 2,094 1,299
Fair value gain on investment properties* REWMEANFEE K (8,495) =
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and LEWE  BERZRE
equipment? ek, (EE) 5 92)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AL ESREE
financial assets* B E B 11,914 1,309
Impairment loss on goodwill* EEEREL SN 30,000 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets* | A EREBE 995 5,946
Impairment loss on trade receivables B S RURFRERRE 161 206
Operating lease charges: KEREBRA:
Minimum lease payments KA E K5
— hire of office premises — HERAEYWE 6,349 4,467
Reversal of commission clawback provision BeEebmEE (1,585) (1,282)

# included in other gains and losses
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(@)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents:

#
(ABTTHIR)

GEMBHRME

14. FIEHAX

2016 2015
—E—ARE —ZE—NIF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Current tax B HTIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENEH
Provision for the year (note (i) AN E A (BT EE®)) 11,665 26,819
Over-provision in respect of prior year BEFEBEEE (1,272) (1,581)
— Withholding tax (note (ii)) —TEMF (P EE (i) ) 181 124
10,574 25,362
Deferred tax (note 35(a)) IEERTE (M 5E35() ) 19,002 (1,422)
29,576 23,940

Note (i): The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries in which
the Group operates based on existing legislation, interpretation
and practices in respect thereof.

Note (ii): Withholding tax regarding the external sales for which customers
are located outside Hong Kong, is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in relevant countries.

FEE() -

EIOE

BENERBHE I AF R 5T
Bl MR E16.5%:H -

BINHBARMBIEIRBEAEEEE
FERBRERNREED  2EREDIR
RIITEMO B RGTE -

i 34 T 7 B4 5 5 17 90 .4 85
#RENBRRABBRATERN
Bk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEIT)

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. FABHAX (&)

152

() The reconciliation between income tax expense and the product (o)  Fr15% 5 S B kR % Al s A 3R DA @ A B R 15
of profit before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates as 2 ¥BRIAT
follows:
2016 2015
— N —hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Profit before taxation B 75 A A 64,570 117,363
Notional tax expense on profit before taxation, — #2 %% %&16.5%x+E 894 51 Al
calculated at the rate of 16.5% A B EBIERAY 10,654 19,365
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BARBIU AR TIS 72 (2,006) (1,357)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 1~ AT $1 sl B s 89 ¢ 76 52 28 13,839 5,842
Tax effect of share of loss of associates EhEE R R BB NG E 915 8
Tax effect of share of loss of a joint venture EE—HeEEEEDN
Bz e 1 _
Tax effect of temporary differences AERERHEENTBEE
not recognised 3,429 212
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised < &) f R R T A EIE R
MGFE 5,688 1,860
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not BAATARERTIEEEN
previously recognised Bz a (1,850) (530)
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE (1,272) (1,581)
Withholding tax TERR 181 124
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MEARTRBENTE 3) @)
Income tax expense FRS TR 52 29,576 28,940
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE-_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BABTTEIT)
15. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 15. BEHHMA L
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2015: one) is a RAEZERRFTMALTH HF—R(ZFT—HF:
director whose emolument is disclosed in note 16. The aggregate of the —HZ)REZ HEBANMSERME16HE T
emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2015: four) highest paid FABTHNG (CE—RF : NE)ZRaFHMA L
individuals were as follows: BB & 4858
2016 2015
—E-XREF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
Salaries and other emoluments FeREMME 5,447 4,472
Share-based payment (note 40) LARR 9 A EE T 2 A (B 5E40) - 710
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRET IR 90 63
5,687 5,245
The emoluments of the four (2015: four) individuals with the highest ME(ZZ—RF:HE) &aFMATOMEN
emoluments are within the following bands: TR EE :
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AEL
HK$Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 7T 21,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1 1
4 4
No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the highest paid HE_ZT—RErR_Z—RF+-_A=1+—81L
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as FEREEBWESINEREE T I & o 5 0
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31 December ATHERREREMBEAREBE K MBREZA -
2016 and 2015. HIERBBAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_T—"FT-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BABTTEIT)
16. BENEFIT AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. ESTEFRER
(a) Directors’ remuneration @ E=FH
The remuneration of each director was as follows: BFEEHFHOT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

AEARRES (FRAXLARENBLAXY) BECAIERNHE

Salaries,
allowances
and Share based Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary payments scheme 2016
fees in kind bonuses (note 40)  contributions Total
DB
§& 2ER RERHXM ZE-RE
Exhe ENRE s (HzE40) BAGHEIME @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TExT TExT TExT TExT TERT
Executive directors HirEs

Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni BRELE - 1,150 - - 18 1,168
Mr. Xue Qiushi (note (v) EIELE (M) - 342 - - 17 359
Ms. Hung Yvonne (note vi) st () - 6 - - - 6
Mr. Lee Kin Fai (note (vif) TR (i) - 15 - - 1 16

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Ms. Xiao Yiming E-lEat 120 - - - - 120
Professor Chui Tsan Kit (note (i) &4 (ki) 120 - - - - 120
Professor Lee T.S. (note (iv) FREHE (MEWN) 120 - - - - 120
360 1,513 - - 36 1,909
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. BENEFIT AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(@)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

BE_E—RE+-_A=1+—HIFE
(ABTTHIR)

16. EEEANRER (&)

(@

EEHMW (B

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

AEARAES (TRARRARENBRAZE) BRENRERNHE

Salaries, Share
allowances based Retirement
Directors’ and benefits ~ Discretionary payments scheme 2015
fees in kind bonuses (note 40)  contributions Total
IARRAR
He 2ER REBRHZH —Z-1f
EEYiE ENfla B (MiiEr40)  RIRETEIER b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL T T T T T
Executive directors HiTEE

Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni BRExE - 1,106 - 1,420 18 2,544
Mr. Xue Qiushi (note (v)) ENELE (V) - 360 - - 18 378

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Mr. Yip Chi Fai, Stevens (note ()~ E&3844 (HizE() 67 - - - - 67
Ms. Xiao Yiming BBt 105 - - - - 105
Mr. Lam Kit Sun (note (i) A (IR 31 - - - - 31
Professor Chui Tsan Kit (note (i) /2 EEHIR (M) 74 - - - - 74
Professor Lee T.S. (note (iv) ZREHE (W) 38 - - - - 38
315 1,466 - 1420 % 3,297
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEIT)
16. BENEFIT AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. ESEANRER (&)
(continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) @ E=FHFHM (&)
Notes: Bt 5 -
0] Mr. Yip Chi Fai, Stevens resigned as independent non-executive 0] EEBEER-_T—AFNA—BEER
director of the Company on 1 September 2015. RNRIBMIERITESE -
(i) Mr. Lam Kit Sun resigned as independent non-executive director of (ii) MEEER T —RFNMA -+ =H#E
the Company on 23 April 2015. AEARRRBIIFAITES -
(il Professor Chui Tsan Kit was appointed as independent non- (i) BRBEHER _T—AFHA=-+=B%
executive director of the Company on 23 April 2015. ZEARRNRRBILIFRITES -
(iv) Professor Lee T.S. was appointed as independent non-executive (iv) EREHFER_T—RFENA—BHEZT
director of the Company on 1 September 2015. BANRBYIFRITES-
v) Mr. Xue Qiushi resigned as executive director and the chief v) BMELER-_Z—XR"F+=-A+=H#
executive officer of the Company on 13 December 2016. EARRHITES RITHREE -
(vi) Ms. Hung Yvonne was appointed as executive director and the v) HEREBZIR_T-XF+-A+=HA%E
chief executive officer of the Company on 13 December 2016. ZRABERRRRITEST RITHEH -
(vi)  Mr. Lee Kin Fai was appointed as executive director of the Vi) FREBEER-T-—RF+-_A+=8B%
Company on 13 December 2016. EREBERRARMITES -
No emoluments were paid by the Group to any director HE-T—R"FER-T—RF+A=1+—
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as HIEFE - REEWE S EABNE T ER
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31 EEERARFESMARNEENEINAR
December 2016 and 2015, XA SRR B (E
No director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during HE-T—R"FER-T—RF+A=1+—
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. AIEFE SRS SNENXEERET A
{j:z °
(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions, b) EFESENRZ THIEONERER

arrangements or contracts

Save for the New Copyright License Agreement and the B B 7E45(a) K (b) AT il 2 35 iz 4 F&2 B 193 o
acquisition of Boom Max International Limited (‘Boom Max”) as &Y EBoom Max International Limited
mentioned in notes 45(a) and (b), in which Mr. Xue Qiushi (“Mr. ([Boom Max |) 5N RIAITE BFRITIAREL
Xue”), a former executive Director and the chief executive officer BEMELRAE ([BEEE] RZZT—RF+=
who resigned on 13 December 2016, is interested through his A+=HER) B RBERKEMRER BN
35% equity interest in XA REFEFMAR AR (REBRE), BRAA ([AKEBERE]) 235%M 7 - &
no other significant transactions, arrangements and contracts to ARBEEREMES CHETNART
which the Company was a party and in which a director of the FRaT s AR AR EE 4 R AR F E A EM
Company and other director's connected party had a material RRDAERNEREMERRZ S  ZH R
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the ERRHEBERNEE A E R

year or at any time during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$NIl).

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average

GEMBHRME

BT NFt+t-_A=1+—HIFE
(BABTTEIT)

17. RE
EEREERBE-_S—AF+-_A=+—81
FEEMEMBRE (ZE—HE BB -

18. BREF

@ EBREXRF

EREABNTDREAFERRBER A
JRE A g N e B 21T E B AR A IR T 19 AR 3R

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. HICE
2016 2015
—NE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to owners of the Company N2 &#E A A FE(G % 5 & A 1
and earnings for the purpose of calculating FEERERNZF A AT
basic earnings per share 17,092 60,510
’000 ’000
T’ F B
(Restated)
(BEF)
Number of shares RoOEHAE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FA{EsF BB EARZFIH
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings T AR N TS AR X
per share 275,139 143,909
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREAZRF (BI) 6.21 42.05

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in 2015 has
been retrospectively adjusted for the share reorganisation and
rights issue which were completed on 16 June 2016 and 15
February 2017 respectively.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
presented for the year ended 31 December 2016 in respect of
a dilution as the share options outstanding as at 31 December
2016 had no dilutive effect and impact of the convertible notes
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 had anti-dilutive effect.

RIZFB-RENEBRANETIREC
DHMR_FE—RENATARBRZZE—t
F_A+HEBERERERFE-

b) BREBERF

WERHEREE T — R "F+-A=+—HI
FE2INzERERBANELGERET L
AR RAABRZE-_T— X "F+ZA=1+—
HZEARITR BRI B a8 N #E
BT —ARFFTA=Zt+—BZHEKRITE
AHMREBEAEREETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_T—"FT+-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEITR)
18. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 18. BREF (&)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued) b)) BRESER (&)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BREERFDIBRBERNFERRGHEE A
FEAG % ) K2 B 817 & i AR # DN HE T35 AR 21
ATE -

2016 2015
—B-REF —ZE-NI%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Earnings 7
Profit attributable to owners of the Company N2 & A A &G % 5 & A 1
and earnings for the purpose of calculating FTEERERNZT A BT
basic earnings per share 17,092 60,510
’000 ’000
T F B
(Restated)
(BEF)
Number of shares RO HE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A {Est BB EAEF K
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings T AR N TS AR R
per share 275,139 143,909
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares kA LXTXIEE'T%E%%
arising from: Tmka e
Convertible notes ATMREE - 137
Performance shares FKIRH - 2,327
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A1zt B &R EE & F &
for the purpose of calculating diluted T AR INAE I AR
earnings per share 275,139 146,373
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FRREERT (BIWL) 6.21 41.38
The weighted average number of ordinary shares in 2015 has RZT-hFEHERRAMNETIREE D
been retrospectively adjusted for the share reorganisation and ER—_E—RE~NATNABERZZE—t
rights issue which were completed on 16 June 2016 and 15 FZATHBREAMRD EARERE B
February 2017 respectively. FHEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_T—"FT-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BABTTEITR)

19. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 19. HttZ2mEkE

EAFEHMEEPRSEXBEAENTBTE

Tax effects relating to each item of other comprehensive income for the

year:
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZE-hF
Before tax Tax Netoftax Before tax Tax Net of
amount expenses amount amount  expenses tax amount
BRBL AT BRBi 2 BT A BrBitg
€8 BEEX k-] S8 BHEEX ook
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTERT FTExT FTHT FHET FHT
Exchange differences on translation ~ #7 E /&4 B 2 &)
of financial statements of overseas IS RRE £
subsidiaries fE K ZE 95 - 95 30 - 30
Exchange differences reclassified to 5t H & /85N B A
profit or loss on disposal of BE X Z RN B
foreign operations EMNERE (56) = (56) - - -
Fair value (loss)/gain on AELESREE
available-for-sale financial assets REEE (BE)
Wz (22,135) - (22,135) 6,473 - 6,473
Reclassification adjustment to profit ~ BEEIEHHE L REE
or loss on impairment loss on REEERER
available-for-sale financial assets EHEAE 11,914 - 11,914 1,309 = 1,309
(10,182) - (10,182 7,812 - 7,812
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEIT)
20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. ¥ BRERZE
Computer
Leasehold Office  Furniture and hardware and
improvements equipment fixtures software Total
EREHR
HENEEE WAERE BRREE g @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T FAT THT THT
Cost BA
At 1 January 2015 R=ZE-RF—A—H 1,423 347 414 1,936 4,120
Additions RE 390 131 4 590 1,152
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 42(alfi) Wl — R B A 7 (B E42(2) i) ) - 3 = 24 27
Disposals = ©91) (33) ) 47 (176)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 42(d)) HE—FRMBLE (M) (385) (99) (55) (140) (679)
At 31 December 2015 and R-ZZE-RE+-A=+-HBK

1 January 2016 —T-R"E-A-H 1,337 349 395 2,363 4,444
Additions NE 413 86 44 90 633
Acquisition of subsidiaries W R B A A (E426)))

(note 42(a)() 1,758 243 134 = 2,135
Disposals HE - (29) - = (29)
Disposals of subsidiaries (note 42(c)) HERBAE (HF420) (419) (69) (65) (47) (600)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"¥+ZA=+-8 3,089 580 508 2,406 6,583
Accumulated depreciation A HERAEE

and impairment
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-h%f—-A—-AH 240 49 31 792 1,112
Charge for the year KEEZH 508 147 189 455 1,299
Written back on disposals HERERD (49) 23) o) ®) (84)
Written back on disposal of a HE—BMEBELANER

subsidiary (note 42(c)) (Misa2d) (18) (22) (15) (80) (135)
At 31 December 2015 and R-E-Rf+-A=+-Bk

1 January 2016 —Z-x"F-f—H 681 151 201 1,159 2,192
Charge for the year AEETH 1,272 155 203 464 2,094
Written back on disposals HERER - (29) - = 29)
Written back on disposals of HEMBARNER

subsidiaries (note 42(c)) (M420) (109) © ©) (30) (154)
Exchange adjustment EXAR © - - - @
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE

+=A=1-~8 1,842 268 398 1,593 4,101
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+ZA=1-H 1,247 312 110 813 2,482
At 31 December 2015 WZZ-R%+-A=+-H 656 198 194 1,204 2,252
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

GEMBHRME

HE-Z—RETA=1—HILFE
(LABTTEIIR)

21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 21. BREYE

2016 2015

—E—-RE —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT T

At 1 January Wn—A—8H = -
Addition RE = 59,081

Acquisition of subsidiaries (notes 42(b)(i) and (b)) L BE B B A 7

(M 5E42(0)() R (b)) ) 53,905 -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 42(c)(iii)) & — M 2 A (B EE42(0)ii)) - (59,081)
Fair value gains ANEEEKE 8,495 -
At 31 December N+—_B=+—H 62,400 -

Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2016 on
the open market value basis by reference to market evidence of
recent transactions for similar properties by an external independent
professional valuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, in the opinion of director, the

carrying value of the investment property approximated its fair value on
29 December 2015 (date of disposal of the subsidiary).

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-

BREMER T R"ET-A=+—HAINEE
VEEGEME2ERUMEONARZOTIHE
FERARHATEELEER-

HE-Z—AF+-A=+—HLEFE E=R
B REVENREEEER _Z-HF+ A
ZtAB(HEMBARN AR A FEER
2=,

AEBRBETAIREEEHERECRESEEE

cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows: SRIBMBEEMT
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 1,843 =
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFRAF(BREEMF) 1,187 =
3,030 -

At 31 December 2016, operating lease receivables represent rental
receivable by the Group for letting its properties. The lease is negotiated
for an average term of 2 years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms
and do not include contingent rentals.

RIB-RETA=+—H BRKELHEHER
SEARBEREEEMERE 2 ES - K5EEH
SFHHRAME HeRrHEHREE ETE
BRAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-Z—RET_A=t—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEIT)
22. GOODWILL 22, BHE
Corporate
Management Corporate
Solutions and Management
Insurance and L.T. Contract ~ Solutions and L.T.
MPF Schemes Services  Contract Services
Brokerage Business Business Others Others Total
Software Business PEEERR LEEBRR
Business RERERE  HFRREANE  HAEREAMNH
RHER SHHELER ANBBER AHRBER ift it
AP Group
e-Perfect Investment
IT Limited Holdings
Boom Max and (“e-Perfect IT”) Limited (‘AP
its subsidiaries GET Mdream  and its subsidiary Holdings”) and
(collectively Wealth (collectively Wafer Systems its subsidiaries
referred to as Management referred to (Hong Kong) Lujolujo Asia (collectively
“Boom Max Limited (‘GET as “e-Perfect Limited (‘Wafer Limited referred to as
Group”) Mdream”) Group”) HK”) (“Lujolujo”) “AP Group”)
4t
Boom Max EENEERAA Lujolujo BRERAR
ENEAR BEERHE ([BENE  RABRHK(EE) Asia  ([EBERIR
(#:% [Boom EEERAT HAWEAF (48 BRAF Limited ~ HNEAF (58
Max$@)) ([HBE5]) [EEEE]) (TRBER]) (TLujolujo |) [EH5E]) @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FhL FiL Thn FHET TAL FhL
Cost RE
At1 January 2015 R-E-1%-A-H 757,662 865 3,934 20,913 8211 - 791,585
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary LE-BHBARFRILER - - - - (8211) - 8211)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 —RET-A=t-AR
—-R-R 757,662 865 3,034 20,913 - - 783,374
Arising on acquisttion of subsidiaries WHERBARSES
(note 42(a)]) (Mi420a))) = = - - - 4,581 4,581
At 31 December 2016 R=F-AE+-A=1+-H 757,662 865 3,934 20,913 = 4,581 787,955
Accumulated impairment losses
At1 January 2015 257,49 - - - 8211 - 265,707
\Written back on disposal of a subsidiary = > S S 8211) S (8,211)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
257,49 - - - - - 257,49
Impairment loss recognised 30,000 - - - - - 30,000
At 31 December 2016 287,496 S S S o S 287,496
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2016 R-B-XE+=B=1+-H 470,166 865 3,934 20,913 - 4,581 500,459
At 31 December 2015 R-F-RE+ZA=t-H 500,166 865 3,934 20913 - - 525,878

BREBAFEBNRENKBER S EEAREE
AR ERZER AR EHET-

Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the Group’s CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business
calculation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

HE-Z—RETA=1—HILFE
(LABTTEIIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22. GOODWILL (continued) 22. HE (&)

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined on
the basis of their VIU using discounted cash flow method. The key
assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and
turnover during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are
based on long-term average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross
margin and turnover are based on past practices and expectations on
market development.

The Group prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five years with
the residual period using the growth rates as stated below. These rates

BEWENREHETORENR

BeEHETNRESERAAERBESREE
RECREBEEETE -MRRERBENEEZHRRTD
HEEANMBIR K EREYURBAEENE R E%
B NEBRBBRTATL R AR R Zk
T8 B LE o [ BRI 2 ) BE T 0 B SR (E R TR
BREORRTSTE - BREDREREEHET
EBEERENRORAFIHEEERRAE -
HEEMNEREEBDNENBEEPNRTISER
HHEE -

AEEFRGR SRR DERE R EE I
B R SR L 4 B A T LA R 84 BRI ER A B T k5
ERHH RELEYFRBABETHHFHE

do not exceed the average long-term growth rates for the relevant B RF o

markets.

ARtEEReEHETEAEENTI2RRN

Key assumptions used for VIU calculations for each CGU are as follows:

T
Corporate Corporate
Insurance Management Management
and Solutions Solutions
MPF and and Provision of
Schemes LT. Contract I.T. Contract education
Software Brokerage Services Services and training
2016 Business Business Business Business programs
—E-KE hEEE ThEER
RER BRARR BRAERR
Business segment BESE ERNEEH ERREEH RBEEHHEBER
EBDE QS S RExXH BR 7% %75 BR A% %75 EAE &
Boom Max e-Perfect
Group  GET Mdream Group Wafer HK AP Group
Boom Max
£ 285 S Bl B BB EHEE
Gross margin eSS 81.86% 21.99% 43.59% 34% 81.15%
Growth rate BRE 3.28% 3.28% 3.28% 3.28% 3.28%
Discount rate AR IR & 15.13% 17.32% 20.78% 15.43% 12.93%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22,

164

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing
goodwill (continued)

HE-Z—RET_A=t—HILFE
(LABTTEIR)

22 &HE (&)

BEBENRSERENRENR ()

Corporate Corporate
Management  Management

Insurance and  Solutions and  Solutions and Provision of

MPF Schemes I.T. Contract |.T. Contract education
Software Brokerage Services Services and training
2015 Business Business Business Business programs
—T—AF hERERE rRER
Rk BRAIRR BRAIRRK
Business segment REREE BAMBREHN BMBEEH RBHIBER
EBOH R Ba R BR75 2 15 PR 75 R 5 =B
Boom Max e-Perfect
Group  GET Mdream Group Wafer HK AP Group
Boom Max
£H 225 EiEEE BB EE B EE
Gross margin eSS 81.13% 26.82% 46.19% 18.98% N/A i A
Growth rate BRE 3.22% 3.22% 3.19% 3.02%  N/ATEMA
Discount rate ALER & 16.64% 19.95% 17.96% 16.93% N/A T3 A

Due to keen competition in the market and fluctuation in the global
economy for the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has thus
revised its cash flow forecasts for the CGU of Software Business. The
recoverable amount of this CGU is approximately HK$470,166,000
(2015: HK$500,166,000) as at 31 December 2016, which is lower
than the carrying amount of this CGU. The goodwill has therefore
been reduced its carrying amount to its recoverable amount through
recognition of an impairment loss of approximately HK$30,000,000
(2015: HK$NIl) during the year. As this CGU has been reduced to its
recoverable amount, any adverse change in the assumptions used in
the calculation of recoverable amount would result in further impairment
losses.
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BSHABFREEERS At AKEEB
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A YR [l & BE 4 5470,166,000/8 L (ZE— A F
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HE-Alt RAFE BEEERERRERIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

HE-Z—RETA=1—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23.

(LABTTEIIR)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 23. BILEE
Development
costs on computer
and mobile Customer Computer
phone software relationship software
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (b)) Total
ERRABER
BENBARRE EFE% ERRH
(H5E (@) (M= (0)) (P& (o)) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET T THET
Cost B
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—HF—A—H 88,184 11,066 2,826 102,076
Additions through internal BRNPRABRE
development 22,398 - - 22,398
Exchange adjustments R 51 - - 51
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZT—AHF
and 1 January 2016 +ZA=T—HEK
—T-R¥—F—H 110,633 11,066 2,826 124,525
Additions through internal BRNPRABRE
development 28,144 - - 28,144
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RF
+=ZA=1+—H 138,777 11,066 2,826 152,669
Accumulated Rt BERAEEBR
amortisation and
impairment losses
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—FA—H 26,566 461 196 27,223
Amortisation i 15,335 1,107 471 16,913
Impairment loss HEEE 5,946 - - 5,946
Exchange adjustments X AR 27 - - 27
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—h%F
and 1 January 2016 +ZA=+—-Hk
“T-R"¥—-A-H 47,874 1,568 667 50,109
Amortisation B 17,946 1,107 471 19,524
Impairment loss AR 995 - - 995
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RF
+=—A=+—H 66,815 2,675 1,138 70,628
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2016 R-Z—RE
+=A=+-H 71,962 8,391 1,688 82,041
At 31 December 2015 RZT—HEF
+=ZR=+-H 62,759 9,498 2,159 74,416
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(@)

The capitalised development costs for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 represented the expenditure incurred
for developing computer and mobile phone software.

The average remaining amortisation period of the computer and
mobile phone software is four years (2015: four years).

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
development costs on computer and mobile phone software as
at 31 December 2016, having regard to the market conditions
of the Group’s products. These assets are used in the Group’s
Software Business segment. The review led to the recognition
of an impairment loss of approximately HK$995,000 (2015:
HK$5,946,000) for one product (2015: three products) of
computer and mobile phone software that has been recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
management reviewed total cash inflows generated to the Group
from this product for this year and noted nearly no cash inflow
was contributed to the Group by this product. As this product
was no longer expected to generate any future economic
benefits for the Group, the carrying amount of this intangible
asset was fully impaired during the year.

Computer software (the “Software”) and the customer
relationship (the “Customer Relationship”) were acquired
through business combination. The Software are used for the
development of tailor-made programs to the Group’s customers
and the Customer Relationship represents certain contractual
relationship with its existing customers at the date of acquisition
of e-Perfect IT in 2014. These assets are used in the Group’s
Corporate Management Solutions and |.T. Contract Services
Business segment.

The recoverable amounts of the Software and the Customer
Relationship are allocated to CGU of Corporate Management
Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business of e-Perfect Group
(note 22).

As the economic benefits arising from these intangible assets are
totally integrated with the Corporate Management Solutions and
I.T. Contract Services Business, these carrying amounts have
been taken into consideration for the impairment assessment of
goodwill allocated to this segment (note 22).
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4=
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BEEE (&)

(@)

BE—Z2— A FR-Z-AF+-A=+—
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Vi %55§A1¢Fﬁ§_$mﬁtﬁi

B MRBE ARG R EER A
WE(ZE—RFE:HE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24,

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place of incorporation/
registration and operation

HE—Z—

(LABTTEIIR)

24. RMBARNRE

MEEBANT

Particulars of issued and
fully paid up share
capital/ registered capital

Percentage of ownership
interest/ voting power/
profit share

NETZR=+—RIFE

REZE—RE+-A=+—HB FcEEWBQA

Principal activities

B EER BRTRBERE/ FiEfkks/ RrE/
WEDRERE Fed-i HEMERFE AMERABEAL TEER
Direct Indirect
H#E B
Lucky Famous Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
(*Lucky Famous”)
Lucky Famous Limited KBRS ((RBEREE]) 1IREBRET REER
(Lucky Famous | )
Jade Fore Group Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
Jade Fore Group Limited HBEIHS 1R BRIET REEKR
Citi Profit Holdings Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
Citi Profit Holdings Limited RBELES 1IREBRIET REER
Citi Profit Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Money lending
BEHBERAR B REBRIAET BE
Perfect Growth Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 S 100%  Securities investment
EBERAR s 1REBRIET BEHRRE
Supreme Right Development Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
Limited

ERERERAR E 1R EBRIAT Tmyg

Apperience Corporation Cayman Islands 20,666,667 ordinary shares S 50.5%  Inactive
(“Apperience”) of US$20,667

Apperience Corporation eSS 20,666,667/ & 120,667 7T TERZ
([ Apperience | )

Imidea Limited Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares of HK$10 = 65.177%  Development and sales
of software and
provision of toolbar
advertisement

Imidea Limited B 10 EBR10E T REREERHURRRT
ARES

|Obit Limited BvI 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 65.177%  Inactive

[Obit Limited KBRAHE REBRIET EEe%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_T—"FT+-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEIT)

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 24. RHMBARNKRE (&)

Name of subsidiary

Place of incorporation/
registration and operation

Particulars of issued and
fully paid up share
capital/ registered capital

Percentage of ownership
interest/ voting power/
profit share

Principal activities

MR B R R BRTRBERE/ FrakRs/ RAE/
HEARERE REwH HEMERFE RN EAL TEXHK
Direct Indirect
HE B
Both Talent International Limited Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares of HK$10 = 65.177%  Development and sales
(‘Both Talent”) of software and
provision of toolbar
advertisement
EREBERAR ([ER]) B 10k L @AR10% T RERHERTUR
RETARES
Mission Win International Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
Mission Win International Limited ~ RBEZEHE 1REBRIZET REZR
e-Perfect IT Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Provision of corporate
HK$10,000 management
solutions and I.T.
contract services
L 3] 10,000A% & & 10,0007 7T RECEERBRAIRNE
ARHRA DR
e-Perfect Information Technology People’s Republic of China Registered capital and paid up of - 100%  Inactive
(Shenzhen) Company Limited ** (‘PRC") RMB500,000
EEFERE (RINBRRA  HEARANE ([FE]) A RERER TEex
AR #500,0007C
Wafer HK Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of = 100%  Provision of corporate
HK$10,000 management
solutions and
.T. contract services
REEE A 10,0008 % % 10,0007 7T REUCEERBANRRE
MRS KBRS
Perfect Win Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Online shopping business
KIEBRAR B 1REBRIBT BLENER
Wise Cheer Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Online shopping business
BHERAR B 1REBRIBT BLENER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE-_T—"FT-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEITR)

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 24. RHMBARMNKRE (&)

Particulars of issued and
fully paid up share
capital/ registered capital

Percentage of ownership
interest/ voting power/
profit share

Place of incorporation/

Name of subsidiary registration and operation Principal activities

MR B R R BRTRBERE/ FrakRs/ RAE/
HEAREE REHE HEMERFE RN EAL TEXHK
Direct Indirect
HE B
GET Financial Group (International) ~ BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited (“GET Financial Group”)
(Formerly known as “Fast Yield
Holdings Limited”)
BoomER (AR)BRAR  RBRELES 1REBRIET &R
(TE5LR&E])
(Al g [BRERBRAR])
GET Mdream Hong Kong 882,352 ordinary shares of = 51%  Provision of insurance
HK$2,451,790 and MPF schemes
brokerage services
BEES BE 862,352f% & @ k2,451,790 7T RERRIRESHEIEE
R
GET Development Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 - 100%  Inactive
BHERBRAT 3] 100RR & B A% 10078 7T EEEE
Boom Max BVI 100,000 ordinary shares of S 65.177%  Investment holding
US$100,000
Boom Max RBRLEE 100,000/ % 8% 100,000% 7 REZR
Profit Winner International BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Inactive
Corporation
Profit Winner International RBRUHE 1REBRIZET TEax
Corporation
Service Winner Limited (formerly Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
known as “GET Securities
Limited”)
Senvice Winner Limited (3178 [£5 &% 1REBRIBT EE -
ERERRA])
Dragon Oriental Investment Limited ~ BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$100 - 100%  Property investment
(“Dragon Oriental”)
Dragon Oriental Investment Limited  XBREZ#S 1008 & AR 100 7T NERE

(TDragon Oriental |)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_T—"FT+-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEIT)
24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 24, KRB ATIMNERE (&)
Particulars of issued and Percentage of ownership
Place of incorporation/ fully paid up share interest/ voting power/
Name of subsidiary registration and operation capital/ registered capital profit share Principal activities
B ERER BRTRBERE/ FiEkks RorE/
HEARERE REwH HEMERFE RN EAL TEXHK
Direct Indirect
H# B
Million Worldwide Investment BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$100 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“Million Worldwide”)
Milion Worldwide Investment ABELES 100RR & A% 100 7T REER

Limited ( Milion Worldwide |)

Talent Vision Limited (“Talent Vision”) Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Property investment
Talent Vision Limited 0 1REBRIET MERE
([Talent Vision | )
AP Holdings BVI 1,000 ordinary shares of - 51%  Investment holding
US$1,000
BHHER ABERRS 1,0008% & i&@fR1,000% 7T REER
AP Group International Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of B 51%  Investment holding
HK$10,000 and provision of
management service
EHEEBERAR &E 10,0008 & 10,0008 7T REERRRHEERRY
Act Point Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of S 51%  Provision of education
HK$10,000 and training programs
BERFARAR &E 10,0008 & 10,0008 7T R#UHEREIER
Asia Professional Coach Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of S 51%  Provision of education
Association Limited HK$10,000 and training programs
SHEEHRGEERDA &E 1008 & i#7%10,00078 7T R#UHEREIER
* This subsidiary is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC. * ZMBARARBREKIMIINEEERE-
# The English name of this Company is for reference only and has not been RN BRENEBERRERHAKER
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24,

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The summarised
financial information represents amounts before inter-company

eliminations.

GEMBHRME

BE-TAF+-ASt+—AILERE

(LABTTEIR)

24. RMBATNKRE (&)

TRETHEBHASEM S BEANIFZERER
(FFEERERDOMBAREN MBEREE
A RIRHHAT S8

Boom Max Group GET Mdream
Boom Max4 & HEES
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RF —ZE-hF —E-REF —E—REF
Principal place of business/ TEEEWE Hong Kong/BVI Hong Kong/BVI Hong Kong/ Hong Kong/
country of incorporation HMRIER &/ HB e Hong Kong Hong Kong
BLZE#EE BRHE BB/ BB N
% of ownership interests/ FE AR 25 T
voting rights held by NCI EEREER
RREADL 34.82% 34.82% 49% 49%
Financial information is MHBEEREELT:
disclosed as follows:
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET THET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE 71,961 62,759 569 672
Current assets MBAEE 48,134 44,045 17,352 22,847
Current liabilities mEAE (9,937) (3,115) (15,137) (19,890)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (9,084) (3,625) - =
Net assets BEFE 101,074 100,064 2,784 3,629
Accumulated NCI ESE e £ 35,194 34,842 1,364 1,778
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEITR)
24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 24. AMIBARIMKRE (&)
Boom Max Group GET Mdream
Boom Max4£ & BEES
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
HE BE Bz BHE
ZB—XE —T-mF —B-XxE —T—AfF
+=-A=+-H +=ZA=+—-H +=A=+-H +=ZA=+—H
f:3:5 L5E LLEE HEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET TET FHET
Revenue WA 120,259 137,136 69,488 71,368
Profit i A 49,808 66,744 1,154 1,933
Total comprehensive income THR=BE 49,808 66,744 1,154 1,933
Profit allocated to NCI EARTIER
1 2 0 i 17,343 23,240 565 947
Dividends paid to NCI B T IEER
BaRmk e (17,430) (22,663) (980) =
Net cash generated from LEEBHE, (FTA)
/used in) operating activities ReFE 74,887 42,629 6,057 (21,445)
Net cash used in investing RETBMARSFE
activities (28,154) (22,391) (289) (224)
Net cash used in financing BETEMARSFE
activities (42,292) (30,342) = =
Net increase/(decrease) in RekREEEBY
cash and cash equivalents g/ ORd) FaE 4,441 (10,104) 5,768 (21,669)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

HEZ—RET-_A=1—HILFE
(VABTTEIIR)

25. RBEQATNRE

2016 2015
—E-XAE —ZE-Nh%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
Unlisted investments in Hong Kong: RBEBHIELTIRE

Cost of investments in associates /NS B S =Y BN 40,290 3,879

Share of post-acquisition (loss)/profits and iR EER (B18) 55 &
other comprehensive income Ef2mEmiias (1,351) 17,021
38,939 20,900

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

T

Percentage of
ownership interest/

AEBR-_ZE—RE+_A=+—HHEZEAA

Place of Issued and paid voting power/
Name incorporation up capital profit sharing Principal activities
FEERER
RIRE DEBEF
£ & B 3L th B ERITRARRAE Aotk FEEEK
Jun Yang Solar Power Cayman Islands 35,566 ordinary shares 35% Investment holding
Investment Holdings Limited of US$35,566
(“Jun Yang Solar”)
EEREREERER AT FEHE 35,5661% 35% wEER
([BBRE]) L i 1% 35,5663 T
Wink Sky Company Limited BVI 1ordinary share of 35% Investment holding
US$1
BERERAT EBREAHS 1R E BRI 3B% WEERK
Jun Yang Solar Power Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 35% Investment holding
Investment Limited HK$1
EEXERERBRAA 0 1A% E A1 T 3B% WEERK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-Z—RET-_A=+—HILFE
(LABTTEIIR)

25. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 25, REERRNKRE (&)

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

REER T —ARFT+T_A=T—HHBERF

(continued) BT (F)
Percentage of
ownership interest/
Place of Issued and paid voting power/
Name incorporation up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ks
RRE D EREF
1B o {1 AR SZ st B ERTRAZRE Batt FEEXR
ItREGREBR AT PRC Registered capital of 35%  Investment holding
US$55,000,000
(of which
US$40,000,000
has been paid up)
IEREGREBRQE" H ERlIE= 3B% KEER
55,000,000 7T
(#+40,000,000% 7T
BE#R)
EEBENARAR PRC Registered and 35%  Operation of
paid up capital of amorphous silicon
US$3,400,000 thin-film solar
photovoltaic power
station
MEEBENERAR" i T R R E AR 35% EIERIEHEERKLS
3,400,000% 7T BELIRE UL
HEEBBEHERRAR" PRC Registered and 35%  Operation of solar
paid up capital of photovoltaic power
RMB20,000,000 station
HEEGENERAA" A T R R E AR 3B5% KEKNGEEHIREL
AR #20,000,0007T
HEHAERERA A" PRC Registered and 35%  Operation of
paid up capital of amorphous silicon
RMB38,167,939 thin-film solar
photovoltaic power
station
R ARIKRBERL A" i A RERERARE 35% EIERIEHEERKLS
38,167,9397T BELIRE UL

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

HE-Z—RET-A=1—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

(LABTTEIR)

25. RBEQTNKRE (&)

REER T —ARFT_A=T—HHBERF

(continued) BT (F)
Percentage of
ownership interest/
Place of Issued and paid voting power/
Name incorporation up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ks
RRE D REF
1B o {1 AR SZ st B ERTRAZRE Batt FEEXR
Rongcheng Jijun Power Co., Ltd.® PRC Registered capital of 35%  Operation of
US$6,000,000 amorphous silicon
(of which thin-film solar
US$4,000,000 photovoltaic power
has been paid up) station
BREBESNHBERAR" H ERlIE=Z 35% K EIEREHEBRKLS
6,000,0003 7T BEIRE L
(£ 714,000,000% 7T
BE#R)
Jining Junyang Electric Power PRC Registered capital of 35%  Operation of
Co., Ltd.® US$17,520,000 amorphous silicon
(of which thin-film solar
US$5,520,000 photovoltaic power
has been paid up) station
BEEBENHERAR" i ERlIE=Z 3B% KEFREHFRKS
17,520,0003 7T BELIRE UL
(£ 5,520,000 7T
BE#R)
Longkou Jijun Power Co., Ltd.® PRC Registered capital of 35%  Operation of
US$6,000,000 amorphous silicon
(of which thin-film solar
US$2,200,000 photovoltaic power
has been paid up) station
EOHBESHERAR i ERlIE=Z 3B% KEFREHFRKS
6,000,000 7T BELIRE UL
(£ 2,200,000 7T
BE#R)
* The associates are wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in PRC. * ZEBERNRBRPREK IO EBEERE-
# The associates are a sino-foreign equity joint venture in PRC. E ZEBMERNBAPEPINEGERT
e The English name of this Company is for reference and has not been e ZAR RN EBEEDEREAREHER -
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table show, in aggregate, the Groups’ shares of the
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are accounted for
using the equity method.

B

(LABTTEIIR)

25. RBEQTNKRE (&)

TRIR AN B A5 P A (2 A s R A BR A B
TEEHERBCRNELRL -

2016 2015
—E—XAE —ZE—NI%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
At 31 December: R+=B=+—8:

Carrying amounts of interests EmEAE 38,939 20,900

Year ended 31 December: BE+-—A=1+—HLEFE:
Loss for the year KEFEEEE (5,550) (51)
Other comprehensive income Hp 2wk - -
Total comprehensive income 2HEREREE (5,550) (51)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group held 49% equity interest in Dragon
Oriental and accounted for the investment as an associate. On 29
March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to acquire additional 51% equity interest of Dragon Oriental at a cash
consideration of HK$17,340,000. Completion of the acquisition took
place on 31 March 2016 and Dragon Oriental then became a subsidiary
of the Company (note 42(b)(ii)).

As at 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances of the
Group’s associates in the PRC denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”)
amounted to HK$24,510,000 (2015: HKS$Nil). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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Oriental 49% R IEW E BIEE AR ZIRE R ZF
—NEZAZThB AEETUEERHEUES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

GEMBHRME

BE-T—AFT-A=—AILEE
(RBTTHIR)

26. R—BEEELENKRE

2016 2015
—EB—REF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Unlisted investment in Hong Kong: RBEBIELTRE :
Share of net assets FEIE & EFE - -
Details of the Group’s joint venture at 31 December 2016 is as follows: R-E—RE+-_A=1+—"BAEEEE %Y
FEIBIATN
Percentage of
ownership
interest/ voting
Place of Issued and power/ profit
Name incorporation paid up capital sharing Principal activities
FrEEER
TR/ D1k
28 1A% 37 3 2 ERTRAZRAE BB FTEEK
Creative Lead Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 50% Not yet commenced
(“Creative Lead”) of HK$10,000 business
BIEBRAF B8 10,000/% 50% AR
(I&%l) 3% 1%10,0007% 7T
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the TRINRAEBEGFTEFAEREZARNER)
amounts of all individually immaterial joint venture that is accounted for TEEAEPESTENER.
using the equity method.
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—AhF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 31 December R+=—B=+—8
Carrying amounts of interest = REE = =
Year ended 31 December BEt+-HA=1t—HLEE
Loss for the year FEEE (5) -
Other comprehensive income EMa2mEilas - -
Total comprehensive income 2HREREE (5) =
The Group has not recognised loss for the year amounting to HK$2,625 AEBRAERBXFANER26258T(ZF
(2015: HK$NIl) for Creative Lead. The accumulated losses not —HF :TET) - WARRREER2,625%8 T

recognised were HK$2,625 (2015: HK$NIl).

SE-REEBT)
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27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-Z—RET-A=1t—HILFE
(VABTTEIR)

27. AHHESHEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—NhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T

Listed investments, at fair value BAFEEFEN LTRE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong RER EMHRAE 5 87,120 120,103
Unlisted investment funds FLEMBEES 8,361 30,613
Unlisted equity securities I AR 5 - 1,309
95,481 152,025
Impairment BB (11,914) (1,309)
83,567 150,716

Analysed as: AMAATIER :

Non-current assets EMBEE 83,567 150,716

The fair values of listed securities are based on current closing prices
in the Stock Exchange. The fair values of the unlisted investment
funds have been determined by reference to the quotation provided
by the administrators of the investment funds on the reporting date.
The directors believe that the estimated fair values provided by the
administrators of the investment funds are reasonable, and that is the
most appropriate value at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2016, loss on fair value change in the investments
of approximately HK$22,135,000 (2015 gain: HK$6,473,000) were
recognised in other comprehensive income and reflected in the
investment revaluation reserve.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, included in the fair value
loss on available-for-sale financial assets were fair value loss arisen
from investments in shares of Capital VC Limited of approximately
HK$5,700,000 and in an unlisted investment fund, Hydra Capital SPC,
of approximately HK$6,214,000 which were determined to be impaired
and the cumulative losses totalling approximately HK$11,914,000
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve was reclassified to
profit or loss.
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ETRESFHATFEEDREEIARITRHERE
E-LTRAEESHNATEED2EREES
EEARNRE B BRENRENEE - EFAE
REESERAMEHRNEFTAFEEBSSE
RBERRAREENEE-

R-T—RE+-A=+—8 REMbZEKZE
PHERIRE N T EEE B E1E422,135,000% T
(ZZT—AFUW:6,473,00087T) WRIREE
A Rk o

BHE-_ZT—A"E+_-_A=1+—HItEE A#dH
EeRMEERATFEEBBREAMEIRERAR
N —R3E LR E E 4 Hydra Capital SPCHI M5
& P E £ N T EEEE 5 745,700,000 7T &
#16,214,0008 70 - BEE ABFURE  MANRESE
hRET R REEES 1£411,914,000% 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27.

28.

GEMBHRME

BE-TAF+-ASt+—AILERE
UXBTFIR)

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 27. AEHEESHEE (F)
(continued)
On 31 October 2015, the completion date of deemed disposal of RZE—RAF+A=+—8 (ERAHELuolujo
Lujolujo, the Group classified the fair value of the retained 12.83% RISERK B ER) - 2K 5 B #5 R LujolujoFTIR 8812.83%
interests in Lujolujo as available-for-sale financial assets (note 42(d)). BN ATEE EATHTEESREE (Mt
As at 31 December 2015, the directors believed that the carrying 42(d)) M —ZE—HF+-_A=+—H EEH
value of Lujolujo may not be recoverable due to the adverse financial 12 Lujolujo BR A 1B 3k & A B 75 AR 5 S 7 dn 7~
performance. The carrying value of Lujolujo of approximately AT YA © Lujolujoi H 8 £1,309,0007%8 T E & F
HK$1,309,000 was determined to be impaired and the cumulative loss BERE MREEEHFEETHRITERY
of approximately HK$1,309,000 accumulated in investment revaluation 1,309,000 T EEF D EE B
reserve was reclassified to profit or loss.
At 31 December 2016, available-for-sale financial assets with carrying RZE—R"F+_A=+—H FEEREHA
amount of approximately HK$40,441,000 (2015: HK$110,375,000) has 40,441,000/ 7T (—Z— A4 : 110,375,000/ 7T )
been charged in favour of brokerage firms as collateral for the Group’s MAIHHESRMEED KT TRLTERTEE
liabilities in respect of its margin trading accounts. RERBZEEZIRFPAPRABNER® -
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Hong Kong At ESREENETIIE
dollars.
INVENTORIES 28. 78
2016 2015
—E—-REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
Finished goods SURK Gh 1,802 2,009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEITR)
29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. ESREMEWRRIE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
Trade receivables (notes 29(e) and (f)) B 5 FE YR 3K (Bt 3E29(e) & (f) ) 37,899 79,268
Allowance for doubtful debts (note 29(b)) RERE M (H7E290)) (304) (206)
37,595 79,062
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR IR ke R E b EURFRIE
(note 29(g)) (BtEE29(g) ) 17,430 10,000
Amounts due from brokers FEMAE 42 3B 4,029 7,318
Amounts due from non-controlling interests of FE U — BB A R SEIE AR
a subsidiary (note 29()) ez K R IE (B &E29(h) ) 45 217
Amount due from a joint venture (note 29(h)) ER—EAEERIE
(Pt 5E29(h) ) 1,249 =
60,348 96,597
Analysed of trade and other receivables as follows: B REMBUGKBELNWAT
2016 2015
ZE-RE —E-0F
Non-current Current Non-current Current
assets assets Total assets assets Total
FREBEE REBEE Wit ERDEE MBEE Wt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TR TR TAT TAT TAT

Trade receivables B RN 6,000 31,595 37,595 24,960 54,102 79,062

Prepayments, deposits and BRFE EER
other receivables H YR - 17,430 17,430 = 10,000 10,000
Amounts due from brokers AR 43 FRIE - 4,029 4,029 = 7,318 7,318

Amounts due from non-controling  fEUR —FE K1 B 1A 7
interests of a subsidiary FERERR TR - 45 45 - 217 217
Amount due from a joint venture  JEM—EAZ > EFA - 1,249 1,249 = = =
6,000 54,348 60,348 24,960 71,637 96,597
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)

HEe—T—

4=

GEMBHRME

NETZA=1+—HIFE

(VABTTEIIR)

20. ESREMBYRRE (&)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables @ EBIZEWRRIIRERD T
According to the credit rating of different customers and service BETRZEF RRBHERREETR A
providers, the Group allows credit periods ranged from O to 90 EEGATHEZIEFPHNEEHNT0E0H
days (2015: 0 to 90 days) to its trade customers. Further details —E—AF:0890R) BFHRAEEEFEE
on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 6(c). BUR B3 — S B R T 5E6(0)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for B SRR (TR REEEEE) BRET
impairment loss) based on due date is as follows: HIAMRER ST
2016 2015
—EB-RE —ZE—NO%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Not due A8 HR 31,458 70,025
Less than 1 month past due B H A {E A 1,331 3,067
1 to 3 months past due BEE3MEA 3,928 2,693
More than 3 months but less than B HA R E3ME A8 1218 A
12 months past due 749 1,860
Over 12 months past due mEER12ME A 129 1,417
6,137 9,037
37,595 79,062
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables directly (see note 4(y)).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews trade
receivables for evidence of impairment on both individual and

collective basis.

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables

BE-T A=A+ HIFE

(LABIEBIT)

29. B RHEMERKIE (K)

(b) 5B ARE

BRI 5 R R AR TR E A
BRI B IR E B A E R ]
Bt TR ERERT A EE RS EE
.5 15 WOR R 55 (R4 ©
REREMA  AREBRTEHERERE
TEHRARREEE

B2 R R B R

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-NI%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHIT

At 1 January ®n—A—H 206 -
Allowance for the year NEZRE 304 206
Reversal of allowance for the year FREBERE (143) -
Amounts written off 1% & 58 (63) -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 304 206

(c) Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired

As of 31 December 2016, the ageing analysis of the Group’s
trade receivables that are past due but not impaired is as follows:

© CEBERBRENESEHRERR

RZB—RF+ZA=+—H Fr&EED®
HAE R OB (B ) & 55 FE U BR SR BR e o0 AT 40

T~

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Less than 1 month LR1E A 1,331 3,067
1 to 3 months 12318 A 3,928 2,693

More than 3 months but less HBiE3fE A E L 121E A
than 12 months 749 1,860
Over 12 months HBid12E A 129 1,417
6,137 9,037
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(©

(d)

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
(continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers and service providers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

Currency denomination of trade receivables

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

GEMBHRME

BE_E—RE+-_A=1+—HIFE
(ABTTHIR)

20. ESREMBYRRE (&)

(©

(d)

EEMERBENE S BUIIRR (&)

EAHERRENEKRFBREREES S
BERMCHNBIES RREHEEERS
Mo RIAELR BEEREHARZS
ERERRERE REAEEERITES
REE) MRFEHDTE AT 2E8EME -

B RUARREBEN

REEE S EBEROREENA T EE
e :

2016 2015

—E—RE —ZE-N%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

HK$ BT 25,498 63,912
uss$ EIT 11,020 14,360
Japanese yen =] 1,077 790
37,595 79,062
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
() Loan receivables

As of 31 December 2016, included in the Group’s trade
receivables were loans to customers of approximately
HK$11,673,000 (2015: HK$49,356,000) for the Money Lending
Business. The detailed analysis of loan receivables is as follows:

HE-ZT—RET-_A=+—HILFE
(LABTTEIIR)

20. ESREMBYRRE (&)
€ EBRER
RZZE—RF+-A=+—0 A&EENHE
SIS EEREREEBREPERY

11,678,0007% 7t ( == — F £F : 49,356,000
BIL) c RIRERFAINIT :

Secured Unsecured Total
BHEA B A @it
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“B-Af  CZT-0F ZR-Rf C-T-RF  -B-R"E AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET TER AT TER TET
Current ENER 5,484 12,684 189 11,712 5,673 24,396
Non-current JEBNER 6,000 24,675 - 285 6,000 24,960
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 11,484 37,359 189 11,997 11,673 49,356

As at 31 December 2016, the loan receivables of approximately
HK$11,484,000 was secured by unconditional and irrecoverable
corporate guarantees provided by an independent third party or
personal guarantees granted by a director of a subsidiary of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2015, the loan receivables of approximately
HK$22,012,000 were secured by the collaterals. The remaining
balance of approximately HK$15,347,000 was secured by
unconditional and irrecoverable personal guarantees granted by
the borrowers’ directors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Due from contract customers

As of 31 December 2016, included in the Group’s trade
receivables was amounts due from contract customers of
approximately HK$1,298,000 (2015: HK$221,000) for Corporate
Management Solution and I.T. Contract Services Business.
Detailed analysis of the amounts due from contract customers is
as follows:

HEe—T—

4=

GEMBHRME

NETZR=+—RHIEFE

(VABTTEIIR)

20. ESREMBYRRE (&)

(

FEWE K% F IR

R-E—ARE+-_A=+—H A5£EHN
BIRKRERBIERCEEERRAIRR
BABBRAENRBEBELENE P RE
491,298,000/ 7T ( = ZF — A 4 : 221,000/
T) cERAENEFERBEFHADTET

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—NI%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BELEES KA MES
profits less recognised losses to date B #ER0R AR B RS A 2,273 6,840
Less: Progress billings IR (975) 6,619)
1,298 221
Amounts due from customers for AHTIREREREFPHIE
contract work 1,298 221

No advances received in respect of service contracts at 31
December 2016 (2015: HK$NIl).

Other loan receivables

As of 31 December 2016, included in the Group’s prepayments,
deposits and other receivables was loan to GEO Finance
Limited, the former subsidiary of the Group, of approximately
HK$7,545,000 (2015: HK$Nil). The loan was secured by
unconditional and irrecoverable personal guarantee given by a
director of a subsidiary of the Company, interest bearing at 11%
per annum and repayable on 31 December 2017.

Amounts due from non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary/a joint venture

The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and with no fixed
repayment terms.

(@

(h)

RZB-—RFTZA=+—RLERRSE
BHRBBR(ZF—RF TET) -

Hitb B &K

BHE-_Z—XNE+-_A=+—8 &x&E
BARE R REMERKFBERERT
AEBAMBRARE SR FHBEERAA
ZEFHIT 5450008 (ZE—RHF : TF
L) X EREAARMB AR —REEIR
7 EAR R A AR E A REEF - &
BI%EMRFBLBAR T —+F+=
A=+—REE-

]

FEW— BB AR MR RS E

EFIE

EREFEREERN 2R BEEEERS
MR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30.

186

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

B

(LABTTEIIR)

30. EBEZUQNTFEEIIRNERMEE

2016 2015
—E—ARE —ZE—NI%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FA&T

Equity securities held for trading, at fair value BATFEEAENREE LTH
Listed in Hong Kong BIEEERARFES 523,899 323,082

Analysed as: AWAATIER :

Current assets mEBEE 523,899 323,082

The investments represent listed equity securities investments that offer
the Group the opportunity for return through dividend income and fair
value gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. The fair values
of listed securities are based on market prices at the end of reporting
period.

At 31 December 2016, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss with carrying amount of approximately HK$146,770,000 (2015:
HK$319,418,000) has been charged in favour of a brokerage firm
as collateral for the Group’s liabilities in respect of its margin trading
account.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31.

GEMBHRME

HEZ—RET-_A=1—HILFE
(VABTTEIIR)

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 31. EWHARKE
The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable represented the EYRSAREZATFEBEEEREEZE S —RF
profit guarantee in relation to the adjustments to the consideration for +ZA=+—HBLEFEREEBHER (K F42(a)
the acquisition of AP Holdings (note 42(a)()) during the year ended 31 () 2REZREER 2 HEFER (FEER T XM
December 2016 as detailed in note (i) below. Contingent consideration ) W AREBERREARIEZRATFEEF
receivable is measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period. 2 BRHARBAFEEZESHIT
The movement of the fair value of contingent consideration receivable is
as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—ARF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
At fair value: RATEE:
At beginning of the year REH] = =
Avrising from acquisition of subsidiaries W BB BB A RIFTEE &
(note 42(a)(i) (M sE42(0)()) 17,593 =
Fair value change NEEBEE 1,117 -
At end of the year RER 18,710 =

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered in
relation to the acquisition of AP Holdings, in the event that
the audited consolidated profit after tax of AP Group for the
period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017 is less
than HK$16,000,000, the vendor shall, and the guarantor shall
procure the vendor to, pay to the Group the adjustment amount
(the “Adjustment Amount”) in accordance with the formula set
out below:

A = HK$20,400,000 — (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Where:
“A” means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HKS.

“NP” means the net profit for the period from 1 January 2016 to
31 December 2017. Where the NP is a negative figure, NP shall
be deemed to be zero.

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable as at 1
July 2016 (date of acquisition of AP Holdings) and 31 December
2016 are based on the valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer using discounted cash flow approach.
At 31 December 2016, a fair value gain of approximately
HK$1,117,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

()  REREEEHERIT2EERE  WE
HEER T RF-A—HEE_T—+t
FT_A=Z+—H I HBZEEXGRTE
iR & M 4 7016,000,0008 7T RIIE J5 I
ERABEREETRETRAXAAREE
AR E([HESER])

A = 20,400,000/ 7 (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Hep
[AlfEETHEZ AESBR 2 BE-

NP B =F—~E—A—ARE-F
—tE+ = A=+ BBz ERFE
8 99 4 2 1 U R AR A

RZT—R"FLA—HB (WEEHHERA
HYR-—_TE—RE+-A=+—RH Rk
RREZAFEBEDRIEE L EZEGEM
HEITNGHAEFEABRRRSREAFEL R
T-—RNF+ZA=1+—H REEEBERA
RAFBEREZEL,117,0008 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32.

188

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

HE-Z—RET_A=t—HILFE
(LABTTEIR)

32, BEFRTERURRERREEEY

2016 2015

—E—ARE —ZE—NIF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHEIT

Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHEH 87,350 214,277
Pledged bank deposits BIKIFRITER 2,638 2,633
89,988 216,910

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s pledged bank deposits represented
deposits of approximately HK$2,638,000 (2015: HK$2,633,000)
which were pledged to banks to secure banking facilities to the extent
of HK$2,500,000 (2015: HK$2,500,000) granted to the Group. The
deposits included approximately HK$622,000 (2015: HK$621,000) and
HK$2,016,000 (2015: HK$2,012,000) which are denominated in US$
and HK$ respectively. The deposits are interest bearing at fixed rates
from the range of 0.05% to 0.3% (2015: 0.05% to 0.5%) per annum.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had available undrawn banking
facilities of approximately HK$2,902,000 (2015: HK$2,359,000).
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1717 AR T R1T A 1F 5 492,638,000 7T (=
T —FF:2,633,00087L)  tEBALEERERE
2,500,000/ 7t ( =& — A 4F : 2,500,000/ 7t ) iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

GEMBHRME

HE-Z—RETA=1—HILFE
(LABTTEIIR)

32. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH  32.

33.

EQUIVALENTS (continued)

The pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents of the

Group are denominated in the following currencies:

EEARTERARRERASEEY

(#®)

FEBNBEERRTEFINARRAE RS EEY
ARSI E#E5IME :

2016 2015

—E—ARE —ZE—NI%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

uss EH 44,800 56,620
RMB AR 618 634
HK$ BT 44,570 159,656
89,988 216,910

As at 31 December 2016, bank balances of the Group denominated
in RMB amounted to approximately HK$568,000 (2015: HK$597,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale

and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

RZE—RNF+-A=+—B AEEUARE
HIE R ERTT 4582 40 A568,000/8 0 (Z T —AF:
597,000 7T) ° 1§ AR ¥E KRR HNE R IEF
INEERRIEHI RLEE - EERMNEEERTET

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. BEZRHMEMSRIE
2016 2015
—B-RF —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables Z 5 BRI 5,016 19,201
Deferred income PEIEU A 3,889 1,247
Amounts due to non-controliing interests FET BB & R FE#E AR
of subsidiaries (note 33(d)) Wz K 5K T8 (B #E33(d)) 3,972 1,332
Loan notes interest payables ERERERFE 4,983 4,990
Accrued expenses and other payables (note 33(c))  FEAH B B K E it & 1<t 718
(KI5E33(c)) 26,902 26,596
44,762 53,366
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(@)

BE-T—X

(LABTTEIR)

FHoA=T—ALEE

33. ESREMEBARE (&)

Ageing analysis of trade payables @ EBIZEMSERRVIRERIN
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of B S RMNEREFIRBEIRE R, RSB EH
receipt of goods/services, is as follows: BREC AT :
2016 2015
—®-xF  —T-uf
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Less than 3 months D 3(E A 2,399 10,338
More than 3 months but less than 12 months ~ #2:@31@ A 18 > 121& A 1,847 8,863
More than 12 months BiE1218 A 770 -
5,016 19,201
Currency denomination of trade payables b) ESEMNERFNEE(

(b)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

AEBEEZEMNERNEEERATES

denominated in the following currencies: B -
2016 2015
—E—XRE —ET—HRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT FHTT
uss$ £ 3,049 7,441
HK$ BT 1,967 11,760
5,016 19,201

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(©

(d)

HEe—T—

4=

GEMBHRME

NETZR=+—RIFE

(LABTTEIIR)

33. ESREMEBARE (&)

Commission clawback provision () FHeEmEE
As of 31 December 2016, included in accrued expenses RZZE—XRE+-_A=1+—8 ~EBEEF
and other payables of the Group was commission clawback B A & E b FE A SR TE B IR R R B M oa AR
provision on the Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage B ET B 42 15 00 (A & B #5785 4929,000
Business of approximately HK$29,000 (2015: HK$1,900,000). Bt (ZZ— AR :1,900,000/8 7T) - A&
The commission clawback provision represents expected cash ElfEEATBRRSRL  MBEHRER
outflows which are estimated with reference to the sales volume, Th2EEE BFEMNBAEKEUARESHE
past experience of the levels of clawback, and the directors’ best BEEMEASNREGTREFSH -E
estimates of the expenditure required to settle the obligations. EEREEARNEEREESEGRMAG
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised Ao
by the directors where appropriate.
The movement in commission clawback provision is as follows: BeE/BEHESMT
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—ARF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
At 1 January ®n—A—H 1,900 4,500
Reversal of provision in prior years BB T F S (1,585) (1,282)
Utilisation during the year KEEBHH (286) (1,318)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 29 1,900
Amounts due to non-controlling interests of d) EAMBARFZERESZNRE

subsidiaries

At 31 December 2016, the amounts due are unsecured, interest
free and with no fixed repayment terms.

At 31 December 2015, the amounts due are unsecured, interest
bearing at 9% per annum and with no fixed repayment terms.

RZZE—ARF+ZA=+—8 AEENX
BEREEA - PR R HEE T ERE -

RZZB-—RF+A=+—H BAERMRK

AAEER RENRE LAY EEE
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

34.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 31 December 2015 upon completion of the acquisition of additional
14.677% interest in Boom Max, the Company issued zero coupon rate
convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$75,208,000 to vendors as partial consideration for the acquisition at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.3 per conversion share (as adjusted
to HK$1.5 per conversion share after the 2016 Capital Reorganisation
(as defined below) becoming effective on 24 May 2016 and subject
to further adjustment(s)). The maturity date of the convertible notes is
the date falling two years after the issue date of 31 December 2015.
Noteholders shall have the right to convert the notes into ordinary
shares at any time during the conversion period. If any amount due
under the convertible notes is not paid when due, at the Company’s
sole discretion, such amount shall be redeemed by the Company by
issue and delivery by the Company of a promissory note in favour of the
noteholder(s) in the principal amount equal to 100% of such amount
together with interest accrued on the overdue sum at the rate which
is the lower of (i) HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum and (i) 4% per annum,
and will be due to mature on the first anniversary date of the issue of
the promissory note. At any time prior to the maturity date, at the sole
discretion of the Company, the Company may cancel and redeem
such amount outstanding under the convertible note at 100% of such
outstanding amount. The terms and conditions of the convertible notes
are summarised in the Company’s announcements dated 13 August
2015 and 16 September 2015 and the Company’s circular dated 23
November 2015.
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34.

TRERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

GEMBHRME

BT NFt+t-_A=1+—HIFE
(LABTTEIT)

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method until distinguished on conversion. The effective interest
rate of the liability component on initial recognition is 4.7% per annum.

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible notes
at 31 December 2016 is approximately HK$70,283,000 (2015:
HK$68,525,000). This fair value has been calculated by discounting
the future cash flows at market interest rate (level 2 fair value
measurements).

The derivative component is measured at its fair value at the date
of issue and at the end of each reporting period. The fair values are
estimated using binomial model (level 3 fair value measurements).

The fair value of the liability component and derivative component of the
convertible note were estimated by an independent professional valuer.

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 34. TERKRERE (E)
The convertible notes contain equity component, liability component ARBREBEOEERBY BBEBI RITETA
and derivative component which have been split as follows: 7o D RIEINAT :
Equity Liability Derivative
component component component Total
R HD 8E&ERS TETABS Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FTHAT TR FHT
Convertble notes at date of issue 87T HE 2 AT R Z &
and at 31 December 2015 and RZZT—HF
1 January 2016 +T-A=+—8k
—E-—x5—-A—H 05,555 68,525 (21,564) 72,516
Effective interest expenses FRNERMERZ
for the year - 3,264 - 3,264
Fair value loss N EERE - - 20,605 20,605
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+ZA=1+— 25,555 71,789 (959) 96,385
Fair value at 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+=A
=+—HHRFEE - 70,283 (959) =
Fair value at 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+=A
=+ —HHRFEE = 68,525 (21,564) =
The liability component of convertible notes was initially stated at fair RBREREHBEIH T EAFEET)

IR HRABRAZOXIZBHER A E &

ERBMET TR - BEND NS HERE
M EREMNER[LTE -
AHERERESOR T —RET A

=+—AMRFEEL AE70,283,000/ 7T
(ZZ—F 5 :68,525,00087T) ° th A F(E
BEEBRIEMSHEEBERRAERE (F
ZHRAFEEFE)FESL -

PTHETEH 1%FX$&¢E@5E?§E3A§X??E
B AT EEZ A TFEAEDERAZER
Tﬁfﬁ(%:%& NS 15;#2) TT1ED+

ABERREA AN RITETARN A
FEEDRBLEXGEMEL G-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

35. DEFERRED TAX

HE-Z—X

(LABTTEIR)

FH-A=1+—HIFE

35. IELEHIR

(a) Deferred tax liabilities (@ EZEHESE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
Investment Intangible profit or
properties assets loss Total
DNFEESR
REME BREE HEMEE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT TET FTERT FTET
At 1 January 2015 R—Z—aF—A—H - 6,592 - 6,592
Charge to profit or loss (note 14(a)) RIBa B (MiEE14() - (1,422) - (1,422)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE—RF+=-A
1 January 2016 =t+—8k
N - 5,170 - 5,170
Charge to profit or loss (note 14 (a)) st ABE (ME14() - 5,577 13,425 19,002
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 42(b)()) Y& — I E A 7
(FIFE42(0)()) 136 - - 136
At 31 December 2016 NZE—RF
+=-A=+—H 136 10,747 13,425 24,308

(b) Deferred tax assets

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$65,501,000 (2015: HK$47,192,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of the future profit streams. Tax losses have not
been agreed by the tax authorities and may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

36. LOAN NOTES

HE-Z—X

(LABTTEIIR)

GEMBHRME

FH-A=1+—HIFE

3. EREE

2016 2015
—E—ARE —ZE-NI%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHT FHET
Feb 2015 Notes —E-AFE_AEHE 36(a) = 4,500
Jun 2015 Notes —E-AFENAERE 36(b) 19,000 19,000
Aug 2015 Notes —ZT-AFEN\AEE 36(c) 191,000 189,000
210,000 212,500
Analysed as: A AUTIEE :

Current liabilities mEN A E 208,000 =
Non-current liabilities IERBAE 2,000 212,500
210,000 212,500

(a) 6% per annum notes (“Feb 2015 Notes”) @ OEFEER(ZZ—HF-RE

#1)

Pursuant to a note placing agreement dated 5 February
2015, the Group issued 6% unconditional, unsubordinated
and unsecured loan notes in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$4,500,000 to certain subscribers during the period
commencing on the date of this placing agreement and up
to (and including) the date falling on the 15th day of the sixth
month after the date of this placing agreement. The Feb 2015
Notes are denominated in HK$ and would mature on the second
anniversary of the issue dates of the Feb 2015 Notes.

During the year, the Company has fully repaid Feb 2015 Notes in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$4,500,000.

REAMA-Z-RAF_ALANRERE
e AMECE W B EEE AL EhE
HEREREANEI5EE R (2FEZA)
LHEIR - AEERE TRBAZTEAS
## 754,500,0007% 7T &) £ 51 - FEIR B ]2
BIEMERRER - —T-AF - AZBUE
THME R —T—RFE - ARKETAH
HE IRFRH-

RAFE  RNEB B IEA$ 2 %4,500,000
EITEMEE T -AFE-_AZE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-Z—RET-_A=1+—HILFE
(LABTTEIIR)

36. LOAN NOTES (continued) 36. EREE(E)

S

(b) 10% per annum notes (“Jun 2015 Notes”) b) 10BEFEZEE ([ZZ—-—HFAH

196

(©

Pursuant to a note placing agreement dated 26 June 2015, the
Group issued 10% unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
loan notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$19,000,000
(2015: HK$19,000,000) to certain subscribers during the period
commencing on the date of this placing agreement and up to
(and including) the date falling on the 15th day of the sixth month
after the date of this placing agreement. The Jun 2015 Notes are
denominated in HK$ and will mature on the second anniversary
of the issue dates of the Jun 2015 Notes.

9% per annum notes (“Aug 2015 Notes”)

Pursuant to a note placing agreement dated 20 August 2015, the
Group issued 9% unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
loan notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$191,000,000
(2015:HK$189,000,000) to certain subscribers during the period
commencing on the date of this placing agreement and up to
(and including) the date falling on the 15th day of the sixth month
after the date of this placing agreement. The Aug 2015 Notes are
denominated in HK$ and will mature on the second anniversary
of the issue dates of the Aug 2015 Notes.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

BE—T—NFt+t-_A=1+—HIFE
(BABTTEITR)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. KA
Nominal value Number of
per share shares Amount
SREME RO A ]
Note HK$ ‘000 HK$’000
M = BIT TR FHET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares il
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—HF—HF—H 0.01 80,000,000 800,000
Share consolidation & h & Bt 37(a)() 0.10 (72,000,000) =
Capital reduction and AR 2 Bl K B 19 v 4
share subdivision 37(a)(ii) 0.01 72,000,000 -
At 31 December 2015 and R=ZT—RF
1 January 2016 +ZA=+—Hk
TR RF—A—H 0.01 80,000,000 800,000
Share consolidation & A& Of 37(b)(i) 0.05 (64,000,000) =
Capital reduction and share B2 Bl R K B 19 Hv 4
subdivision 37(0)(i) 0.01 64,000,000 -
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RF
+=-—A=+—H 0.01 80,000,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
Ordinary shares gl
At 1 January 2015 R-E—RF—HF—H 0.01 1,954,125 19,541
Share consolidation & h & Bt 37(a)() 0.10 (1,758,713) =
Capital reduction and R 2 Bl R K A% 1) 15 48
share subdivision 37(a)(i) 0.01 - (17,587)
Performance shares issued BERITRIARG 37(c) 0.01 16,456 165
Rights issue of shares HAREITRGD 37(d) 0.01 586,238 5,862
Placing of shares fic & X 0 37(e) 0.01 39,080 391
New issue of consideration shares #1317 (B % 37(f) 0.01 146,699 1,467
New issue of consideration shares ~ #TE 1T (E 37(9) 0.01 250,694 2,507
At 31 December 2015 and R=ZZT—RF
1 January 2016 +ZA=+—8k
—ZE-XE—H—H 0.01 1,234,579 12,346
Share consolidation N 37(0)(i) 0.05 (987,663)
Capital reduction and AR A BIRL K B A7 #v 4
share subdivision 37 (b)(ii) 0.01 - (9,877)
New issue of consideration shares #7317 (B 37(h) 0.01 40,800 408
New issue of subscription shares #1317 RE M5 37() 0.01 8,583 86
At 31 December 2016 RZZB—RF
+=-—A=+— 0.01 296,299 2,963
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@) Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 26 February 2015
in respect of the capital reorganisation (‘2015 Capital Reorganisation”).
Unless otherwise specified herein, capitalised terms used in this paragraph
shall have the same meanings as those defined in the circular.

The 2015 Capital Reorganisation was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the special general meeting of the Company held on 23
March 2015 and became effective on 24 March 2015. The 2015 Capital

Reorganisation involved the followings:

(i) Share consolidation

Pursuant to the share consolidation, every ten and unissued
existing shares of HK$0.01 each have been consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.10 each (“2015 Consolidated
Share”) and the total number of 2015 Consolidated Share has
been rounded down to a whole number by cancelling any fraction
in the issued share capital of the Company arising from the share

consolidation.

(ii) Capital reduction and share subdivision

- the issued share capital of the Company has been reduced
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.09 on each of the issued
2015 Consolidated Share such that the nominal value of
each issued 2015 Consolidated Share has been reduced
from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 (“2015 Capital Reduction”);

- immediately following the 2015 Capital Reduction, each
of the authorised but unissued 2015 Consolidated Share
of HK$0.10 each was sub-divided into 10 new shares of

HK$0.01 each; and

- the credits arising in the books of the Company from (i) the
cancellation of any fraction in the issued share capital of
the Company arising from the share consolidation; and (i)
the capital reduction of the paid-up capital of the Company
of approximately HK$17,587,000 has been credited to the
contributed surplus account of the Company within the
meaning of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Immediately after the 2015 Capital Reorganisation became effective
on 24 March 2015, the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$800,000,000 divided into 80,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each, of
which 195,412,487 shares were in issue and the aggregate nominal value

of the issued share capital was approximately HK$1,954,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 20 April 2016
in respect of the capital reorganisation (‘2016 Capital Reorganisation”).
Unless otherwise specified herein, capitalised terms used in this paragraph
shall have the same meanings as those defined in the circular.

The 2016 Capital Reorganisation was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
23 May 2016 and became effective on 24 May 2016. The 2016 Capital
Reorganisation involved the following:

0] Share consolidation

Pursuant to the share consolidation (“2016 Share Consolidation”),
every five issued and unissued shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each were consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.05
each (‘2016 Consolidated Share”) and the total number of the
2016 Consolidated Shares in the issued share capital of the
Company immediately following the 2016 Share Consolidation was
rounded down to a whole number by cancelling any fraction in the
issued share capital of the Company arising from the 2016 Share
Consolidation

(ii) Capital reduction and share subdivision

- the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.04 on each of the issued
2016 Consolidated Shares such that the nominal value of
each issued 2016 Consolidated Share was reduced from
HK$0.05 to HK$0.01 (“2016 Capital Reduction”);

- immediately following the 2016 Capital Reduction, each
of the authorised but unissued 2016 Consolidated Shares
of HK$0.05 each was subdivided into 5 new shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company; and

- the credit of approximately HK$9,877,000 arising from (i)
the reduction of paid-up capital and (i) the cancellation
of any fractional 2016 Consolidated Share in the issued
share capital of the Company arising from the 2016
Share Consolidation was transferred to the contributed
surplus account of the Company within the meaning of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Immediately after the 2016 Capital Reorganisation became effective
on 24 May 2016, the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$800,000,000 divided into 80,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each, of
which 246,915,825 shares were in issue and the aggregate nominal value
of the issued share capital was approximately HK$2,469,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 23 February 2013
and the Company’s announcements dated 19 May 2014, 20 May 2014,
21 May 2014 and 28 May 2015 in relation to the acquisition of Apperience
Group and the issue of Tranche | and Tranche Il Performance Shares.
Capitalised terms used in this paragraph shall have the same meaning
as defined in the circular. In accordance with the Acquisition Agreement,
an aggregate of 715,622,718 Tranche | Performance Shares have been
allotted and issued, credited as fully paid, by the Company to the Vendors
on 6 June 2014.

On 5 June 2015, the Company allotted and issued 16,455,916 Tranche
Il Performance Shares, credited as fully paid, to the Vendors to settle
the remaining part of the contingent consideration for the acquisition of
Apperience.

On 24 February 2015, the Board proposed a rights issue on the basis of
three rights shares for every one share (“Rights Issue”) held on 21 May
2015 (“Record Date”) at the subscription price of HK$0.35 per rights
share. The Rights Issue was approved by the shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 11 May 2015.

Upon the completion of the Rights Issue on 16 June 2015, 586,237,461
ordinary shares of the Company were issued at the price of HK$0.35
each. The net proceeds arising from the Rights Issue approximate to
HK$196,547,000. Details of the Rights Issue are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 February 2015, 20 March 2015, 10 April 2015,
11 May 2015, 12 May 2015 and 15 June 2015, the Company’s circular
dated 22 April 2015 and the Company’s prospectus dated 22 May 2015.

On 22 June 2015, the Company entered into a conditional placing
agreement with a placing agent in respect of the placement of 39,080,000
ordinary shares at a placing price of HK$0.49 per share. The placement of
shares was completed on 8 July 2015. The net proceeds from the placing
(after deduction of commission and other expenses of the placing) were
approximately HK$17,999,000 and approximately HK$17,608,000 was
credited to the Company’s share premium account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

@

On 31 July 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to acquire 27,298,000 issued ordinary shares of China Parenting Network
Holdings Limited at the consideration of HK$60,000,000. Upon the
completion of the acquisition took place on 7 October 2015, the Company
issued 146,699,266 new shares of HK$0.409 each to the vendor as
settlement of the consideration for the acquisition. The fair value of
146,699,266 new shares was approximate to HK$52,812,000, based
on the closing price (HK$0.36 per new share) at 7 October 2015, and
approximately HK$51,345,000 was credited to the Company’s share
premium account.

On 13 August 2015 and 16 September 2015, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement and supplementary agreement
for the purchase of an aggregate of additional 14.677% of the issued
share capital of Boom Max (“Acquisition of Boom Max”) at a consideration
of HK$180,416,000. On 31 December 2015, completion of the Acquisition
of Boom Max took place and pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement, the Company issued 250,693,999 consideration shares of
HK$0.3 each to the vendors, as settlement of partly of the consideration
for the Acquisition of Boom Max. The fair value of 250,693,999
consideration shares was approximately HK$53,147,000, based on the
closing price (HK$0.21 per consideration share) at 31 December 2015
and approximately HK$50,640,000 was credited to the Company’s share
premium account.

On 13 June 2016, Lucky Famous, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire 51%
of the equity interest of AP Holdings from Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture Holdings Limited (“Fragrant River”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Universe International Holdings Limited (“Universe”) (stock code: 1046), at
the consideration of HK$20,400,000 (subject to downward adjustment),
which was settled by way of allotment and issue of 40,800,000 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each, credited as fully paid, at an
issue price of HK$0.5 per consideration share pursuant to the general
mandate granted in the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 23 May 2016. Details of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 June 2016, 23 June 2016 and 1 July 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i) On 13 June 2016, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Weluck Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fragrant
River, as subscriber in relation to the subscription of 8,583,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company by Weluck Development Limited at
the subscription price of HK$0.50 per subscription share to be allotted
and issue under the general mandate of the Company. Details of the
subscription are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 13 June
2016, 23 June 2016 and 1 July 2016.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

The Group’s primarily objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that
it can continue to provide returns for the shareholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between higher shareholder returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes judgement
as to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group and the Company monitor its capital structure on the basis
of a debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debts is defined
as total debts (which includes trade and other payables, amount due to
a subsidiary, loan notes, convertible notes, which is applicable). Equity
comprises share capital and reserves.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37.

GEMBHRME

HE-Z—RETA=1—HILFE
(LABTTEIIR)

SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 37. B (48)
During 2016, the Group’s strategy was to maintain a debt-to-equity R —F  AEERNAREE BES B EERE
ratio at not more than 45% (2015: 45%). In order to maintain or adjust LR T B iE45% (ZF— R F 1 45% ) ByKF o
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to BIRFHFAEZL X ANEE Al 8 W R R
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise MRESRE FITHRG RREBEERN B
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debts. TEEMESHEEENRE-
The Group The Company
rEH RATF
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —E-REF —E-XRE —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET THT FAET
Debts B 362,754 375,333 293,311 290,284
Equity T 1,047,535 1,015,953 1,015,008 1,014,144
Debt-to-equity ratio BEHERLEE 35% 37% 29% 29%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the GEM of the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report
from the share registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing
the non-public float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the
25% limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2016, approximately
43.96% (2015: 77.85%) of the shares were in public hands.
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FIetHBTRIELRRFERENRE  RENFAR—
BETEBSURBERE- R_TE—F+=A
=+—B 4943.96% (ZZE— R :77.85% ) l&H
HARALTEE-

BEERERAT 20165

203



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-TAF+-A=t+—AILERE
(XBTBIR)

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2017 and are

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. ADQTAMBRRERKHEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company @ AARFBAARRTRE

2016 2015
—E—xF T —AHF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FTHET FET

Non-current assets kFRHEE
Property, plant and equipment L ERY ] 262 453
Investments in subsidiaries RHB A TIHIEE - -
262 453

Current assets REEE
Prepayments and deposits B FIE RIS 8,049 334
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E ] 1,285,332 1,161,199
Derivative financial instruments TESmT A 959 21,564
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEBEY 13,717 120,878
1,308,057 1,303,975
Current liabilities rREas

Accrued expenses and other payables FE B & H M ERRIE 7,080 9,259
Amount due to a subsidiary BN —EM B AT RIE 4,442 =
Loan notes BERER 208,000 -
Convertible notes QIES e 71,789 -
291,311 9,259
Net current assets REBEEFEE 1,016,746 1,294,716
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABERS 1,017,008 1,295,169

Non-current liabilities krHEaB
Loan notes Bz 2,000 212,500
Convertible notes QIES e - 68,525
2,000 281,025
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,015,008 1,014,144

Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital A& 7K 2,963 12,346
Reserves Gl 39(b) 1,012,045 1,001,798
TOTAL EQUITY MR 1,015,008 1,014,144

KERGR _T—tF=A- T+ HHELAMA

signed on its behalf by: TESERREE:
Hung Yvonne Lee Kin Fai
g ) =@
Director Director
EZE EFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE-_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABTTEIR)
38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. AQEIMBERRREFBEEE (F)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
(b) Reserve movements of the Company b) AAEHEEE
Share Convertible
Share Share  Contributed option note equity ~ Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
TARRE
B RAEE BEARY  BRERE B )] @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT T THL T T ThEL T
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-HF-f-A 19,541 96,846 961,249 - - (403,109) 674,527
Share consolidation and i3 & BF RARAHI R
capital reduction (note 37(a)) GERIE)) (17,587) - 17,587 - - - -
Performance shares issued BEARRRS (KiE37(0)
(note 37(c) 165 13,000 . - - . 13,166
Rights issue of shares (note 87(d)) (B E4TM A (Hi537(d)) 5,862 190,685 - - - - 196,547
Recognition of share based AR BERH A
payments (note 40) (H3E40) - - - 2,839 = = 2,839
Equity component of convertible THREEERDH
notes (note 34) (Ht3E34) - - - - 25,555 - 25,555
Placing of shares (note 37(e)) RERIH (FEs7e) 391 17,608 = = = = 17,999
Issuance of consideration shares BRERD (M3E370)
(note 37f) 1,467 51345 - - - - 52812
Shares issued for purchase of FUEI R ER R TR
non-controling interests (Wiz+37(9))
(note 37(g) 2507 50640 - . - - 53,147
Loss and total comprehensive TEEFERZBNRLE
income for the year S S = S S (22,447) (22,447)
At 31 December 2015 and RZB-RE+-A=1-H
1 January 2016 RZB-—rE-A- 12,346 420,124 978,836 2,839 25,655 (425,556) 1,014,144
Share consolidation and fRtr & BF RARAHIR
capital reduction (note 37(b) (F1&E37(0)) (0.877) - 9877 - - - -
Issuance of consideration shares BIIRERD (Hz37()
(note 37(1) 408 19,99 . - - . 20,400
Issuance of subscription shares FUBESERER R TR
(note 37(j) (F3Ea7() 86 4,206 = = = = 4,292
Loss and total comprehensive TEEFERZANRLE
income for the year - - - - - (23,828) (23,828)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"§+ZA=1+-H 2,963 444,322 988,713 2,839 25,555 (449,384) 1,015,008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-Z—RET-A=1t—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEIT)
39. RESERVES 39. f#fE
(a) Group @ A&EH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein AEBRBRERESHEERNGEBERE
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and fh 2R EGEEREERET -

other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves b) RHEHNEERBN

0 Share premium 0 BR17 w18
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the funds BEBRE-NAN—FR8E AR
in the share premium account of the Company may be AR EERATAMEARAT XD
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares. K °

(i) Contributed surplus i)  EHER
The contributed surplus of the Group represents the AEBRHEZRBIERIEARR R A H
difference between the nominal value of share capital of ABZET—F+A+N\BHNBRE
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation B AEHEAN LN FRD P
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”) to rationalise the IS AERRENEHT S
structure of the Group in preparation for the public listing (TE@BEA])FrUEEH B2 5 AR
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange set out AEEBEAR R AZIRMEBITHR
in the Company’s prospectus dated 18 December 2001, MEENERE-

over the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued in exchange thereof.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents ARBINEBRBIERIEEESEHER
the excess of the fair value of the subsidiaries acquired WM B A RN AT EEBEARRA A
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation over the nominal BRMMBETHROEENEZRE
value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange

thereof.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

39. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Contributed surplus (continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
contributed surplus account is available for distribution to
shareholders. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

- the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the portion of the
grant date fair value of unexercised share options granted
to a consultant of the Group that has been recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share
options granted to directors and consultants in note 4(t).

Convertible note equity reserve
The convertible note equity reserve represents the equity

component (conversion right) of the notes issued (note
34).

GEMBHRME
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(LABTTEIR)

39. f#tE (&)

b) REHUEERBHN (E)

{

(i)

(i)

BB (&)

BREBRE-NN\—FREE BEH
BEARAIME DK TARR < 810 - fin 3%
ERTER  BARBTEERLIK
MRS REEHBBTELDIK:

-  AREARBRERMNESEER
EERAEBIMEE &

-  AREEEMNIEREELKR
NEgeIREaBEREEH
TIRAA RO R ERN &
o

BIREH S

B ERHE R ER AR B AR
HEVRTTEBREN R E AL TE
EEPREMZTAOMBERANES R
AR R R B R R A ) R EUR
HERRHY LD ©

AT R SR s (o 1

HREREERFEHEEBTRED
Rl (L) (KiFE34) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_T—"FT+-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(VABTTEIR)

39. RESERVES (continued) 39. f#fE (&)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (b) FEBHHEBEREWN (&)
() Investment revaluation reserve V) REEGFEE
The investment revaluation reserve comprises the KEBHFHERIERRERRAE
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale HEESHEENRFTATEEE
financial assets held at the end of the reporting period and SFRE - WAR IR B 5 E4(m)ET B & R T BUR
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy in BRI o
note 4(m).
(i) Exchange reserve V)  ESFEE
The exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign AEBME N FEEDETEEIMNGE
exchange differences arising from the translation of the XM IBERREENMBINEEEE -
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is ZEBIRB I T4 MEA R BERE
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out e
in note 4(e).
40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS DR BERA I

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme (“the Share Option Scheme”) BEIREEET B ([RERAERTE)) B EEA A RIMALE

is to enable the Company to grant options to either directors or EEENEERLERE URGREBESY

employees of the Group in order to recognise and motivate their REEBELEER URRERIBEANEEBER

contribution, to provide incentives and to help the Group in retaining EREREFEINESEES BEREEEHES

its existing employees and recruiting additional employees by providing MAEERHAESBENCERR -BRETS

them with a direct economic interest in attaining the long term business ERZZET+F+ A THBEERTHRRER

objectives of the Group. The Share Option Scheme was approved by ANEEREHE -

shareholders in an extraordinary meeting on 24 December 2007.

The Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting may at any time AR A AT AR R RS LA IR R REE R AR E BT

terminate the operation of the Scheme and in such event no further A MRZBER TETS IR ERE R

Options will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of the FFEIMESGRER — M E B EEE B B

Share Option Scheme shall remain in force to the extent necessary R IERTIR F AL BB AR AE S AT T(E ©

to give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior to such

termination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(@)

(b)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

GEMBHRME

HE-Z—RET-A=1—HILFE
(LABTTEIR)

40. UROB/ERNZMN (F)

@ WHERREHEDT :

Contractual
Date of Number of Vesting life of Exercise
grant  instruments conditions options Price
BhE
i A IA%A BEGY AR TEE
'000 HK$
Fn BT
Options granted to two directors 2 July 2015 1,847# 0 year 3 years 2.755
of the Company
MARAMEESK L ERE “E-AFtAZH
Options granted to one director 2 July 2015 615* 0 year 3 years 2.755
of subsidiaries of the Company
RARRMBAR —RESE L ERE “T-RE+AZH
# After share consolidation became effective on 24 May 2016, the 8 BHPEHRZT—A"FREA-TEOAAERK
number of share option was reduced to 2,462,000. Each option % BB S B R £2,462,00017 ° 10 BB
entitled the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share in the R T A ARANRE - RARR LB
Company. i
Details of the movement of share options outstanding (b) ERTEBEREZIFRUOT:
are as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
hn#E g
FHTEE BRESE TR E BEHA
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T
Outstanding at the FNEKRITE
beginning of the year 0.551 12,310 N/A 58 -
Granted during the year FREH N/A i A - 0.551 12,310
Share consolidation (note 37b()) B3 A B (HiFE37b()) N/A R iE B (9,848) N/A 7 A -
Outstanding at end of the year FERMAITE 2,755* 2,462 0.551 12,310
Exercisable at end of the year FRAFIE 2.755* 2,462 0.551 12,310
e Adjustments for share consolidation became effective on 24 May * BHEHABRR-ZE—A"FAAZTHEBALER-

2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEITR)

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 40. LR AERAIZA (F)

(©

Fair value of share options and assumptions

At 31 December 2016, the outstanding share options have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2 years (2015:
3 years). The estimated fair values of the options granted on 2
July 2015 are approximately HK$2,839,000 in aggregate. No
share option was granted or lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2016.

The fair value of share options granted on 2 July 2015 was
calculated on the Binomial Model. The input into this model is as
follow:

(©

BREAFEERER

R=ZFE—XRF+=—A=+—8 EERTE
BERENNETHERTEOHRBE (=
TR 3F) R=_FT—RFLA=AH
FREERENGTAFEEG LA
2,839,000 L HE-_ZT—~F+=A
=+—AILFERN  BETAEREERE
R

R-T—RFtA-AMRHEREND
FEEDNER -BAERGFHE - ZEXNE
ABIEINT

Date of grant on 2 July 2015

REAH-_ZT—RFLtA=H
After share

consolidation

Before share
consolidation
became effective
on 24 May 2016

became effective
on 24 May 2016

RZT—RF RZT—RF

AA=+mA FA=-+mA

R & BHERRT RO EHERE

Fair value at measurement date FTEREMNATEE HK$0.231 HK$1.155
0.231% 7T 1.155%8 7T

Share price f&(E HK$0.475 HK$2.375
0.475% 7T 2.375% 7T

Exercise price T E HK$0.551 HK$2.755
0.5518 7T 2.755/8 7T

Expected volatility TEHR 18 97.52% 97.52%
97.52% 97.52%

Option life RS 3.08 years 3.03 years
3.03%F 3.03%F

Expected dividends TEHRR S 0% 0%
0% 0%

Risk-free interest rate [ b A1) X 0.63% 0.63%
0.63% 0.63%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical dividends of the Company.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions and the limitation of
the Binomal Model could materially affect the fair value estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(©

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

The eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include any
employee of the Group including any executive and any non-
executive directors of the Group.

The grant of share options should be accepted within a period
of 7 days from the date upon which an offer of the grant of an
option is made to a participant, at a consideration of HK$1, being
payable by the grantee upon the acceptance of grant.

The options may be exercised in whole or in part at any time
during the period to be determined and identified by the Board,
but in any event such exercise period shall not exceed a period
of ten years commencing on the date of grant of the relevant
option, subject to the early termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options was determinable by the
Board at its absolute discretion, but was not able to be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; (iiij the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the ten
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iv)
the nominal value of the share on the date of grant.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of
shares in the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all options may be granted under the Scheme when aggregated
with any other share option scheme of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of adoption of
the Scheme or the date on which such limit is refreshed by the
shareholders of the Company (“Refreshed 10% Limit”).

HEe—T—

4=

GEMBHRME

NETZR=+—RHIEFE
(VABTTEIIR)

40. UROB/ERNZMN (&)

(©

BREQCFEERRR (F)

BREENAER2EEREAREE
WiE & BIEAEEEANT REMIERT
B%-

EHABRERN A2 EA TR HERRE
BEHRATEARMA RERVET ARX
AR EMR BRI -

BRETNERGET LHF BRER2
BRI 1TE - EERIABBITERTE
R AR B AT T 5 MR
B ARt BI AT 4R AT 42 1L ©

BRENTEENREFSRYPBET

ENSERTIESE : () ROKKHBH
(AREEA)EBMZAETRRERMIIR
E: (RN EERRL AP AEEEA
FER X P& B 3RE R ATH)F T E ¢ (i)
PR M BRI A HIR HE S % AR
P BMERMIIFHETE : K@) B
KL B HEE-

RIREAE 8 Bt 2B T A s R A FT
EHEBRERETENN TETHAR RN
oA ERAR I A E MR E S
BHEMBREREAE  TEBBREME
B ERAREEARRARREFEAD
BITHRD10% ([HEEH10% LR ]) »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(©

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

No option may be granted to any person if the total number
of shares of the Company already issued and issuable to him
under all the options granted to him in any 12 month period up
to and including the date of grant exceeding 1% of total number
of shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a
circular by the Company and the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting. Any grant of option to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors or their respective
associates which would result in the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of
the Company’s issued share capital and having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance
by the Company’s shareholders in general meeting.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on its adoption date.
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40. UROB/ERNZMN (&)

BREQCFEERRR (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the basic
salary of its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and have no
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement benefit scheme represents for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for its employees
in respect of its subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the PRC. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 in
respect of the retirement of its employees.
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REHRFKBNGE

ANEEREF B LD FEA85Z R HIIE A TEL 2 E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_T—"FT+-A=1T—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEITR)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 42, ZERTRERMT

CASH FLOWS
(@ Acquisition of subsidiaries (a WEHBAR
@) Acquisition of AP Holdings 0 WefE ZHHEEAR

On 13 June 2016, the Group entered into a sale and RZZE—RNEXNA+=HB &&
purchase agreement (“AP Group SP Agreement”) to FVEERZ([EHEEERR
acquire 51% of the equity interest of AP Holdings from %) 0 AR {820,400,0005% 7T (AT
Fragrant River, at a consideration of HK$20,400,000 RIXAET TR MEIRES
(subject to downward adjustment), which was settled PHERR 2 51%M 4 - REBREARA
by way of allotment and issue of 40,800,000 ordinary ARZE—A"FRA=-+=BE1TH
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Consideration REBAFAG EREN—RFE B
Shares”), credited as fully paid, at an issue price of BIEFRAERN.L0E T BITE
HK$0.50 per Consideration Share pursuant to the general fi 5% % 3£1740,800,0000% A8 A 7] &%
mandate granted in the annual general meeting of the EE0.01B L2 Tk (ABRIIVES
Company held on 23 May 2016. BIZFALZFe

Pursuant to the AP Group SP Agreement, in the event BREEHEEEEHZ HE-Z
that the audited consolidated profit after tax of AP Group —NE—HA—RBZE-_Z—+&+—-8
attributable to owners of AP Group for the period from =t HIRHEHERES AR
1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017 is less than EHEBERBRLEZEE ®MER
HK$16,000,000, Fragrant River, and Universe shall 16,000,000 7t * &I R B F {2 E
procure Fragrant River to, pay to the Group (or to its order) BIRBENEREZRREML2H
an adjustment amount in cash in the manner prescribed NAREEAER (KIREEES
under the AP Group SP Agreement (note 31). Completion SAARSEE (MEE31) - WEEER
of the acquisition took place on 1 July 2016. Details of the —E-RELA—BEK - KEEE
acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcements ZHBERARARBHRA ST —RF
dated 13 June 2016, 23 June 2016 and 1 July 2016. NAT=B - ZE—R"EXAZ+=

BR-ZE—RFLtA-HZAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEITR)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 42. REESRERWE (F)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (@ WEHBLAR (&)
@) Acquisition of AP Holdings (continued) 0 WEEHER (&)
The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments N5 B AR BR 5% 15 7k T YR ) 2 EB AR 2R
that the Group could receive under this arrangement is AR ReBN TTHETE
between HK$NIl and HK$20,400,000. 20,400,000/ JT °
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration shares RERHD 20,400
Contingent consideration arrangement (note 31) SKARELHE (MI5E31) (17,593)
Total consideration wRE 2,807
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of NUEE KPTIRENEREE
AP Group acquired as at the date of acquisition is AIHREERBEN
as follows: NEEBEOT:
Net liabilities acquired: ke EFE:
Property, plant and equipment (note 20) Y B KA (FEE20) 2,135
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A U R IE 2,886
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkRESEED 1,360
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR KIE (9,269)
Current tax liabilities EHIBEAE (590)
Net liabilities BEFE (3,478)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR o 1,704
Goodwill (note 22) & (Kis22) 4,581
Total consideration BR(E 2,807
Satisfied by: LA 55 B
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: W EERR S RAFE:
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 1,360
The fair value of the ordinary shares of the Company AARWERE X NRENERITLR
issued as the consideration paid was determined on RO AFEEDREARRREBRN
the basis of the market price of the Company’s ordinary WHEE RO TEET -

shares on the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_EB—R"E+-_A=1+—HIFE
(ABTTHIR)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

42, FERERERMTE (F)

WEEHIB DR (&)

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (@

Y

Acquisition of AP Holdings (continued)

The fair value of the trade and other receivables acquired
is approximately HK$2,886,000. None of these receivables
have been impaired and expected to be uncollectable.

AP Group contributed approximately HK$8,078,000 and
HK$201,000 to the Group’s revenue and the Group'’s
profit for the year respectively between the date of
acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

U

WEEEDHER (B)

FrURBE R B 5 K H A FE MR B A
B1E%) 52,886,000/ 7T ° 3% Z WK
B IR R E L B At AN AT Uk B o

RKE A EREHARER B85
& B [\ A~ 5 B W & §1 498,078,000
B MAEEARNFE S E L
201,00078 7T

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2016, WKEEER_E—"F—A—H
total Group turnover for the year ended 31 December XK AEBBE-_ZT—X~F+=A

2016 would have been approximately HK$271,440,000,
and profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
have been approximately HK$32,540,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the turnover and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2016, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Acaquisition of GEO Finance Limited (“GEO Finance”)

On 12 March 2015, GET Financial Group and four
vendors of GEO Finance, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the acquisition by GET Financial
Group of 51% of the issued share capital of GEO Finance.
The acquisition took place on 12 March 2015 at a
consideration of approximately HK$255,000. GEO Finance
is principally engaged in money lending business.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
GEO Finance acquired as at the date of acquisition were
as follows:

GEMBHRME

BE_E—RE+-_A=1+—HIFE
(ABTTHIR)

2. FERERERMTE (F)

@ WEBHWEBAE (&)

i) WEEZERTHHFERAA([EER
THE])

RZZT—RF=A+=H BHH5&m
SEAE SRV HHEEEH
BEEWZ NAEHEBAESenER
WEEE SR 5 B 1551 %E BT A °
WEEEER _Z—HE=A+_H
1T RIBX AE255,0008 T EHHR
B EEREEEER-

FUREE B EPTIIBE SR 5 B A0 A]
BREEMBENRFEENT

HK$'000
FAT
Net assets acquired: s & EFE:
Property, plant and equipment (note 20) Y RE KA (FiFEE20) 27
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H b B R IE 3,141
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 534
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H M KIE (3,104)
Current tax liabilities EHMRIEAE (29)
Net assets EEFE 569
Non-controlling interests RIS (279)
Gain on bargain purchase (note 10) HEBEMRE (H:E10) (35)
Total consideration BRE 255
Satisfied by: LATRB) 7 B -
Cash Be 255
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEEMRSRAFE:
Cash consideration paid EARERE (255)
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESEEY 534
279
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Acquisition of GEO Finance Limited (“GEO Finance”)
(continued)

The fair value of the trade and other receivables acquired
was approximately HK$3,141,000. The gross amount of
these receivables was approximately HK$3,141,000. None
of these receivables had been impaired and expected to
be uncollectible.

GEO Finance contributed approximately HK$2,814,000
and HK$544,000 to the Group’s revenue and the Group’s
profit for the year respectively between the date of
acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2015,
total Group turnover for the year ended 31 December
2015 would have been approximately HK$324,932,000,
and profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 would
have been approximately HK$93,483,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the turnover and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2015, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

(b) Acquisition of assets through acquisition of
subsidiaries

0

Acaquisition of Million Worldwide and its subsidiary (“Million
Worldwide Group”)

On 21 March 2016, Lucky Famous acquired the entire
equity interest in Million Worldwide from an independent
third party for a cash consideration of HK$20,000,000.
Million Worldwide Group is engaged in property holding
in Hong Kong and its principal asset is an investment
property. The consideration was determined based on the
fair value of the property of Million Worldwide Group as
of 21 March 2016. The acquisition was completed on 21
March 2016.
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42, FEREREBERMTE (F)

@ WEBHWEBAE (&)

i) WEEZETHBFERAA([EER
THE])

PR E 5 K E b T IR A B
{B4)733,141,000/8 7T ° 72 5 FE U/ IH
HEX) 53,141,000/ 7T - B2 S /e
WRIRE R E R IR AN AT i E -

REBEHEREHAR THRE
FHBAEAEESRERKALY
2,814,000/ 7T & AN 48 [Z 1 #1/544,000
PEIT e

WkEEBER-_Z—RF—A—AH
ERCAEEBEE T —AF+=
A=+ BLEEREETENA
324,932,000/ 7T ' MEBE=—T—RF
+TZA=Z+—BLEFEEREFANNAE
93,483,000/ 7T o & A BHE 5 87
Bg AV ABWEBEEER=_2—Hh
F—A—BEKBEAEEERMEE
EHEREEEBENEEZ  IRRIER
RELZ R TE A -

b) ZBRBHWBARKBEE

@ YHEMilion Worldwicle X 2L /11 /8 2 7]
([ Milion Worldwide2s /% | )

R—E—X&E=ZA=-+—8"
Lucky Famous® — & B E=H
LA IR € 1 820,000,000 JT W &
Million WorldwideZ % &B A% # © Million
WorldwideE Bl £ ER B BN EY 2
EREREFBEELRIBREME-
RAB T3 R Million Worldwide®E [ ~2
MER-_ZT— FZA-+—H8zZA
FEEET WEEER-T—X F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-_T—"FT+-A=1T—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTEITR)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 42,
CASH FLOWS (continued)

FERERBRMETE (B)

(b) Acquisition of assets through acquisition of (b)
subsidiaries (continued)

ERWEHNBARWEEE (&)

() Acquisition of Million Worldwide and its subsidiary (“Million () U & Milion Woridwicle & 2 1 /& 2 7]

Worldwide Group”) (continued)

The purchase consideration was allocated to the
identifiable assets and liabilities of Million Worldwide Group

( [Milion WorldwiceZ:/# ) (#&)

W BE R B 1 9 BE 2= 7 WBE Million
Worldwidefs B & KK A] i R & = &

acquired at its date of acquisition as follows: BERT:
HK$'000
FHT
Net assets acquired: g & EFME :
Investment properties (note 21) "EMEE (FsE21) 19,948
Other receivables H h fE R IE 4
Current tax assets EMMIEEE 434
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 7
Other payables H B RI8 (257)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEEE (136)
20,000
Satisfied by: AT 75 S AE A -
Cash B 20,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: I B EE B3R & R ER
Cash consideration paid ERNRENRE (20,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FkENReRESSED 7
(19,993)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Acquisition of assets through acquisition of
subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Acaquisition of Dragon Oriental

On 31 March 2016, Lucky Famous acquired additional
51% equity interest in Dragon Oriental from an
independent third party for a cash consideration of
HK$17,340,000. Dragon Oriental is engaged in property
holding in Hong Kong and its principal asset is an
investment property. The consideration was determined
based on the fair value of the property of Dragon Oriental
as of 31 March 2016. The acquisition of Dragon Oriental
was completed on 31 March 2016.

The purchase consideration was allocated to the
identifiable assets and liabilities of Dragon Oriental
acquired at its date of acquisition as follows:

HE-Z—RET-A=1t—HILFE
(VABTTEIR)

42, FERERERMTE (F)

b) ZBRBHWBARAWEEE (&)

@) YH#EDragon Oriental

RZZFE—AR"F=A=+—H " Lucky
Famousl — & BV F=H UR &
A 817,340,000 st Y & Dragon
Oriental Z %8 451 %% # - Dragon
OrientaliA BB R EWMEIER R H £
EEER—RIREME - RETIBE
Dragon OrientalZ 1R —F — R F
A=+t BZAFEEET K
fEDragon Orientall® —ZZF —/~F = A
=F+—HAZEK-

W g R E % i = N W B Dragon
Oriental® XA HREERBE:

HK$'000
FAT
Net assets acquired: g & EFME :
Investment properties (note 21) wEME (FsE21) 33,957
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 336
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H M KIE (181)
Current tax liabilities EHMRIEAE (71)
34,041
Fair value of previously held interest SR ERATEE (16,701)
Total consideration RIELTE 17,340

Satisfied by:
Cash

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration paid
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Disposals of subsidiaries

U

Disposal of 51% entire interest in GEO Finance

On 21 November 2016, the Group disposed of its 51%
entire equity interest in GEO Finance, an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group before disposal, for
cash consideration of HK$825,000.

Net assets of GEO Finance at the date of disposal were as
follows:

BE_E—RE+-_A=1+—HIFE

(LABTTEIR)

2. FERERERMTE (F)

© HEWBATF

)  HEREZETHHEZ LE51%KE

RZZE—R

F+—A=t+—H &%

LAZR 4 X {8825,0007% 7T H & E 7
BIRFUE (HENAREERE
F2EMBERR) Z2AB61%ME

BHIRFVBRIEERRZ EEFE

mF

HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment L ER e 23
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H A B RIE 7,679
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 1,583
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H B FKIE (7,502)
Current tax liabilities EHBIEAE (230)
Carrying amount of net assets disposed of It EEEFENREE 1,553
Non-controlling interest derecognised RIEEREFEERE R (761)
Net assets disposed of L EMEEFE 792
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B A a W
Consideration RE 825
Net assets disposed of T EMEEFE (792)
Gain on disposal * o s 33
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEANRES ML FE:
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HENReRASEEYD (1,583)
Cash consideration received BURIRENRE 825
(758)

The gain on disposal is included in “other gains and
losses”.

- HEdasat A T E AU s MBS 1R ] o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-ZT—RET-_A=+—HILFE
(LABTTEIIR)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 42, FEBRESRERMT (F)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

© HEWBXE (&)

(c) Disposals of subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Disposal of entire interest inFIIB 1B E 4 A H IR i) HERFIEMREEEEZAGR
2 Al ("Act Point SZ”) »a] (RG] )2 25w

RZE—R"F+—A=+—H &
E AR £ R B342,0008 THEE R
FIIEHR (R E AT AREE A RE
BEIE2EMB AR M2 EARME-

On 21 November 2016, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in Act Point SZ, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group before disposal, for cash
consideration of HK$342,000.

RGBT N E BB EEFER

Net assets of Act Point SZ at the date of disposal were as

follows: TS
HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment Y B R 423
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H A U RIE 666
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 41
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk H M ENFKIE (1,010)
Carrying amount of net assets disposed of It EEEFENRAE 120
Release of foreign currency translation reserve SN BE 3 R Bl (56)
Net assets disposed of Rt &M E EFE 64

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

HE R B A A s

Consideration RIE 342
Net assets disposed of FTHENEESFE (64)
Gain on disposal * o s 278

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of
Cash consideration received

The gain on disposal is included in “Other gain and loss”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Disposals of subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Disposal of entire interest in Bonus First Group Limited
(“Bonus First”)

On 29 December 2015, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in Bonus First, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group before the disposal, for a cash consideration of
HK$62,000,000.

Net assets of Bonus First at date of disposal were as
follows:

wh 1 M A
REUBRERME
HE-ZT—"Ft+-_A=1+—HLFE

(BABTTEI7R)

2. FERERERMTE (F)

© HEWBATF

(i)  HEFTEEFRAA ([FlT))sz
il g

R-B—RF+-_A=-t+hHB &
EHEERFT (REERALEH
2EMBAR)HEIHRE Re R
& A&62,000,000/8 7T °

MITRHERHANEEFENT

HK$'000
FAT

Investment property (note 21) wEMEE (FsE21) 59,081
Other receivables H th fE R IE 178
Accrued expenses and other payables FEfT & A R H AbFE R 58 (175)
Current tax liabilities EHTIEAE (38)
Net assets disposed of It EEEFE 59,046
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEWE QRN
Consideration RAE 62,000
Net assets disposed of i E&EEFE (59,046)
Gain on disposal * H & s 2,954
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMESERSRAFE:
Cash consideration received BERRERE 62,000

The gain on disposal is included in “other gains and
losses”.

HE st A TE AU s R R ] o

ESERERAT 20165FH 223



224

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-ZT—RET-_A=+—HILFE
(LABTTEIIR)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

42, FEREREBERMTE (F)

(d) Deemed disposal of partial interest in Lujolujo (d) #H1RAHELujolujosfn iR
On 31 October 2015, Lujolujo entered into a subscription
agreement with a third party in relation to the subscription by
the third party of 50,000 new shares allotted by Lujolujo at an
aggregate consideration of HK$8,500,000. After the completion
of the allotment and subscription on 31 October 2015, the

RZZT—AF+A=+—HLuoljofE—%
E=FELRERHER NDBEBFE=FRE
LujolujofT B2 250,000/ ¥ %10 © 2R EA
8,500,000 L - R -_E—HE+A=+—
A SeRk Bl 3 M R RE % - AN E R Lujolujo i
HEEH77%E#EE12.83% ° ALt Lujolujofk
BAASEELTIRIEE YHBATHES
SREE (MIsE27) ©

Group’s shareholding in Lujolujo was diluted from 77% to
12.83%. Accordingly, Lujolujo became an investment of the
Group without control and was classified as available-for-sale

financial assets (note 27).

HK$'000
FA&T
Property, plant and equipment (note 20) Vs RE R AE (FisE20) 544
Inventories "E 140
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H b U GRIE 1,661
Pledged bank deposits BRIFRITER 806
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 253
Accrued expenses and other payables FEAT & A R H b FE 5 5R0E (4,753)
Carrying amount of net liabilities disposed of &8 EFEnikaE (1,349)
Non-controliing interest derecognised BRI ERIEER RS 310
Net liabilities disposed of &8 EFE (1,039)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

HE— KB AR e W

Fair value of 12.83% interest retained EAREB12.83%Em KN FEE 1,309
Net liabilities derecognised ERIEEREEFHE 1,039
Gain on deemed disposal* WAL E K 2,348
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEMESRSRLFE:

Cash and cash equivalents disposal of FIEERESRRESEEY (253)
* The gain on deemed disposal is included in “other gains and * AR BEEREETA [E s RER] -

losses”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

() Major non-cash transaction

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Acquisition of AP Group was completed on 1 July 2016 at
a consideration of HK$20,400,000, which was satisfied by
issue of 40,800,000 shares of the Company (note 37(h)).

On 27 September 2016, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Finsoft Financial Investment
Holdings Limited (“Finsoft Financial”) (stock code: 8018),
as purchaser, in relation to the disposal of 16,538,000
ordinary shares of China Parenting Network Holdings
Limited at a consideration of HK$35,498,817. The
transaction completed on 16 December 2016 and Finsoft
Financial settled the consideration by the allotment and
issue of 186,492,340 ordinary shares of Finsoft Financial.

On 31 July 2015, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire 27,298,000 issued
ordinary shares of China Parenting Network Holdings
Limited at the consideration of HK$60,000,000. At
the date of the completion on 7 October 2015, the
consideration was fully satisfied by the Company’s newly
issued shares (note 37(f)).

Acquisition of addition 14.677% interest in Boom Max was
completed on 31 December 2015 at a consideration of
HK$180,416,000, which was satisfied by cash settlement
of HK$30,000,000, issue of the Company’s convertible
notes at nominal value of approximately HK$75,208,000
(note 34) and issue of the Company’s shares at nominal
value of approximately HK$75,208,000 (note 37(g)).

GEMBHRME

HEZ—RET-_A=1—HILFE

(VABTTEIIR)

2. FERERERMTE (F)

€ FEFREXRSH

U

(i)

(i

(iv)

WREEHEEN - —~FtA—AH
A 0 B 520,400,000 7T 15 55
1B 1T N A B)40,800,0008% A% 17 45 1+F
(BzES7(h)) °

R-E—RNFLA-T+tHB A&EH
HEF ST ELBRER AR ([E
Haerl) (RHRSE:8018) (A
BERFINEEHHE NABBAIER
1835,498,817% L i & R B & 7 4945
T A% B R A 7 #916,538,0008% & i
B-RERZZE—A"FE+=A+xA
R REN S RSB R ETE
B & Rt186,492,3400% & 3/ % 45 11
{go

R-TE—RAFtA=+—H0 A£HE
RIS B & - AR (860,000,000
BT BT EE REEIERAR AR
27,298,000/% B BT E MR - Wi E
BERZZ—AF+AEHEZR MK
BTYEBRA D I EITIRG BEE
(HMi3E37(F)) °

g B Boom MaxZ 58 4N 4.677 %1
#RZE—AF+=-A=1+—HA%
B {8 /180,416,000 7T AR
4 3 130,000,000/ 7T - BT EE 4
75,208,000/ 7T B9 AN A Al AR SR R
(KiE34) KB/ TEEL75,208,0007
TR R (MisES7(g)) XA e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. COMMITMENTS

(@)

44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

BE—T—NFt+-_A=1+—HIFE
(LABTTEITR)

43. HAIE
Capital commitments at the end of the reporting period are as @ RREERMEREENT
follows:
2016 2015
— N —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
Contracted but not provided for: D ETABE KRB -
— development costs for intangible assets — B EENRBKAN 30,424 26,586
— capital contribution to a joint venture —mM—EAELETE 7,000 =
37,424 26,586
At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments ) RZZE—AF+ZA=+—8H RETITH
of the Group under non-cancellable operating leases are payable e AEBPATFE R HHES
as follows: ﬂiﬂi%fﬁ%ﬂiﬁm BT -
2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FA 10,999 4,118
After one year but within five years —FERERAFNA 14,852 1,952
25,851 6,070

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for its office premises and office equipment. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of 3 years (2015: 2 years) and
rental is fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent
rentals.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

45. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

A copyright licence agreement (“Copyright Licence Agreement”)
was entered into between Apperience as licensee and fk #B 82 £
EEEMBRAR ([KEEE]), as licensor on 18 February
2013 pursuant to which FXEBEZE granted to Apperience an
exclusive licence to use the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare”
registered in the name of A#PEE at nil consideration for a
period from the date of the Copyright Licence Agreement to (i)
the date on which the relevant copyright is transferred from fX #B
B8 £ and registered in the name of Apperience in the PRC; and
(i) the date on which the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare”
has been registered in the name of Apperience in the United
States (whichever is the earlier). On 1 July 2014, the Copyright
Licence Agreement was terminated.

A new copyright licence agreement (‘New Copyright Licence
Agreement”) was entered into among Both Talent as licensee, A%
#BELE as licensor, and Apperience as of 1 July 2014 pursuant
to which FX#F8£ granted to Both Talent an exclusive licence
to use the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” registered in
the name of AX#APE £ in the PRC for a period from the date
of the New Copyright Licence Agreement to the later of (i) the
completion of registration of the assignment of the copyright to
Both Talent in the PRC; and (i) the completion of registration of
the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” in the name of Both
Talent in the United States.

Mr. Xue Qiush (“Mr. Xue”), an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company up to 13 December 2016, has
35% equity interest in A ZF B £

HEe—T—

4=

GEMBHRME

NETZR=+—RHIEFE

(VABTTEIIR)

45. BBARS

(a)

RZZT—=%F=HF+/\H 'Apperience ({E
BIFBA)HEKESRERE SR ERA A
(TECEBERZ ) (fEAFERR A)RT A W #E k2
B ([hE R iaEl) Rt pE R
£ A Apperiencel® H B K 8 FR - 1A P B &
B {55 FA DA K EB B 22 42 % 51 i &9 [Advanced
SystemCare | hiz# - B hix i 2 R 17775 B BB
%5 () FEI A W FR A D ER 2 85 % & Apperience
BETREREUNEZZZIME B Kii)
7 35 B LA Apperience % % #% ffit [ Advanced
SystemCare | iz 2 B (LR FEER%E) B
- R=ZT—NF+A—A WREERBHE
BERIE-

R-Z-—NELH—B ZR0 (EA#EH
A) AR E ({EA%EREA ) B Apperience
R AERR Rk ([ HT R R R 1
E) OB KBREERZAKEBER
FR R NP EE AU SREZE M
[ Advanced SystemCare | iR - & % it f&
BinZAHEZ()RPRTKEMEET=
(] B R 5 R (i) S 35 B S K LA 5 (R 48 3% n 1
[ Advanced SystemCare | i # (LAB & E A

#o

BNEARE([BEEDBE-_T—RF
TZAT=AREARFARITERTRITHE
B BB D R F35% A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

45. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

228

o)

(©

On 13 August 2015, the Company, the vendors and the
warrantors entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (as varied and supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 16 September 2015) in relation to the Group’s
acquisition of additional 14.677% of the issued share capital of
Boom Max. Ace Source International Limited (“Ace Source”),
one of the vendors, is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xue.
Ace Source received the consideration of (i) HK$10,000,000
in cash; (i) the Convertible Notes in a principal amount of
HK$43,816,465; and (i) 146,054,883 of the consideration
shares issued by the Company, credited as fully paid. Details of
the acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 13 August 2015, 16 September 2015, 16 October 2015,
6 November 2015, 15 December 2015 and 31 December 2015,
and the Company’s circular dated 23 November 2015.

Transactions with key management personnel

All key management personnel are directors of the Company and
their remuneration are disclosed in note 16.
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RZFE—RAFENA+=B KXA2R-BF
KR A BN & B W fEBoom MaxiE 217
IR AN KRB IMA.677%5] S B 1T B B
(KRB AEZE—RAFNA T+ BOFETRH
HIBET RAFE) o R —& E 5 Ace Source
International Limited ([ Ace Source | ) F&£5T
2B EXHEA ° Ace SourceB WA E ()R
410,000,000 7T ¢ (i) 4 2 443,816,465
BT AT R R IR - R (i) AN R B BEITH
146,054,883 B - ABRTIERUE ©
BEENFBIENARRBHA-Z—H
FNA+=B-ZFE—HFNLA+A =
T—RE+A+AB - ZZ—RHE+—AX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

(b)

Proposed Rights Issue

On 21 December 2016, the Board proposed the implementation
of the rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every two
existing ordinary shares held on the record date of 19 January
2017 at the subscription price of HK$0.52 per rights share
to raise approximately HK$77,000,000, before deduction of
expenses, by issuing 148,149,412 rights shares to the qualifying
shareholders.

The transaction was completed on 15 February 2017. The
estimated net proceeds of the rights issue were approximately
HK$73,000,000.

Details of the proposed rights issue are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 21 December 2016, 10 January 2017, 17
January 2017, 14 February 2017 and 17 February 2017 and the
Company’s prospectus dated 20 January 2017.

Provision of Financial Assistance to Jun Yang Solar

On 24 February 2017, the Group entered into a shareholder
loan agreement with Jun Yang Solar to grant a loan in the
principal amount of US$3,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,230,000). The loan is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand. Details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 24 February 2017.

Proposed Spin-Off

On 8 February 2017, the Company submitted a proposal to
the Stock Exchange in respect of the separate listing of the
Corporate Management Solutions and |.T. Contract Services
Business (“Proposed Spin-off’) on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. The Proposed Spin-off is at a preliminary stage and
is subject to, among other things, the approval of the Stock
Exchange and the final decision of the Board. Details are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 8 February 2017.

HE—Z—

GEMBHRME

NETZR=+—RHIEFE

(VABTTEIIR)

46. IW|E

(@

(b)

(©

HERER

BEMAR

RZZE—R"F+-A=+—H EFTgE=
RERERAD0.52B T REE TR =
T+t -A+NBZEHBHEEEM
IRIRE LB ER — R IRAR (D 2 E %R
B BRI R 2 17148,149,4120% (L A% A% 19 3
1THER% - DA 5 4977,000,0007% 7T (40 Bk A
AT °

RHER_E—+E - A+ABZTK - HEZ
5T FT1S FUB F 88 #973,000,00078 7T °

BEEERZFBRRARRAPAZZT—X
F+=—A=+—H =F—+tF—A+8H"
—E—+&E—fF++tB - ZE—+tE=-A
THOAN-—E—+tF_A++LtRAZAENR
AR BEA-ZE—+F—A_-_+HZH

e
BERG KGRI B ER

RZZ—+F-_A-+MB AEBEE
KGRI L RRE R % WREASE R
3,500,000 7T (48 & 7 4927,230,0007% 7T.)
ZER-ERBERE - © B8 R IEN TR
BE FEHENARABYPA-_T—+F—
A-+mMAZRAE-

RZZ—tF-ANB ARARRCEER
R T RRA B A KRS ETE R B R
FREVZEIRIBSL b B 2 PR 2 a8 (132
FOW]) - BESWROFEEETRA
F(EPEBE)BMIAIERESEGZRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(d)

Partial Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 21 March 2017, the Company disposed of approximately
32% of the issued share capital of GET Mdream to two
independent third parties at an aggregate consideration of
HK$3,000,000 in cash. After the completion of the disposal, the
Group retains approximately 19% of the issued share capital
of GET Mdream. GET Mdream became an investment of the
Group without control and is classified as available-for-sale
financial assets accordingly. Immediately after the completion of
the disposal, the Group discontinued its operation in Insurance
and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business as one of its principal
business activities. Details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 21 March 2017.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2012, 2013,

2014, 2015 and 2016.

AFHMBEHRE

NTRAAEEHEZE—Z——F —T—=F . TN
F _E-RAFRE-ARFTA=+—HILEEF
EHNETEEEUREERBEHNEZ-

RESULTS E S5
Year ended 31 December
BEZ+-—A=1t—HILEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—B-XRE —T—HF —ZE—WMF ZT—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FERT T FHT T T
Turnover BT 263,021 324,729 234,293 92,105 4,137
Profit/(loss) from operations ERF (BE) 92,687 123,049 109,155 (161,776) (24,931)
Finance costs BE KA (22,562) (5,635) (1,209) (14,602) (1,048)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates FE(R s = A A
(&518), &7 (5,550) (51) 33 = =
Share of loss of a joint venture EBh—HeErEER (5) = = = =
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB ATEF, (E18) 64,570 117,363 107,979 (176,378) (25,979)
Income tax FTig# (29,576) (23,940) (19,000) (6,798) (359)
Profit/(loss) after taxation from REFELSEER
continuing operations MRBLEIET (B58) 34,994 93,423 88,979 (183,176) (26,338)
Loss after taxation from RECKRIEZREEK
discontinued operation BRBBER - - = = (288)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERRN(BE) 34,994 93,423 88,979 (183,176) (26,626)
Profit/(loss) attributable to BT AL EEER,
(&BH])
- Owners of the Company —ARAREEBA 17,092 60,510 52,737 (207,410) (26,626)
- Non-controlling interests — R 17,902 32,913 36,242 24,234 =
34,994 93,423 88,979 (183,176) (26,626)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+-—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E—RF ZT—HF ZT—WF ZT—= R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHT FHET FHET
Total assets BEEHRE 1,469,512 1,434,324 942,389 750,754 160,974
Total liabilities BERE (387,062) (380,503) (174,513) (161,500) (22,894)
Non-controlling interests SRR = (34,915) (37,868) (41,524) (35,498) =
Total equity attributable to AATEE ANEMN
owners of the Company HRER 1,047,535 1,015,953 726,352 553,756 138,080

ESERERAT 20165FH 231
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